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Bid No. IFB PAG-015-022
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

The Port Authority of Guam (PAG), a public corporation and autonomous agency of the
Government of Guam, will receive sealed bids for INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT
AUTHORITY OF GUAM

The deadline for all QUESTIONS & CONCERNS {Q&C) will be on WEDNESDAY, August 24, 2022, at 4:00

£.M. Chamorro Standard Time {Guam Time] at the close of business.

BID SUBMITTALS will be received, as described in the bid and contract documents on FRIDAY,

SEPTEMBER 2, 2022, no later than 2:00 P.M. Chamorro Standard Time {Guam Time), at the Procurement
Office, located on the 1* Floor of the PAG Administration Building, after which time all bids will be
publicly opened, and read aloud, at the PAG Board of Directors Conference Room. Late bid
submittals will not be considered.

All bids must be accompanied by a bid security in the amount of 15% of the total bid price. Bid
Security maybe in a form of a bid bond, certified check or cashier’s check made payable to PAG. An
electronic copy, in PDF, can be downloaded from the Part’s website: https://portofguam.com/bids-
and-rfps. All interested bidders must completely fill out the Bid Registration information. A hard
copy may also be picked up at the Port’s Procurement Office located on the 1% floor of the PAG
Administration Building.

The PAG reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any and all informalities, and to
disregard all nonconforming or conditional bids ar counter proposals when in PAG's opinion, such
rejection or waiver will be in the Authority’s best interest.

For Additional information, contact Annie L.G. Sablan, Acting Procurement & Supply Manager at
477-5931 ext. 340 OR 276; or via email at algsablan@portofguam.com, Mark A. Cabrera at

macabrera® portofguam.com, or Pia Castro at pacastro@partofguam.com

ﬂhu,féfn’:“.m

RORY J. RESPICIO
General Manager

This Advertisement is paid with Government funds by the PORT OF AUTHORITY OF GUAM

Port of Guam lose 0.Leon Guerrero Commercial Port is an Equal Employrment Opportunity Employer,
Complaints of discrimination should be sent to the Human Resources Division.
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INVITATION FOR BID NO.: IFB-PAG-015-22
DESCRIPTION:
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
SP TIVE BIDDE

Bidders are reminded to read the Sealed Bid Solicitation and Instructions, and General Terms and
Conditions attached to the IFB to ascertain that all of the folowing requirements checked below are
submitted in the bid envelope. One (1) original, two (2) copies and one (1} CD or USB containing an
electronic file copy (in PDF format) of the complete bid proposal shall be enclosed in a sealed package
or envelope at the date and time for bid opening.

[X] BID GUARANTEE (15% of Bid Amount) may be in the form of;
Reference #11 on the General Terms and Conditions

a.  Cashier's Check or Certified Check
b.  Letter of Credit
¢.  Surety Bond - Valid only if accompanied by:

1. Current Certificate of Authority issued by the Insurance Commissioner;

2. Power of Attorney issued by the Surety to the Resident General Agent;

3. Power of Attorney issued by two (2) major officers of the Surety to whoever is
signing on their behalf.

[X] BROCHURES/DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE;
[X] AFFIDAVIT DISCLOSING OWNERSHIP and COMMISSION

a.  Date of signature of the person authorized to sign the bid and the notary date must
be the same.

Xj OTHER REQUIREMENTS:

Non-Collusion_Affidavi

Dffenders Affidavit, No chkbacks or Gratuities Affidavit and Ethical Standards Affidavit and
Affidavit re Contingent Fees, and Current Business License.

This reminder must be signed and returned in the bid envelope together with the bid. Failure
to comply with the above requirements may be cause for disqualification and rejection of the

bid.
On this day of , 2022, 1, , authorized
representative of acknowledge receipt of this special reminder to

prospective bidders with the above referenced IFB.

Bidder Representative’'s Signature
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[nvitation for Bid: IFB-PAG-015-22
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT RECEIPT FORM

Please be advised that to be considered a prospective bidder you must fill out this Acknowledgement
receipt form.

Please submit by fax to (671) 472-1439 or email to: spmunad1@portofguam.com ,
macabrera@portofguam.com, and pagprocuremeni@portofguam.com,

Acknowledgement Receipt Form must be submitted no later than three {3) days upon receipt
of the IFB package.

Name

Date

Time

Contact Number

Fax Number

Contact Person regarding 1FB

Title

E-Mail Address

Company/Firm

Address

Note: IFB recommends that prospective bidders register current contact information with IFB to
ensure they receive any notices regarding any changes or updates to the IFB. The procuring agency
and IFB will not be liable for failure to provide notice to any party who did not register current
contact information.

All questions and concerns in regards to this bid must be addressed to the Port Authority of
Guam’s General Manager: RORY |, RESPICIO, Attention: Procurement Division, via email to

pagprocurement@portofguam.com, Mark A. Cabrera macabrera@portofguam.com, and Denise
J. Calvo djcalvo@portofguam.com, no later than 4:00 pm Wednesday. August 24, 2022,

No Entitlement to Preparation Costs - the bidder expressly waives any right it may have against the
government for any expenses incurred in connection with the preparation of its bid.

Signature
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INV FOR BID
, ISSUING OFFICE: Port Authority of Guam

Government of Guam
P aspLan 1026 Cabras Highway, Ste. 201,
RORY J. RESPICIO Piti, Guam 96925
General Manager
DATE ISSUED:__August 19, 2022 BID INVITATION NO: JFB-PAG-015-22

BID FOR: INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

SPECIFICATION: SEE ATTACHED

DESTINATION: PORT AUTHOCRITY OF GUAM

REQUIRED DELIVERY DATE: To be effective on October 1, 2022 for a periad of five consecutive vears upon the
availability of funds, and will be awarded on an annual basis,

INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS:
INDICATE WHETHER: INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP CORPORATION

INCORPORATED IN:

This bid shall be submitted in duplicate with one electronic copy and sealed to the issuing office above no later
than 2:00 pm, Friday, September 02, 2022, and shall be publicly opened. Bid submitted after the time and
date specified above shall be rejected. See attached General Terms and Conditions, and Sealed Bid Solicitation
for details.

The undersigned offers and agrees to furnish within the time specified, the articles and services at the price
stated opposite the respective items listed on the schedule provided unless otherwise specified by the bidder.
In consideration of the expense of the Government in the opening, tabulating, and evaluating this and other
bids, and other considerations, the undersigned agrees that this bid remains firm and irrevocable within 99
calendar days from the date of opening to supply any or all the items which prices are quoted.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF BIDDER: SIGNATURE AND TITLE QF PERSON
AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS BID:

AWARD: CONTRACT NO.: AMOUNT: DATE:

ITEM NO(S). AWARDED:

NAME AND ADBRESS OF CONTRACTOR: CONTRACTING OFFICER:

RORY ). RESPICIO
GENERAL MANAGER

SIGNATURE AMD TITLE OF PERSON
AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS CONTRACT:

MName:

Title: Date:
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Fixed-Price Contract with Price Adjustment

This IFB is for a Fixed-Price Contract with Price Adjustment 2 GAR DIV. 4 (3). At the annual renewal
of insurance coverage for the PAG, cost may be adjusted, due to changes in required coverage or
changes in the current market conditions so long as both parties agree. However, the Port equally
reserves the right to terminate such contract before the renewal date if new cost is not agreed upon
by both parties.

Hold Over Clause
In the event that the Port Authority of Guam requires an extension at the end of the contract term

with the contractor, the agency may elect to renew on a month to month basis at an agreed upon
monthly rate until a new contract for the PAG Insurance Coverage is issued.
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GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
1026 Cabras Highway, Suite 201
Piti, Guam 96925

BID BOND
NO.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that , as Principal hereinafter called
the Principal, and (Bonding Company),

A duly admitted insurer under the laws of the Territory of Guam, as Surety, hereinafter catled the Surety is Held

firmly bound unto the Territory of Guam for the sum of

Dollars (% ), for Payment of which sum will and

truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for (identify project by number and brief description):

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Territory of Guam shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter
into a Contract with the Territory of Guam in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or
bonds as may be specified in bidding or Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful
performance of such Contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution
thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter such Contract and give such bond or bonds, if the
Principal shall pay to the Territory of Guam the difference not to exceed the penalty hereof between the
amounts specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Territory of Guam may in good faith
contract with another party to perform work covered by said bid or an appropriate liquidated amount as

specified in the Invitation for Bids then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain full force and

effect.
Signed and sealed this day af 20
(PRINCIPAL) (SEAL)
(WITNESS)
(TITLE)
{MAJOR OFFICER OF SURETY) {MAJOR OFFICER OF SURETY)
(TITLE) (TITLE)

(RESIDENT GENERAL AGENT)
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INSTRUCTION TO PROVIDERS

NOTICE to all Insurance and Bonding Institutions:

The Bond requires the signatures of the Vendor, two (2) major Officers of the Surety and
Resident

General Agent, if the Surety is a foreign or alien surety.

When the form is submitted to THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM, it should be accompanied
by with copies of

The following:

1. Current Certificate of Authority to do business on Guam issued by the Department of
Revenue and Taxation.

2. Power of Attorney issued by the Surety to the Resident-General Agent.

3. Power of Attorney issued by two (2} major officers of the Surety to whoever is signing on
their behalf.

Bonds, submitted as Bid Guarantee, without signatures and supporting documents are invalid
and Bids will be rejected.
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AFFIDAVIT DISCLOSING OWNERSHIP, INFLUENCE, COMMISSIONS
AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
P.L 36-13{4/9/2021

CITY OF )}
) S8,
ISLAND OF GUAM )}

Preface. As a condition of submitting a Bid /Offer/Proposal or responding to any method of source selection
under Guam's Procurement Law for the purpose of entering into a contract with the government of Guam, this
Affidavit requires all Bidders/Offerors/Prospective Contractors to make disclosures of ownership, influence,
commissions, gratuities, kickbacks, and conflicts of interest occurring during the 365 calendar days
preceding the publication of this solicitation and until award of a contract. This includes the duty to
disclose any changes to the facts disclosed herein throughout the solicitation process; and if the entity
submitting this Affidavit is awarded a contract, the duty to disclose any changes to the facts disclosed herein
continues throughout the life of the contract, including any extensions or renewals.

A,

[, the undersigned, being first duty sworn, depose and say that I am an authorized representative of the

Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor and that (please check and fill cut all that apply):

[]

[1

[]

[]

The Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor is an individual with a business license, and all
decisions are by, and all profit is for, that same individual, with principal place of business
street address being:

The Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor is a business or artificial person (as defined in 1
GCA § 715 or 5 GCA §§ 5030(n) or 5233(b)), and is a sole proprietorship owned entirely
(100%} by . with principal place of business street address
being:

The Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor is a business or artificial person {as defined in 1
GCA § 715 or 5 GCA §§ 5030(n) or 5233(b)), and is owned by the following multiple
individuals. Note: owners of more than 10% are statutorily required to be listed below, but
other owners of smaller percentage are encouraged to be listed as well.

Name of Owner Principal Place of Business % of Interest
Street Address

One or more of the more-than-10% owners listed above is a business or artificial person. Any
more-than-25% owners of such a business or artificial person are listed helow per 5 GCA §
5233. Note: any less-than-25% owners of such a business or artificial person is encouraged
to also be listed below,

Name of >»10% Owner Business or Artificial Person:

Names of owners of Owner’s Principal Place of Business Street Address % of

the >10% Owner Interest
Business or Artificial
Person ("Second Tier

Owner")
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Name of ather >10% Owner Business or Artificial Person:

Names of owners of ‘Owner’s Principal Place of Business Street Address % of
the »10% Owner Interest
Business ar Artificial
Person ("Second Tier
Cwner”]

If any Second Tier Owner identified above is an artificial person, the natural or artificial owners of such
Second Tier Owner who have held more than 49% of the shares or interest in the
Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor {Third Tier Owners) are as follows [if none, please so state]:

Second Tier Owner Name

Name of Third Tier Own Principal Place of Business % of Interest
Street Address

C. If the name of no natural person has been identified as an owner, or a Second or Third Tier Owner of
the Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor, please identify the name, position, address, and contact
information of the natural person having the authority and responsibility for the
Bid /Offer /Proposal/Prospective Contract, and the name of any natural person who has the authority
and power to remove and replace the designated responsible person:

Name of Natural Person | Position Street Address of Phone Number, Email
Principal Place of Address, and ather
Business Contact Information
D. Further, [ say that the persons who have received or are entitled te receive a commission, gratuity,

contingent fee or other compensation to solicit, secure, or assist in obtaining business related to the
Bid/Offer/Proposal /Prospective Contract for which this Affidavit is submitted are as follows (if none,

please so state):

Name Principal Place of Business Amount of
Street Address Compensation
Page 8
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F.

Further, 1 say that the persons who have directly or indirectly participated in this solicitation and who
are also employees of the government of Guam or the gavernment of the United States, if federal funds
are to be used in the payment of the contract related to the Bid/Oifer/Proposal/Prospective Contract
for which this Affidavit is submitted, are as follows (if none, please so state):

Name Principal Place of Business
Street Address

Regardless of any ownership interest, the following individuals have the power to control the
perfermance of the contract or to control the Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor, directly or
indirectly:

Name Principal Place of Business
Street Address

Until award of the comtract, and throughout the term of any contract awarded to the
Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor represented herein, [ agree to promptly make any
disclosures not made previously and update changes in ownership, identities of owners and other
required information, interests, compensation or conflicts of the persons required to be disclosed. |
understand that failure to comply with this requirement shall constitute a material breach of contract.

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of Guam that the foregoing is true and
correct

Executed on: (date)

Signature of one of the following:
Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor, if a licensed individual
Owner of sole proprietorship Bidder/Offeror/Prospective

Contractor
Partner, if the Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractoris a
partnership
Officer, if the Bidder/Offeror/Prospective Contractor is a
corporation
Suhscribed and sworn to before me
This day of ,20
Notary Public
My commission expires:
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CITY OF ]

) ss.
ISLAND OF GUAM )

[state name of affiant signing below], being first duly sworn, deposes

and says that:

1. The name of the offering company or individual is [state name of company]

2. The proposal for the solicitation identified above is genuine and not collusive or a
sham. The offeror has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with
any other offeror or person, to put in a sham proposal or to refrain from making an offer. The
offeror has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by an agreement or collusion, or
communication or conference, with any person to fix the proposal price of offeror or of any other
offeror, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of said proposal price, or of that of any other
offeror, or to secure any advantage against the government of Guam or any other offeror, or to
secure any advantage against the government of Guam or any person interested in the proposed
contract. All statements in this affidavit and in the proposal are true to the best of the knowledge
of the undersigned. This statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 § 3126(b).

3. | make this statement on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror, and on
behalf of the offeror’ s officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, and employees.

Signature of one of the following:
Offeror, if the offeror is an individual;
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this day of , 20

NOTARY PUBLIC
My commission expires

AG Procurement Form (03 (Jul. 12,2010)

Page 10
IFB-PAG-015-22



AFFIDAVIT re NO GRATUITIES or KICKBACKS

CITYOF ______ )
] ss.
ISLAND OF GUAM )

[state name of affiant signing below], being first

duly sworn, deposes and says that:

1. The name of the offering firm or individual is [state name of offeror company]
. Affiant is [state one of the foliowing:
the offeror, a partner of the offeror, an officer of the offeror] making the foregoing identified bid
or proposal.

2. To the best of affiant’s knowledge, neither affiant, nor any of the Offerors officers,
representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees have violated, are violating the
prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks set forth in 2 GAR Division 4 § 11107(e). Further,
affiant promises, on behalf of offeror, not to violate the prohibition against gratuities and
kickbacks as set forth in 2 GAR Division 4 § 11107(e).

3. To the best of affiant's knowledge, neither affiant, nor any of the Offerors officers,
representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees have offered, given or agreed to give, any
government of Guam employee or former government employee, any payment, gift, kickback,
gratuity or offer of employment in connection with the Offerors proposal.

4.1 make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror, and on
hehalf of the Offerors officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, and employees.

Signature of one of the following:
Offeror, if the offeror is an individual;
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this day of , 20

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires

AG Procurement Form 004 (Jul 12, 2010)
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AFFIDAVIT RE ETHICAL STANDARDS

CITY OF )
) ss.
ISLAND OF GUAM )

[state name of affiant signing below], being first duly

sworn, deposes and says that:

The affiant is [state one of the following: the offeror, a
partner of the offeror, an officer of the offeror] making the foregeing identified bid or
proposal. To the best of affiant’s knowledge, neither affiant nor any officers, representatives,
agents, subcontractors or employees of offeror have knowingly influenced any government
of Guam employee to breach any of the ethical standards set forth in 5 GCA Chapter S, Article
11. Further, affiant promises that neither he or she, nor any officer, representative, agent,
subcontractor, or employee of offeror will knowingly influence any government of Guam
employee to breach any ethical standards set forth in 5 GCA Chapter 5, Article 11. These
statements are made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 § 11103(b).

Signature of one of the following:
Offeror, if the offeror is an individual;
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn to hefare me

this day of , 20

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires

AG Procurement Form 5 (Jul 12, 2010)
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S ial P .
Restriction against Sex Offenders Employed by service providers to
Government of Guam from working on Government Property.

If a contract for services is awarded to the bidder or offeror, then the service provider must
warranty that no person in its employment who has been convicted of a sex offense under
the provisions of chapter 25 of Title 9 of Guam code Annotated or of an offense defined in
Article 2 of chapter 28 of Title 9 of the Guam Code annotated, ar who has been convicted in
any other jurisdiction of an offense with the same elements as heretofore defined, or who is
listed on the Sex Offender Registry, shall provide services on behalf of the service provider
while on government of Guam property, with the exception of public highways. If any
employee of a service provider is providing services on government property and is
convicted subsequent to an award of a contract, then the service provider warrants that it
will notify the Government of the conviction within twenty-four (24) hours of the conviction,
and will immediately remove such convicted person from providing services on government
property. If the service provider is found to be in violation of any of the provisions of this
paragraph, then the government will give notice to the service provider to take corrective
action. The service provider shall take corrective action within twenty-four (24) hours of
notice from the Government, and the service provider shall notify the Government when
action has been taken. If the service providers fail to take carrective steps within twenty-
four (24) hours of notice from the Government, then the Government in its sole discretion
may suspend temporarily and contract for services until corrective action has been taken.

Signature of Bidder Date
Proposer, if an individual;
Partner, if a partnership;
Officer, if a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn before me this day of , 20

Notary Public
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DECLARATION RE COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. D.O.L. WAGE DETERMINATION
Procurement No: IFB-PAG-015-22
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

Name of Offeror Company: hereby certifies under
penalty of perjury:
(1) That!l am (the offeror, a partner of the offeror, an

officer of the offeror) making the bid or proposal in the foregoing identified procurement;

(2)  That I have read and understand the provisions of 5 GCA § 5801 and § 5802 which
read:
§ 5801. Wage Determination Established.

In such cases where the government of Guam enters into contractual
arrangements with a sole proprietorship, a partnership or a corporation (“contractor”)
for the provision of a service to the government of Guam, and in such cases where the
contractor employs a person{s) whose purpose, in whole or in part, is the direct delivery
of service contracted by the government of Guam, then the contractor shall pay such
employee(s) in accordance with the Wage Determination for Guam and the Northern
Mariana Islands issued and promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor for such labor
as is employed in the direct delivery of contract deliverables to the government of Guam.

The Wage Determination most recently issued by the U.S. Department of
Labor at the time a contract is awarded to a contractor hy the government of Guam shall
be used to determine wages, which shall be paid to employees pursuant to this Article.
Should any contract contain a renewal clause, then at the time of renewal adjustments,
there shall be made stipulations contained in that contract for applying the Wage
Determination, as required by this Article, so that the Wage Determination promulgated
by the U.S. Department of Labor on a date most recent to the renewal date shall apply.

§ 5802. Benefits.

In addition to the Wage Determination detailed in this Article, any contract
to which this Article applies shall also contain provisions mandating health and similar
benefits for employees covered by this Article, such benefits having a minimum value as
detailed in the Wage Determination issued and promulgated by the U.S. Department of
Labor, and shall contain provisions guaranteeing a minimum of ten (10) paid holidays
per annum per employee.

(3) That the offeror is in full compliance with 5 GCA § 5801 and § 5802, as may be applicable
to the procurement referenced herein;

(4) ThatI have attached the most recent wage determination applicable to Guam issued by
the U.S. Department of Labor. [INSTRUCTIONS - Please attach!]

Signature Date

AG Procurement Form 006 (Feb. 16,2010}
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"REGISTER OF WAGE DETERMINATIONS UNDER | U.5. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR THE SERVICE CONTRACT ACT| EMPLOYMENT
STANDARDS ADMINISTRATION By direction of the Secretary of Labor | WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION

WASHINGTON D.C. 20210 | Wage Determination No.: 2015-5693 Daniel W. Simms
Director Wage Determinations| Date Of Last Revision; 03/15/2022

|
Note: Contracts subject to the Service Contract Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026,

Division of | Revision No.: 16

| 'f the contract is entered into on or |With certain exceptions Executive Order | | after January 30 2022 or the | 14026 applies
to the contract. | |contract is renewed or extended (e.p. | The contractor must pay all covered workers | |an option is exercised)
on or after|at least $15.00 per hour (or the applicable | [January 30 2022: | wage rate listed on this wage daterminatian| | |if it is
higher] for all hours spent| | | performing on the contract in 2022.

|
The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional information on contractor requirements
and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at https://www.dol gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

States: Guam Northern Marianas Wake Island Area: Guam Statewide Northern Marianas Statewide Wake Island Statewide

**Eringe Benefits Required Follow the Occupational Listing**
OCCUPATION CODE - TITLE FOOTNOTE RATE

01000 - Administrative Support And Clerical Occupations

01011 - Accounting Clerk | 13.57%%¢
01012 - Accounting Clerk 1) 15.23
01013 - Accounting Clerk 1l 17.04
01020 - Administrative Assistant 21.43
01035 - Court Reporter 17.40
01041 - Customer Servite Represantative | 11.51***
01042 - Customer Service Representative Il 12,94+
01043 - Customer Service Repraesentative il 14.12%**
01051 - Data Entry Operatar | 1215
01052 - Data Entry Operator (I 13,25%*
01060 - Dispatcher Motor Vehicle 17.39
1070 - Document Preparation Clerk 13.85%**
01090 - Cuplicaling Machine Qperatar 13.85%**
01111 - General Clerk | 10,35%**
01112 - General Clerk I 11,29~
01113 - General Clerk IH 12 68***
01120 - Housing Referral Assistant 19.29
01141 - Massenger Courier 1137
01191 - Order Clerk | 12,57
01192 - Order Clerk 1) 13.71%**
01261 - Personnel Assistant {(Employment} | 15.95
01262 - Personnel Assistant (Employment} 0 17.85
01263 - Personnel Assistant (Employment} il 19.89
01270 ~ Production Control Clerk 21.78
1290 - Rental Clerk 1t.10°""
{1300 - Scheduler Maintenance 15.55
01311 - Secretary | 15.55
01312 - Secretary Il 17.40
{11313 - Secretaey M 19.39
01320 - Service Order Dispatcher 15.40
011410 - Supply Technician 21.43
01420 - Survey Worker 16.96
(11460 - Swichboard Operatar/Receptionist 10.36***
01531 - Travel Clerk | 13.01%**
01532 - Travel Clerk 14.12%**
011533 - Travel Clerk NI 15.09
015611 - Word Processor | 14.53***
01612 - Word Processor Il 156.31
01613 - Word Processor il 1B.26
05000 - Automotive Service Oocupalions
05005 - Automobile Body Repairer Fiberglass 15.46
05010 - Automative Electrician 14.52"*"
05040 - Automative Glass Installer 13.58%%°
05070 - Automotive Worker 13.59%**
(35110 - Mobile Equipment Servicer 11.65%4*
05130 - Molor Equiprment Metal Mechanic 1545
05160 - Motor Equipment Metal Woarker 13.58**
05190 - Motor Vehile Mechanic 1546
05220 - Molar Vehicle Mechanic Helper 10.66%**
05250 - Molor Vehicle Upholstery Worker 12.69***
05280 - Motor Vehicle Wrecker 13.58%°*
05310 - Painter Avtamotive 14,52
05340 - Radiator Repair Specialist 13.58"¢*
05370 - Tire Repairer 12.67***
05400 - Transmission Repair Specialist 15.46
07000 - Faod Preparation And Service Occupations
07010 - Baker 10.47%*
07041 - Cook | 13.26%**
07042 - Cook Il 15.46
07070 - Dishwasher 0,31***
07130 - Food Service Worker 9.45%**
07210 - Meat Cutter 12.13%**
07260 - Water/Waitress 9,274

09000 - Furmiture Maintenance And Hepair Jccupations
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09010 - Electrostatic Spray Painter 18.04
09049 - Furniture Handler 10.95%**
08080 - Furniture Refinisher 18.04
(9090 - Furniture Refinisher Helper 13.27%*
09110 - Furniture Repairar Minar 15.70
09130 - Upholsterer 18.04
11000 - General Services And Support Occupations
11030 - Cleaner Vehicles 9,35+
11060 - Elevator Operator g.54**
110890 - Gardenar 13.00%**
11122 - Housekeeping Aide 9544
11150 - Janitor 9,544+
11210 - Labarer Grounds Maintenance 9.82%
11240 - Maid or Houseman 9.327**
11260 - Pruner B.79%e~
11270 - Tractor Operator 11.90***
11330 - Trail Maintenance Warker 9.82%
11360 - Window Cleaner 10.66"**
12000 - Health Dccupations
12010 - Ambulance Driver 18.23
12011 - Breath Alcohol Technician 1823
12012 - Certified Qcrupational Therapist Assistant 25.01
12015 - Certified Physical Therapist Assistant 25.01
12020 - Dental Assistant 1632
12025- Dental Hygienist 36.12
12030 - EKG Technictan 25.99
12035 - Electroneurodiagnostc Technologist 25.99
12040 - Emergency Medical Technician 1823
12071 - Licensed Practical Nurse | 16.30
12072 - Licensed Practical Nurse Il 18.23
12073 - Licensed Practical Nurse (Il 2032
12100 - Medical Assistant 12.26°"*
12130 - Medical Laboralery Technician 1B.82
12160 - Medical Record Clerk 13.61%***
12150 - Medical Record Technician 12.77
12195 - Medical Tronscriptionist 1630
12210 - Nuclear Medicine Technologist 40.06
12221 - Nursing Assistant | 11.34%**
12222 - Nursing Assistant Il 12,75%**
12223 - Nursing Assistant Il 1291
12224 - Nursing Assistant IV 15.61
12235 - Optical Dispenser 18.23
12236 - Optical Technictan 16.30
12250 - Pharmacy Technician 15.49
12280 - Phiebotomist 1630
12305 - Radintogic Technologist 26.33
12311 - Registered Nurse | 23118
12312 - Registered Nurse Il 28.36
12313 - Registered Nurse Il Specialist 28.36
12314 - Registered Nurse Il 34.32
12315 - Registered Nurse 110 Anesthetist 34.32
12316 - Registered Nurse IV 41.13
12317 - Scheduler {Drug and Alcohol Testing) 2258
12320 - Substance Abuse Treatment Counselar 22.58
13000 - Information And Arts Occupatians
13011 - Exhibits Specialist | 21.20
13012 - Exhibits Specialist Il 26.27
13013 - Exhibits Specialist 1 Er R E]
13041 - lllustrator | 21.20
13042 - lllustrator 10 26.27
13043 - lllusteatar 0l 32,13
13047 - Librarian 29.09
13050 - Library AidefClerk 15,88
13054 - Library information Jechnology Systems 26,27
Administrator
13058 - Library Technician 16.64
13061 - Media Specialist | 138.96
13062 - Media Specialist (I 21.20
130463 - Media Specialist 111 2363
13071 - Photographer | 18.56
13072 - Photagrapher Il 21.20
13073 - Phoragrapher NI 26.27
13074 - Photographer IV 32.13
13075 - Photographer v 38.88
13090 - Technical Order Libracy Clerk 2120
13110 -~ Video Teleconference Technician 18.96
14000 - Information Technology Qccupations
14041 - Computer Operator | 15.71
14042 - Computer Operator 1) 17.22
14043 - Computer Operator (I 19.19
14044 - Computer Operator IV 21.33
14045 - Computer Operator V 23.62
14071 - Computer Programmer | {see 1} 15.73
14072 - Computer Programmer |l {see 1) 15.50
14073 - Computer Programmer 1)¢ {see 1) 23.84
14074 - Computer Programmer IV [see 1)
14101 - Computer Systems Analyst {see 1) 24.23
14102 - Computer Systems Analyst ) [see 1}
Page 16
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14103 - Computer Systems Analyst 1)
14150 - Peripheral Equipment Operator
14160 - Persenal Computer Support Technician
14170 - System Suppoet Specialist
15000 - Instructional Occupations

15010 - Aircrew Tralning Devices Instructor (Non-Rated)
15020 - Aircrew Training Devices Instructor {Rated)
15030 - Air Crew Training Devices Instructor (Pilot)
15050 - Computer Based Tralning Spedalist / nstructor

15060 - Educational Technolagist

15070 - Flight Instructor |Pifot}

15080 - Graphic Artist

150485 - Maintenance Test Pilot Fixed Jet/Prop
15086 - Maintenance Test Pilot Rotary Wing
15089 - Non-Maintenance Test/Co-Pilat

15090 - Technical Instructor

15095 - Technical {nstructor/Course Developer
15114 - Test Proctor

15120 - Tutor

{see 1)

1571
2133
21.24

24.23
29.32
31.n
24.23
27.61
3491
2047
34.91
34.91
34.91
17.67
23.78
15.70

15.70

16000 - Laundry Dry-Cleaning Pressing And Related Occupations

16010 - Assembler

16030 - Counter Attendant

16040 - Dry Cleaner

16070 - Finisher Flatwork Machine
18090 - Pressar Hand

161140 - Presser Machine Drycleaning
16130 - Presser Machine Shirls

16160 - Prasser Machine Wearing Apparel Laundry

16190 - Sewing Machine Qperator
16220 - Tailor
16250 - Washer Machine

10.12%**

10.12%**

11.56%"*

13.12%**

10.12***

10.12°**
10.12*%**
10,12
12,04

12.52%**

10.607"°”

19000 - Machine Tool Operation And Repair Occupations

15010 - Machine-Taol Operatar (Tool Room)
19040 - Tool And Die Makar

21000 - Materials Handling And Packing Occupations

21020 - Forklift Operator

21030 - Material Ceordinator
23040 - Material Expediter

21050 - Material Handling Laborer
21071 - Order Filler

21110 - Shipping Packer

21130 - Shipging/Recening Clerk
21140 - Store Worker |

21150 - Stock Clerk

21210 - Teels And Parts Attendant
21410 - Warehouse Specialist

1%.46
24.45

13 .96 L L]
2178
21.78
11.37°"*

g‘?ﬁ. -
21080 - Production Line Worker {(Food Pracessing)

13.95%**
1712
17.12
15.22

21.40

13.96%**
13.96***

23000 - Mechanics And Maintenance And Repair Dccupations

23010 - Aerospace Structural Welder

23019 - Aircraft Logs and Recards Technician
23021 - Aircraft Mechanic |

23022 - Aircraft Mechanic M

23023 - Aircraft Mechanic N

23040 - Aircraft Mechanic Helper

23050 - Aircraft Painter

23060 - Aircraft Servicer

23070 - Aircraft Survival Flight Equipment Technician

23080 - Aircraft Worker

23091 - Aircrew Life Support Equipment {ALSE) Mechanic |
23092 - Aircrew Life Support Equipment {ALSE) Mechanic (I

23110 - Appliance Mechanic

23120 - Bicycle Repairer

23125 - Cable Splicer

23130 - Carpenter Maintenance

23140 - Carpet Layer

22160 - Electrician Maintenance

23181 - Electronics Technician Maintenance t
231B2 - Electronics Technician Maintenance il
23183 - Electronics Technician Maintenance il
23260 - Fahric Worker

23290 - Fire Alarm System Mechanic

23310 - Fire Exiinguisher Repairer

23311 - Fuel Distribution System Mechanic
23312 - Fuel Distribution System Operator
23370 - General Mantenance Worker

23380 - Ground Suppart Equipment Machanic
23381 - Ground Support Equipment Servicer
23387 - Ground Suppart Eguiprment Woarker
13391 - Gunsmith |

23392 - Gunsmith 1

23393 - Gunsmith N

23410 - Heating Ventilabion And Air-Conditioning
Mechanic

23411 - Heating Ventilation And Air Contidioning
Mechanic (Research Facility}

23430 - Heavy Equipment Mechanic

23440 - Heavy Equipment Operator

23460 - Instrument Mechanic

25.04
19.47
23.84
25.04
26.30
16.58
2239
15.47
22.3%
21.03
21.03
23.84
10.46
15.61
19.59
16.07
18.20
18.0%
1B.20
19.45
20.72
16.94
16.77
15.61
20.72
1561
1201
2384
19.47
2103
15.61
18.20
20,72
17.50

1861
19.27

17.76
20.72
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23465 - Laboratory/Shelter Mechanic 1%.46
23470 - Laborer 11.37%**
23510 - Locksmith 19.46
23530 - Machwnery Mainienance Mechanic 23.13
23550 - Machinist Maintenance 20,72
23580 - Maintenance Trades Helper 10.67°°*
23591 - Metralogy Techmician { 20.72
23592 - Metrology Techmician Il 22.03
23593 - Metrology Technician Il 2332
23640 - Millwright 2072
23710 - Office Applisnce Repairer 19.46
23760 - Painter Maintenance 14.08%**
23790 - Pipefitter Manienance 18.39
23810 - Plumber Maimenance 17.27
23820 - Pnewdraulic Systems Mechanic 210.72
23850 - Rigger 20.72
23870 - Scale Machanic 18.20
23890 - Sheet-Metal Worker Maintenance 17.35
23910 - Small Engine Meachanic 18.20
23931 - Telecommunications Mezhanic | 19.76
23932 - Telecommunications Mechanic |) 21.01
23950 - Telsphone Lineman 1B.24
23960 - Welder Cambination Maintenance 1831
23565 - Well Driller 2113
23970 - Woodcraft Worker 20.71
23980 - Woadworker 15.61
24000 - Personal Needs Occupations
24550 - Case Manager 15.01
24570 - Child Care Attendant 10.09%**
24580 - Child Care Center Clerk 13,26+
24610 - Chore Aide 12.78%**
24620 - Family Readiness And Support Services 15.01
Coordinatar
24630} - Hamemaker 16.12
25000 - Plant And System Operations Occupations
25010 - Boiler Tender 20.22
25040 - Sewage Plant Operator 21.59
25070 - Stationary Engmneer 20.72
25190 - Ventilation Equipment Tender 14,294
25210 - Water Treatment Plant Operator 21.59
27000 - Protective Service Occupations
27004 - Alarm Monitor 10.50%**
27007 - Baggage Inspector 9484
27008 - Corrections Officer 12,05%**
27010 - Court Security Officer 12.05**"
27030 - Detection Dog Handler 10.00""*
27040 - Delention Oficer 12.05%**
27070 - Firefighter 12,05***
27101 - Guaed | GALT*"
27102 - Guard Il 10.90***
27131 - Paolice Officer 1 12.05***
27132 - Police Officec | 13.40%**
28000 - Recreation Occupations
28041 - Carnival Equipment Operator 13.24%**
28042 - Carnival Equipment Repairer 14.46***
28043 - Carnival Worker g 784
28210 - Gate Attendant/Gate Tendar 13,184+
28310 - Lifeguard 11.01%**
28350 - Park Attendant [Aide) 14,744~
28510 - Recreation Aide/Haalth Facility Attendant 11.B4***
28515 - Recreation Specialist 18.26
28630 - Sports Official 11.744%*
28690 - Swimming Pool Operator 17.71
29000 - Stevedoring/Longsharemen Occupational Services
29010 - Blocker And Bracer 25.08
29020 - Hatch Tender 25.98
29030 - Line Handler 25.98
29041 - Stevedore | 24.18
25042 - Stevedaore || 27.79
30000 - Technical Occupations
30010 - Air Traffic Control Specialist Center (HFO} {see 2} 40.29
300111 - Air Trafic Contral Specialist Station {HFO) [see 2} 2178
30012 - Air Traffic Control Specialist Terminal {HFO) (see 2) 30.59
30021 - Archeological Technictan | 17.45
0022 - Archeological Technictan |l 18.56
30023 - Archeological Technician 110 2421
30030 - Cartographic Technician 23.18
30040 - Crwil Engineenng Technician 23.08
30051 - Cryogenic Technician ) 25.57
30052 - Cryogenic Technician Nl 28.24
30061 - Orafter/CAD Operator | 12.49
30062 - Drafter/CAD Operator Il 19.56
30063 - Drafter/CAD Operator |If 20,77
30064 - Drafter/CAD Operatar W 2557
30081 - Engineering Techmician | 14.84%*
30082 - Enginearing Technician |1 16.66
30083 - Engineering Techwician (I 18.64
20084 - Engneering Technician IV 23.08
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30085 - Engineering Technician v 28.24

30086 - Engineering Technician Vi 34.15

A0GH) - Environmental Technigian 23.08

30095 - Evidence Contral Specialist 23.08

30210 - Laboratary Technician 20.77

30221 - Latent Fingerprint Technician | 25.57

30222 - Latent Fingerprint Technician 1 28.29

30240 - Mathamatical Technician 23.34

30361 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant | 19,54

30362 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant Il 24.21

30363 - Paralegal/Legal Assistant I 29.61

30364 - ParalegalfLegal Assistant v 35.83

30375 - Petroleum Supply Specialist 28.24

30390 - Photo-Optics Technician 2193

30395 - Radiation Control Technician 28.24

30461 - Technical Writer | 23.08

30462 - Technical Writer 1) 28.24

304632 - Technical Writer Iif 34.16

30491 - Unexploded Ordnance (UX0} Technician 25.60
30492 - Unexploded Ordnance (UXO} Technician il 3098
30493 - Unexploded Ordnance {UX0} Technician N 37.13
30494 - Unexploded {UXO) Safaty Escort 25.60
30495 - Unexploded {UXO) Sweep Personnel 25.60
30501 - Weather Forecaster | 25.57

30502 - Weather Forecaster H 31.09

30620 - Weather Observer Combined Upper AirOr  (see 2)

Surface Programs
30621 - Weather Observer Seniar

{see 2) 23.08

31000 - Transportation/Mobile Equipment Operation Occupations

31010 - Airptane Pilot 30.98
31020 - Bus Awde 8.15%*
31030 - Bus Drver 10,66%**
31043 - Oriver Couner 9.69%**
31260 - Parking and Lot Attendant 9,91
31290 - Shuttla Bus Driver 11.65""*
31310 - Taxi Driver 1141+
31362 - Truckdriver Light 10.59***
31362 - Truckdriver Medium 1L.61%*
31363 - Truckdriver Heavy 14.64°7*
31364 - Truckdriver Tractor-Trailer 14.64"**
99000 - Miscellaneous Oceupations
93020 - Cabin Safety Speclalist 15.10
99030 - Cashier 9.63***
99050 - Desk Clerk 7%
99095 - Embalmer 25.60
99130 - Flight Follower 25.60
99251 - Laboratary Animal Caretaker | 23.38
99252 - Laboratory Animal Carataker Il 25.54
99260 - Marketing Analyst 21.54
99310 - Maslician 25.60
59410 - Pest Contraller 14.61***
89510 - Pholofinishing Worker 13.45***
99711} - Recycling Laborer 17.32
99711 - Recycling Specialist 23.38
99730 - Refuse Collector 16.40
9810 - Sales Clerk 9.87°
59820 - School Crossing Guard 17.27
Q9830 - Survey Party Chief 23.01
99831 - Surveying Aide 13.08***
59832 - Surveying Technician 17.00
99840 - Vending Machine Attendant 23.38
99841 - Vending Machine Repairer 29.78

99842 - Vending Machine Repairer Helper

***ywarkers in this classification may be entitled to a higher minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 [$15.00 per hour).
Please see the Note at the top of the wage determination for more information. Please also note that the minimum wage
requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not currently being enforced as to contracts or contract-like instruments entered into
with the federal government in connection with seasonal recreational services or seasonal recreational equipment rental for the
general public on federal lands.

ALL OCCUPATIONS LISTED ABOVE RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING BENEFITS: HEALTH & WELFARE: $4.60 per hour uyp 1o 40 hours per
week or 5184.00 per week ar $797.33 per month HEALTH & WELFARE EQ 13706: $4.23 per hour up to 40 hours per week or
$169.20 per week or 5733.20 per month**This rate is to be used only when compensating employees far performance on an
SCA-cavered contract also coverad by EO 13706 Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors. A contractor may not receive
credit toward its SCA obligations for any paid sick leave provided pursuant to EQ 13706.VACATION: 2 weeks paid vacation after
1 year of service with a contractor or successor; and 4 weeks after 3 years. Length of service includes the whole span of
cantinuous service with the present contractor or successor wheraver employed and with the predecessor contractors in the
perfarmance of similar work at the same Federal facility. {Reg. 29 CFR 4.173)

HOLIDAYS: A minimum of eleven paid holidays per year: New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday Washington's Birthday
Memorial Day Juneteenth National Independence Day Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Veterans' Day Thanksgiving
Day and Christmas Day. {A contractor may substitute for any of the named holidays another day off with pay in accordance with
a plan communicated to the employees involved.) {See 29 CFR 4,174)

THE QCCUPATIONS WHICH HAVE NUMBERED FODTNOTES IN PARENTHESES RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING: 1) COMPUTER
EMPLOYEES: Under the SCA at section 8(b) this wage determination does not apply to any emplayee who individually qualifies
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as a bona fide executive administrative or professional employee as defined in 29 C.F.R. Part 541, Because most Computer System
Analysts and Computer Proprammers wha are compensated at a rate not less than $27.63 [or on a salary or fee basis at a rate
not less than $455 per week) an hour would likely qualify as exemgpt computer professionals (29 C.F.R. 541.400) wage rates may
not be listed an this wage determination for all occupations within those job families. In addition because this wage
determination may not list a wage rate for same or all occupations within those job families if the survey data indicates that the
prevailing wage rate for the occupation equals or exceeds $27.63 per hour conformances may be necessary for certain
nonexempt employees. For example if an individual employee is nonexempt but nevertheless performs dutres within the scope
of one of the Computer Systerns Analyst or Computer Programmer occupations for which this wage determination does not
specify an SCA wage rate then the wage rate for that employee must be conformed in accordance with the conformance
procedures described in the conformance note included on this wage determination. Additionally because job titles vary widely
and change quickly in the computer industry job titles are not determinative of the application of the computer professional
exemption. Therefore the exemption applies only to computer employees who satisfy the compensation requirements and
whose primary duty consists of: {1) The application of systemns analysis techniques and procedures including cansulting with users
to determine hardware software or system functional specifications;[2) The design development documentation analysis creation
testing or modification of computer systems or programs including prototypes based on and related to user or system design
specifications; (3) The design documeantation tasting creation or modification of computer programs related to machine operating
systems; or {4) A combination of the aforamentioned duties the performance of which requires the same level of skills. {29 C.F.R.
541.400] 2) AIR TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS AND WEATHER OBSERVERS - NIGHT PAY & SUNDAY PAY: If you work at night as part of
a regular tour of duty you will earn a night differential and receive an additional 10% of basic pay for any hours worked between
6pm and Bam. If you are a full-time employed (40 hours a2 week) and Sunday is part of your regularly scheduled workweek you
are paid at your rate of basic pay plus a Sunday premium of 25% of your basic rate for each hour of Sunday work which is not
overtime (i.e. occastonal work on Sunday outside the normal tour of duty is considered overtime work).** HAZARDOUS PAY
DIFFERENTIAL ** An 8 percent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position that represents a high degree of
hazard when working with or in close proximity to ordnance explosives and incendiary materials. This includes work such as
screening blending dying mixing and pressing of sensitive ardnance explosives and pyrotechnic compositions such as lead azide
black powder and photoflash powder. All dry-house activities invalving propellants or explosives. Demilitarization modification
renavation demalition and maintenance operations an sensitive ordnance explosives and incendiary materials, &ll operations
involving re-grading and cleaning of artillery ranges.A 4 parcent differential is applicable to employees employed in a position
that represents a low degree of hazard when working with ar in clase proximity to ordnance [or employees possibly adjacent to}
explosives and incendiary matenals which involves potential injury such as laceration of hands face or arms of the employee
engaged in the operation irritation of the skin minor burns and the like; minimal damage to immediate or adjacent work area or
equipment being used. All operations involving unloading storage and hauling of ordnance explosive and incendiary ordnance
material other than small arms ammunition. These differentials are only applicable to work that has been specifically designated
by the agency for ordnance explosives and incendiary material differential pay.** UNIFORM ALLOWANCE **If employees are
required to wear uniforms in tha performance of this contract {either by the terms of the Government contract by the employer
by the state or local law etc.} the cost of furnishing such uniforms and maintaining {by laundering or dry cleaning) such uniforms
is an expense that may not be borne by an employee where such cost reduces the hourly raie below that required by the wage
determination. The Department of Labor will accept payment in accordance with the following standards as compliance:The
contractor or subcontractor is required to furnish all employees with an adeguate number of uniforms without cost or to
reimburse employees for the actual cost of the uniforms. In addition where uniform cleaning and maintenance is made the
responsibility of the employee all cantractors and subcontractors subject to this wage daterminatian shall {in the absence of a
bona fide collective bargaining agreement providing for a different amount or the furnishing of contrary affirmative proof as to
the actual cost) reimburse all employees for such cleaning and maintenance at a rate of $3.35 per week (or 5.67 cents per day).
However in those instances where the uniforms furnished are made of "“wash and wear™" materials may be routinely washed
and dried with other personal garments and do not require any special treatment such as dry cleaning daily washing or
commearcial laundering in order to meet the cleanliness or appearance standards set by the terms of the Government contract
by the contractor by law or by the nature of the work there is no requirement that employees be reimbursed for uniform
maintenance costs.* * SERVICE CONTRACT ACT DIRECYORY OF OCCUPATIONS **The duties of employees under job titles listed
are thase described in the ""Service Contract Act Directory of Occupations™ Fifth Edition [Revision 1} dated September 2015
unless otherwise indicated. ** REQUEST FOR ALUTHORIZATION OF ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE RATE Standard Form
1444 {5F-1444) **Conformance Process: The contracting officer shall require that any class of service employee which is not listed
herein and which is to be employed under the contract {i.e. the work to be performed is not performed by any classification listed
inthe wape determination) be classified by the contractar so as ta provide a reasonable relationship {i.e. appropriate level of skill
comparison) between such unlisted classifications and the classifications listed in the wage determination {See 29 CFR
4.6{b)(2)(1)). Such conforming procedures shall be initiated by the contractor prior to the performance of contract work by such
unlisted class{es) of employees {See 29 CFR 4.6{b){2)ii}). The Wage and Hour Division shall make a final determination of
conformed classification wage rate and/for fringe benefits which shall be paid to all employees performing in the classification
from the first day of work on which contract work is performed by them in the classification. Failure to pay such unlisted
employees the compensation agreed upon by the interasted parties and/or fully determined by the Wage and Hous Division
retroactive to the date such class of employees commenced contract work shall be a violation of the Act and this contract. {5ee
29 CFR 4.6{b}{2}{v)). When multiple wage determinations are inciuded in a contract a separate 5F-1444 should be prepared for
each wage determination to which a class{es) is to be conformed.

The process for preparing a conformance request is as follows: 1} When preparing the bid the contractor identifias the need for
a conformed occupation{s) and computes a proposed rate{s). 2} After contract award the contractor prepares a written report
listing in order the proposad classification title(s} a Federal grade equivalency (FGE) for each proposed classification(s) job
description{s} and rationale for proposed wage rate(s} including information regarding the agreement or disagreement of the
authorized representative of the employees involved or where there is no authorized representative the employees themselves.
This report should be submitted to the contracting officer no later than 30 days after such unlisted class{es} of employees
performs any contract wark. 3] The contracting officer raviews the proposed action and promptly submits a report of the action
together with the agency's recormmendations and pertinent information including the position of the contractar and the
employees to the LS. Department of Labor Wage and Hour Division for review [See 22 CFR 4.6(bj{2}{ii}). 4) Within 30 days of
receipt the Wage and Hour Division approves modifies or disapproves the action via transmittal to the agency contracting officer

Fage 20
IFB-PAG-015-22



or notifies the contracting officer that additional time will be required to process the request. 5) The contracting officer transmits
the Wage and Hour Division's decision to the contractor. 6) Each affected employee shall be furnished by the contractor with a
written copy of such determination or it shall be posted as a part of the wage detenmination {See 29 CFR 4.6(b){2){iii}). Information
required by the Regulations must be submitted on SF-1444 or bond paper. When preparing a conformance request the ““Service
Contract Act Directory of Qccupations™ should be used to compare job definitions to ensure that duties requestad are not
performed by a classification already listed in the wage determination. Remember it is not the job title but the required tasks
that determine whather a class is included in an astablished wage determination. Conformances may not be used to artificially
split combine or subdivide classifications listed in the wage determination [See 29 CFR 4.152{(c){1))."
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AFEIDAVIT re CONTINGENT FEES
CITY OF )
) ss.

ISLAND OF GUAM )

1, [state name of affiant signing below], being first sworn,
deposes and says that:

1.  The name of the offering company or individual is [state name of company]:

2. As a part of the offering company’s bid or proposal, to the best of my
knowledge, the offering company has not retained any persen or agency on a
percentage, commission, or  other contingent arrangement to secure this
contract. This statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 § 11108(f)

3. As a part of the offering company’s bid or proposal, to the best of my
knowledge, the offering company has not retained a person to solicit or secure
a contract with the government of Guam upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee,
except for retention of bona fide employees or bona fide  established
commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business. This
statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 § 11108(f).

4, I make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror,
and on behalf of the offeror’ s officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors,
and employees.

Signature of one of the following:
Offeror, if the offeror is an individual:
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation,

Subscribed and swarn to hefore me

this day of , 20

NOTARY PUBLIC
My commission expires

AG Procurement Form 007 (foul. 15, 2010)
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GOVERNMENT OF GUAM

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REALED BID SOLICITATION AND AWARD

Only those Boxes checked below are applicable to this bid.

[X] 1. AUTHORITY: This solicitation is issued subject to all the provision of the Guam Procurement Act (SGCA,

[X] 2.

[X] 3.

[X] 4.

[]s.

(X] 6.

[X] 7.

[X] 8.

[X]9.

[X] 10.

[X] 11.

Chapter 5) and the Guam Procurement Regulations (copies of both are available at the Office of the
Complier of laws, Department of Law, copies available for inspection at THE PORT AUTHORITY OF
GUAM). It requires all parties involved in the Preparation, negotiation, performance, or administration
of contracts to act in good faith.

GENERAL INTENTION: Unless otherwise specified, it is the declared and acknowledged intention and
meaning of these General Terms and conditions for the bidder to provide the Government of Guam
{Government) with specified services or with materials, supplies or equipment completely assembled
and ready for use.

TAXES: Bidders are cautioned that they are subject to Guam Income Taxes as well as all other taxes
on Guam Transactions. Specific information on taxes may be obtained from the Director of Revenue
and Taxation.

LICENSING: Bidders are cautioned that the Government will not consider for award any offer
submitted by a bidder who has not complied with the Guam Licensing Law, Specific information on
licenses may be cbtained from the Director of Revenue and Taxation.

LOCAL PROCUREMENT PREFERENCE: All procurement of supplies and services where passible, will
be made frem among businesses licensed to do business on Guam in accordance with section 5008 of
the Guam Procurement Act (SGCA, Chapter 5) and Section 1-104 of the Guam Procurement
Regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS: Bidders shali
comply with all specifications and other requirements of the Solicitation.

“ALL OR NONE" BIDS: NOTE: By checking this item, the Government is requesting all af the bid items
to be bided or none atall.

The G il i itemized basi

INDEPENDENT PRICE DETERMINATION: The bidder, upon signing the Invitation for Bid, certifies
that the prices in his bid were derived at without collusion, and acknowledge that collusion and anti-
competitive practices are prohibited by law. Violations will be subject to the provision of Section 5651
of that of the Guam Procurement Act. Other existing civil, criminal or administrative remedies are not
impaired and may be in addition to the remedies in Section 5651 of the Government code.

BIDDER'S PRICE: The Government will consider not more than two (2} {Basic and Alternate} item
prices and the bidder shall explain fully each price if supplies, materials, equipment, and /or specified
services offered comply with specifications and the products origin. Where basic or alternate bid meets
the minimum required specification, cost and other factors will be considered. Failure to explain this
requirement will result in rejection of the bid.

BID ENVELOPE: Envelope shall be sealed and marked with the bidder’s name, Bid number, time, date
and place of Bid Opening.

BID GUARANTEE REQUIREMENT: Bidder is required to submit a Bid Guarantee Bond or standby
irrevocable Letter of Credit or Certified Checl or Cashier's Check in the same bid envelope to be held
by the Government pending award. The Bid Guarantee Bond, Letter of Credit, Certified Check or
Cashier's Check must be issued by any local surety or banking institution licensed to do business on
Guam and made payable to the Treasure of Guam in the amount of fifteen percent (15%]) of his highest
total bid offer, The Bid Bond must be submitted on Government Standard Form BB-1 {copy enclosad).
Personal Checks will not be acceptad as Bid Guarantee. Ifa successful Bidder (contractor) withdraws
from the bid or fails to enter into contract within the prescribed time, such Bid guarantee will be
forfeited to the Government of Guam. Bids will be disqualified if not accompanied by Bid Bond, Letter
of Credit, Certified Check or Cashier’s check. Bidder must include in his/her bid, valid copies ofa Power
of Attorney from the Surety and a Certificate of Authority from the Government of Guam to show proof
that the surety company named on the bond instrument is authorized by the Government of Guam and
gualified to do business on Guam. For detailed information on bonding matters, contact the
Department of Revenue and Taxation. Failure to submit a valid Power of Attorney and Certificate of
Authority on the surety is cause for rejection of bid. Pursuant to 5 GCA § 5212, all competitive
sealed bidding for the procurement of supplies or services exceeding $25,000.00 a 15% Bid
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Security of the total bid price must accompany the bid package. The bid bond, Letter of Credit,
Certified Check or Cashier’s Check will serve as Bid Security for this procurement.

[¥] 12. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE: Bidders who are awarded a contract under this solicitation, guarantee

[X]13.

[X] 14.

[X] 15.

[X] 16.

[X] 17.

[X]18.

that goods will be delivered or required services perfarmed within the time specified. Failure to
perform the contract in a satisfactory manner may be cause for suspension or debarment from doing
business with the Government of Guam. In addition, the Government will hold the Vendor liable and
will enforce the reguirements as set forth in Section 40 of these General Terms and Conditions,

SURETY BONDS: Bid and Bid Bonds coverage must be signed or countersigned in Guam by a foreign
or alien surety’s resident general agent. The surety must be an Insurance Company, authorized by the
government of Guam and qualified to do business in Guam. Bids will be disqualified if the Surety
Company does not have a valid Certificate of Authorjty from the Government of Guam to conduct
business in Guam.

COMPETENCY OF BIDDERS: Bids will be considerad only from such bidders who, in the opinion of
the Government, can show evidence of their ability, experience, equipment, and facilities to render
satisfactory service.

DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBILITY OF BIDDERS: The GENERAL MANAGER reserves the right
for securing from bidder’s infermation to determine whether or not they are responsible and to inspect
plant site, place of business; and supplies and services as necessary to determine their responsibility
in accordance with Section 15 of these General Terms and Conditions. (2 GAR, Div. 4 § 3116)

STANDARD FOR DETERMINATION OF LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER:
[n determining the lowest responsible offer, the GENERAL MANAGER shall be guided by the following:
a) Price of items offered.
b) The ability, capacity, and skill of the Bidder to perform.
c) Whether the Bidder can perform promptly or within the specified time.
d] The quality of performance of the Bidder with regards to awards previously made to him.
e) The previous and existing compliance by the Bidder with laws and regulations relative to
procurement.
f) The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of the Bidder to perform.
g) The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance and services for the subject of the
award,
h} The compliance with all of the conditions to the Solicitation.

TIE BIDS: If the bids are for the same unit price or total amount in the whole or in part, the GENERAL
MANAGER will determine award based an 2 GAR, Div. 4, § 3109(0o) (2) or to reject all such bids.

BRAND NAMES: Any reference in the Solicitation to manufacturer’s Brand Names and number is due
to lack of a satisfactory specification of commodity description. Such preference is intended to he
descriptive, but not restrictive and for the sole purpose of indicating prospective bidders a description
of the article or services that will be satisfactory. Bids on comparable items will be considered
provided the bidder clearly states in his bid the exact articles he is offering and how it differs from the
original specification.

[ 119. DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Descriptive literature(s) as specified in this solicitation must be furnished

[ ]20.

[ ]21.

(X] 22.

as a part of the bid and must be received at the date and time set for opening Bids. The literature
furnished must clearly identify the item{s) in the Bid, The descriptive literature is required to establish,
for the purpose of evaluation and award, details of the product(s] the bidder proposes to furnish
including design, materials, components, performance characteristics, methods of manufacture,
construction, assembly or other characteristics which are considered appropriate. Rejection of the Bid
will be required if the descriptive literature(s) do not show that the product(s} offered conform(s) to
the specifications and other requirements of this solicitation. Failure to furnish the descriptive
literature(s) by the time specified in the Solicitation will require rejection of the bid.

SAMPLES: Sample(s) of item(s) as specified in this solicitation must be furnished as a part of the bid
and must be received at the date and time set for epening Bids. The sample(s) should represent exactly
what the bidder proposes to furnish and will be used to determine if the item(s) offered complies with
the sperifications. Rejection of the Bid will be required if the sample(s) do not show that the product(s)
offered conform(s) to the specifications and other requirements of this solicitation. Failure to furnish
the sample(s) by the time specified in the Solicitation will require rejection of the Bid.

LABORATORY TEST: Successful bidder is required to accompany delivery of his goods with a
Laboratory Test Report indicating that the product he is furnishing the Government meets with the
specifications. This report is on the bidder’s account and must be from a certified Testing Association.

AWARD, CANCELLATION, & REJECTION: Award shall be made to the lowest responsible and
responsive bidder, whose bid is determined to be the most advantageous to the Government, taking
into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in this solicitation. No other factors or criteria shall
be used in the evaluation. The rightis reserved as the interest of the Government may require to waive
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[ ]23.

[X] 24.

[ ]25.

[ ]26.

[X] 27.

[]28.

[ 129

[ ]30.

[X] 31.

any minor irregularity in bid received. The GENERAL MANAGER shall have the authority to award,
cancel, or reject bids, in whole or in part for any one or more items if he determines it is in the public
interest. Award issued to the lowest responsible bidder within the specified time for acceptance as
indicated in the solicitation, results in a bidding contract without further action hy either party. Incase
of an error in the extension of prices, unit price will govern. It is the policy of the Government to award
contracts to qualified local bidders. The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the
quantity of the items for award and make additional awards for the same type items and the vendor
agrees to such modifications and additional awards based on the bid prices for a period of thirty (30)
days after original award. No award shall be made under this solicitation which shall require advance
payment or irrevocable letter of credit from the government (2 GAR, Div.4 §1103).

MARKING: Each outside container shall be marked with the Purchase Order number, item number,
brief item description and quantity. Letter marking shall not be less than 3/4" in height.

SCHEDULE FOR DELIVERY: Successful bidder shall notify the PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM,
Telephone No. (671) 477-5931 at least twenty-four (24) houwrs before delivery of any item under this
solicitation.

BILL OF SALE: Successful supplier shall render Bills of Sale for each item delivered under this contract.
Failure to comply with this requirement will result in rejection of delivery. The Bill of Sale must
accompany the items delivered but will not be considered as an invoice for payment. Supplier shall
bill the Government in accordance with billing instructions as indicated on the Purchase Order.

MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATE: Successful bidder is required, upon delivery of any item under
this contract, to furnish a certificate from the manufacturer indication that the goods meet the
specifications. Failure to comply with this request will result in rejection of delivery payment. Supplier
shall bill the Government in accordance with billing instructions as indicated on the Purchase Order.

INSPECTION: All supplies, materials, equipment, or services delivered under this contract shall he
subject to the inspection and for test conducted by the Government at destination. If in any case the
supplies, materials, equipment, or services are found to be defective in material, workmanship,
performance, or otherwise do not conform with the specifications, the Government shall have the right
to reject the items or require that they be corrected. The number of days required for correction will
be determined by the Government.

MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS: The Government will only consider Bids on mator
vehicles which comply with the requirements of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act of
1966 (Public Law 89-563) and Clean Air Act as amended {Public Law 88-206), that are applicable to
Guam. Bidders shall state if the equipment offered comply with these aforementioned Federal Laws.

SAFETY INSPECTION: All motor vehicles delivered under this contract must pass the Government of
Guam Vehicle Inspection before delivery at destination,

GUARANTEE:

a) Guarantee of Vehicle Type of Equipment:

The successful bidder shall guarantee vehicular type of equipment offered against defective parts,
workmanship, and performance, for a period of not less than one (1} year after date of receipt of
equipment. Bidder shall also provide service to the equipment for at least one (1) year. Service to be
provided shall include, but will not be limited to tune ups (change of spark plugs, contact points and
condensers) and lubrication {change of engine and transmission oil). All parts and labor shall be at the
expense of the bidder. All parts found defective and not caused by misuse, negligence or accident
within the guarantee period shall be repaired, replaced, or adjusted within six (6) working days after
notice from the Government and without cost to the Government. Vehicular type of equipment as used
in this context shall include equipment used for transportation as differentiated from tractors,
backhoes, etc.

b) Guaraatee of Other Type of Equipment:

The successful bidder shall guarantee all other types of equipment offered, except those mentioned in
30a, above, against defective parts, workmanship, and performance for a period of not less than three
(3) months after date of receipt of equipment. Bidder shall also provide service to the equipment for
at least three (3) months. All parts found defective within that period shall be repaired or replaced by
the Contractor without cost to the Government. Repairs, adjustments or replacements of defective
parts shall be completed by the contractor within six (6) working days after notice from the
Government,

(c) Compliance with this Section is a condition of this Bid.

REPRESENTATION REGARDING ETHICS IN PUBLIC PROCUREMENT: The bidder or contractor
represents that it has not knowingly influenced and promises that it will not knowingly influence a
Government employee to breach any of the ethical standards and represents that it has not violated, is
not violating, and promises that it will not violate the prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks set
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[X]132.

[X] 33.

[X] 34.

[135.

[X] 36.

[X] 37.

[X] 38.

forth on Chapter 11 (Ethics in Public Contracting) of the Guam Procurement Act and in Chapter 11 of
the Guam Procurement Regulations.

REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES: The contractor represents that it has not
retained a person to solicit or secure a Government contract upon an agreement or understanding for
a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except for retention of bona fide employees
or bona fide established commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business (GPR Section
11-207).

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY: Contractors shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant of employment because of race, coler, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will
take affirmative action to ensure that employees are treated equally during employment without
regards to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Bidders awarded a contract under this Solicitation shall comply with the
applicable standard, provisions, and stipulations of all pertinent Federal and/or local laws, rules, and
regulations relative to the performance of this contract and the furnishing of goods.

CHANGE ORDER: Any order issued relative to awards made under this solicitation will be subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 6-101-03.1 of the Guam Procurement Regulations.

STOP WORK ORDER: Any stop work order issued relative to awards made under this solicitation will
be subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Section 6-101-04.1 of the Guam Procurement
Regulations.

CANCELLATION OF INVITATION FOR BIDS OR REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS: Any Invitation for Bid
may be cancelled, or any or all bids or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part as may be specified
in the solicitation, when it is in the best interests of the Territory in accordance with regulations
promulgated by the Policy Office. The reasons therefor shall be made part of the contract file.

TIME FOR COMPLETION: Itis hereby understood and mutually agreed by and between the contractor
and the Government that the time for delivery to final destination or the timely performance of certain
services is an essential condition of this contract. If the contractor refuses or fails to perform any of
the provisions of this contract within the time specified in the Purchase Order (from the date Purchase
Order is acknowledged by vendor), then the contractor is in default. Defaults will be treated subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of 2 GAR, Div. 4 § 6101(8)

[X] 39. JUSTIFICATION OF DELAY: Bidders who are awarded contracts under this Solicitation, guarantee that

[X] 40.

[X] 41.

the goods will be delivered to their destination or required services rendered within the time specified.
If the bidder is not able to meet the specified delivery date, he is required to notify the GENERAL
MANAGER of such delay. Notification shall be in writing and shall be receive by the GENERAL
MANAGER at least twenty-four (24) hours before the specified delivery date. Notification of delay shall
include an explanation of the causes and reasons for the delay including statement(s) from supplier or
shipping company causing the delay. The Government reserves the right to reject delay justification
if, in the opinion of the GENERAL MANAGER, such justification is not adequate.

SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN OWNED BUSINESS PREFERENCE: Bidding is subject to the policy in
favor of Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business as defined in 5 GCA sections 5011 and 5012.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: When the contractoris given notice of delay or nonperformance as specified
in Paragraph 1 (Default) of the Termination for Default Clause of this contract and fails to cure in the
time specified, the contractor shall be liable for damages for delay in the amount of one-fourth of one
percent (1%) of outstanding order per calendar day from date set for cure until either the territory
reasonable obtains similar supplies or services if the contractor is terminated for default, or until the
contractor provides the supplies or services if the contractor is not terminated for default. To the
extent that the contractor's delay or nonperformance is excused under Paragraph 40 {Excuse for
Nonperformance or Delayed Performance) of the Termination for Default Clause of this contract,
liquidated damages shall not be due the territory. The contractor remains liable for damages caused
other than by delay. 2 GAR, Div. 4 §6101(d).

[X] 42.PHYSICAL LIABILITY: If it becomes necessary for the Vendor, either as principal, agent or employee,

to enter upon the premises or property of the Government of Guam in order to construct, erect,
inspect, make delivery or remove property hereunder, the Vendor hereby covenants and agrees to
take, use, provide and make all proper, necessary and sufficient precautions, safeguards and
protections against the occurrence of any accidents, injuries or damages to any person or property
during the progress of the work herein covered, and to be responsible for, and to indemnify and save
harmless the Government of Guam from the payment of all sums of money by reason of all or any such
accidents, injuries or damages that may occur upon or about such work, and fines, penalties and loss
Incurred for or by reasons of the violations of any territorial ordinance, regulations, or the laws of
Guam or the United States, while the work is in progress. Contractor will carry insurance to indemnify
the Government of Guam against any claim for Joss, damage or injury to property or persons arising
out of the performance of the Contractor or his employees and agents of the services covered by the
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[X] 44.

[ 145.

[X]46.

contract and the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by the contractor or his employees or
agents, and shall provide certificates of such insurance to the Government of Guam when required.

INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIRED:

The amount of insurance required shall be determined by the Port’s General Manager depending upon
the type of activity conducted, or to be conducted by the owners or operators of vehicles entering the
Port's farilities other service providers accessing on foot,

A, Commercial General Liability including Broad Form Property Damage and Contracinal
Liability $1,000,000.00 combined single limit of liability

B. Worker’s Compensation - Statutory

C. Automobile Liability - $1,000,000.00 combined single limit of liability

Insurance Company: The insurance coverage(s) must be issued by those insurance companies who are
licensed to do business on Guam, as determined by the Insurance Commissioner of the Department of
Revenue and Taxation.

Additional Insurance Provision: All Commercial insurance policies possessed by owners or operators
of vehicles entering or using the Port’s facilities and/or grounds must name the Port as an additional
Insured in their policies and specify that the Port shall be given at least thirty {30 days’ prior written
notice of any cancellation, material change or reduction in coverage.

Proof of Insurance: An Insurance Certificate must be issued listing all the vehicles, equipment, trucks
covered under the insurance policy and filed with the Port Police Division. The insurance should
include;

Name of the Insured {(The Port must be shown as an Additional Insured on all Commercial insurance
policies):

Policy Number

» Effective Date of Policy

®  Limits of Insurance

» Description of Coverage Provided; and

e Name of Issuing Company

A certified copy of the Insurance Certificate must be carried in each vehicle, equipment and for truck
entering the Port facilities. This proof of insurance must be provided to the Port Police Division on an
annual basis at least ten {10) days before the insurance policy expires.

Notice of Loss: In the event a Port tenant or user is involved in an accident within the Port’s facilities
or while on Routes 11A or 11B (Cabras Highway) and results in bodily injury or property damage, the
Port Police Division must be immediately notified.

Workers” Compensation: All business entitles entering or using the Port's facilities must also possess
Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage as prescribed by Guam laws and copies of such Certificate
of Insurance are to be filed with the Port Police Division. Each certification shall sperify that the Port
shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation, material change or
reduction in coverage.

Interchange Agreement: In lien of fulfilling the maximum the maximum insurance requirements listed
herein, the Port user must provide to the Porta current Interchange Agreement. The primary company
must have fulfilled the maximum insurance requirements listed above. The Interchange Agreement
must specifically state and name the Port user as additional insured and the duration of coverage, The
Port must be notified thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation, materials change or
reduction in coverage.

Contract will be cancelled if funds not appropriated or insufficient, and that government will timely
inform contracter. 2 GAR, Div.4 §3121{e) (1) (C) and 2 GAR, Div.4 § 3121{e)(1)(D).

If cancelled, contractor will be reimbursed unamortized reasonably incurred non-recurring costs.
2 GAR, Div.4 § 3121(e) (1) (G).

CONTACT FOR CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION: If your firm receives a contract as a result of this
Solicitation, please designate a persen whom we may contact for prompt administration.

Name: Title:
Address: Telephone:
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1

2.

3.

4,

5.

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
SEALED BID SOLICITATON INSTRUCTIONS

BID FORMS: Each bidder shall be provided with one (1} sets of Solicitation forms. Additional
copies may be provided upon request. Bidders requesting additional copies of said forms will be
charged per page in accordance with 5 GCA § 10203 of the Government Code of Guam. All
payments for this purpose shall be by cash, certified check or money order and shall be made
payable to the PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM (EQ 86-24).

EREPARATIONS OF BIDS:

2.0 Bidders are required to examine the drawings, specifications, schedule, and all
instructions. Failure to do so will be at bidder's risk.

2.1 Each bidder shall furnish the information required by the Solicitation. The bidder shall
sign the Solicitation and print or type his name on the Schedule. Erasures or other changes
must be initialed by the person signing the bid. Bids signed by an agent are to be
accompanied by evidence of this authority unless such evidence has been previously
furnished to the issuing office.

2.2 Unit price for each unit offered shall be shown and such price shall include packing unless
otherwise specified. A total shall be entered in the amount celumn of the Schedule for each
item offered. In case of discrepancies between a unit price and the extended price, the unit
price will be presumed to be correct.

23 Bids for supplies or services other than those specified will not be considered. Time, if
stated as a number of days, means calendar days and will include Saturdays, Sundays, and
holidays beginning the day after the issuance of a Notice to Proceed. Time stated ending
on a Saturday, Sunday or Government of Guam legal holiday will end at the close of the
next business day.

EXPLANATION TO BIDDERS: Any explanation desired by a bidder regarding the meaning or
interpretation of the Solicitation, drawings, specifications, etc., must be submitted in writing and
with sufficient time allowed for a written reply to reach all bidders before the submission of their
bids. Oral explanations or instructions given before the award of the contract will not be binding.
Any information given to a prospective bidder concerning a Solicitation will be furnished to all
prospective bidders in writing as an amendment to the Solicitation if such information would be
prejudicial to informed bidders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENTS TO SOLICITATIONS: Receipt of an amendment to a

Solicitation by a bidder must be acknowledged by signing an acknowledgement of receipt of the
amendment. Such acknowledgement must be received prior to the hour and date specified for
receipt of bids.

SUBMISSION OF BIDS:

a) Bids and modifications thereof shall be enclosed in sealed envelopes and addressed to the
office specified in the Solicitation. The bidder shall show the hour and date specified in
the Solicitation for receipt, the Solicitation number, and the name and address of the
bidder on the face of the envelope.

b) Telegraphic bids will not be considered unless authorized by the Solicitation. However,
bids may be modified or withdrawn by written or telegraphic notice, provided such notice
is received prior to the hour and date specified for receipt (see paragraph 6 of these
instructions).

¢) Samples of items, when required, must be submitted within the time specified, unless
otherwise specified by the Government, at no expense to the Government. If not
destroyed by testing, samples will be returned at bidder’s request and expense, uniess
otherwise specified by the Solicitation.

d) Samples or descriptive literature should not be submitted unless it is required on this
solicitation. Regardless of any attempt by a bidder to condition the bid, unsolicited
samples or descriptive literature will not be examined or tested at the bidder’s risk, and
will not be deemed to vary any of the provisions of this Solicitation.

6. FAILURE TO SUBMIT BID: If no bid is to be submitted, do not return the solicitation unless

otherwise specified. A letter or postcard shall be sent to the issuing office advising whether future
Solicitations for the type of supplies or services covered by this Solicitation are desired.
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7.

B.

Q.

LATE BID, LATE WITHDRAWALS, AND LATE MODIFICATIONS:

a) Definition: Any bid received after the time and date set for receipt of bids is late. Any
withdrawal or modification of a bid received after the time and date set for opening of
bids at the place designated for opening is late (Guam Procurement Regulations 2 GAR,
Div.4 §3109(k)).

b) Treatment: No late bid, late modification, or late withdrawal will be considered unless
received before contract award, and the bid, modification, or withdrawal would have
been timely but for the action or inaction of territorial personnel directly serving the
procurement activity.

DISCQUNTS:

a) Notwithstanding the fact that prompt payment discounts may be offered, such offer will
not be considered in evaluating bids for award unless otherwise specified in the
Solicitation. However, offered discounts will be taken if payment is made within the
discount period, even though not considered in the evaluation of bids.

b) Inconnection with any discount offered, time will be computed from date of delivery and
acceptance of the supplies to the destination as indicated in the purchase order or
contract. Payment is deemed to be made for the purpose of earning the discount on the
date of mailing of the Government check.

GOVERNMENT FURNISHED PROPERTY: No material, labor or facilities will be furnished by the
Government unless otherwise provided for in the Solicitation.

10, SELLER’ INVOICES: I[nvoices shall be prepared and submitted in quadruplicate (one copy shall

11.

12,

be marked *ortginal”} unless otherwise specified. Invoices shall be “certified true and correct”
and shall contain the following information: Contract and order number (if any), item numbers,
description of supplies or services, sizes, quantities, unit prices, and extended total. Bill of lading
number and weight of shipment will be shown for shipments made on Government bills of lading.

RECEIPT. OPENING AND RECORDING QOF BIDS:; Bids and modifications shall be publicly opened

in the presence of one or more witnesses, at the time, date, and place designated in the Invitation
for Bids. The name of each bidder, the bid price, and such other information as is deemed
appropriate by the Procurement Officer, shall be read aloud and recorded, or otherwise made
available. The names and addresses of required witnesses shall be recorded at the apening. The
opened bids shall be available for public inspection except to the extent the bidder designates
trade secrets or other proprietary data to be confidential as set forth in accordance with Section
12, below. Material so designated shall accompany the bid and shall be readily separable from the
bid in order to facilitate public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the bid. Prices, makes
and models or catalogue numbers of the items offered, deliveries, and terms of payment shall be
publicly available at the time of bid opening regardless of any designation to the contrary (Guam
Procurement Regulations 2 GAR, Div.4 §3109(k)).

CONFIDENTIAL DATA: If a bidder considers any information submitted in its bid to be
confidential, the bidder must identify in writing to the Government those portions which it
considers confidential, and must request in writing that those portions be kept confidential. Only
trade secrets and proprietary data will be considered confidential. 1f there is a request for
confidentiality, the Government will render a decision on the request as soon as practicable after
bids are opened. The Government will advise any bidder requesting confidentiality, of the
Government's decision in writing. [fthe Government does not agree with a bidder’s request, then
the Government will inform the bidder that it may lodge a protest regarding any part of the
Government's decision by following the procedure for protests outlined in Chapter 9 of the Guam
Procurement Regulations.

13. PROHIB : With respect to this procurement and

any other contract that bidder may have or wish to enter into with the Government, the bidder
represents that he/she has not violated, is not violating, and promises that he will not violate the
prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks set forth in the Guam Procurement Regulations.

14, STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: The ability capacity and skill of the Bidders to perform;

Whether the bidder can perform promptly or within the specified time; The quality of
performance of the Bidder with regards to awards previously made to him; The sufficiency of the
financial resources and ability of the bidders to perform; and the compliance with all of the
conditions to the solicitation.
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15. WAGE AND BENEFIT COMPLIANCE-CONTRACTORS PROVIDING SERVICES

a)

b)

d)

g)

h)

Contractor with regard to all person its emiploys whose purpase in whole or in part is the
direct delivery of services contracted for with the Government of Guam in this
procurement, shall pay such employees in accordance with the Wage Determination for
Guam and the Northern Marianas [slands issued and promulgated by the U.S. Department
of Labor for such labor as is employed in the direct deliverance of deliverables to the
government of Guam. 5 GCA § 5801 Contractor shall be responsible for flowing down this
obligation to its subcontractors.,

The Wage Determination most recently issued by the U.S. Department of Labor at the time
this Agreement was awarded to Contractor shall be used to determine wages and benefits
which shall be paid to employees pursuant to this clause, 5 GCA § 5801

Should any contract contain a renewal clause, then at the time of renewal adjustments
there shall be stipulations contained in that contract for applying the Wage Determination,
50 that the Wage Determination promulgated by the U.S Department of Labor on a date
most recent to the renewal date shall apply. 5 GCA § 5801

In addition to the Wage Determination detailed above, health and similar benefits for
employees having a minimum value as detailed in the Wage Determination issued and
promulgated by the U.S, Department of Labor shall apply. Contractor shall pay a minimum
of ten (10} paid holidays per annum per employee. 5 GCA § 5802

Any violation of Contractor or its subcontractor’s cbligations of this section shall be
investigated by the Guam Department of Labor and may include a monetary penalty
assessment by the Guam Department of Labor of no less than Une Hundred Dollars
($100.00) per day, and no more than One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) per day, until such
time as a violation has been corrected, as well as the payment of all back wages and
benefits due. 5 GCA § 5803

In addition to any and all other breach of cantract actions the Government of Guam may
have under this procurement, in the event there is a violation in the process set forth in
subsection {e) above, Contractor may be placed on probationary status by the GENERAL
MANAGER of the General Service Agency, or its successor, for a period of one (1) year.

During the probationary status, a Contractor shall not be awarded any contract by any
instrumentality of the Government of Guam. A Contractor who has been placed on
probationary status, or has been assessed a monetary penalty pursuant to 5 G.C.A. Article
13 Title 5 may appeal such penalty or probationary status to the Superior Court of Guam.
5 GCA § 5804

Contractor along with all proposed Offerors and submitter under this procurement were
required to submit a Declaration of Compliance with Wage Determination laws as part of
this procurement with a copy of the most recent Wage Determination for Guam and the
Northern Marianas Islands issued and promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor. 5
GCA §5805

The applicable USDOL Wage Determination Rate Revision (as defined by subsections (b)
and (c]) is to this Agreement. Contractor agrees to provide upon written request by the
Government of Guam written certification of its compliance with its obligations as part of
each invoice, along with the names of any employees, their positions, and detailed wage
and benefits paid in keeping with this section. Additionally, upon request by Government
of Guam the Contractor shall submit source documents as to those individuals provide
direct services in part or whole under this Agreement and its payments to them of such
wages and benefits.

16. ETHICAL STANDARDS: With respect to this procurement and any other contract that the
Contractor may have, or wish to enter into, with any government of Guam agency, the Contractor
represents that it has not knowingly influenced, and promises that it will not knowingly influence,
any government employee to breach any of the ethical standards set forth in the Guam
Procurement Law and in any of the Guam Procurement Regulations.

17. PROHIBTION AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES: The Contractor represents that he has not retained
any person or agency upon an agreement or understanding for a percentage, commission,
brokerage, or other contingent arrangement, except for retention of bona fide employees or bona
fide established commercial selling agencies, to solicit or secure this Agreement or any other
contract with the government of Guam or its agencies.
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18.

19.

CONTRACTOR’'S WARRANTY AS TO EMP FE . Reference 5 GCA 5253
(b}

Contractor warrants that no person providing services on behalf of the Contractor has been
convicted of a sex offense under the provisions of Chapter 25 of Title 9 of GCA or an offense as
defined in Article 2 of Chapter 28, Title 9 GCA, or an offense in another jurisdiction with, at a
minimum, the same elements as such offenses, or who is listed on the Sex Offender Registry.

Contractor warrants that if any person providing services on behalf of Contractor is convicted of
a sex offense under the provisions of Chapter 25 of Title 9 GCA, or an offense as defined in Article
2 of Chapter 28, Title 9 GCA, or an offense in another jurisdiction with, at a minimum, the same
elements as such offenses, or who is listed on the Sex Offender Registry, that such person will be
immediately removed from working at said agency and that the administrator of said agency be
informed of such within twenty-four {(24) hours of such conviction. Any contactor found in
violation of this section, after notice from the Government of Guam, after notice from the
contracting authority of such violation, shall within twenty-four (24) hours, take corrective action
and shall report such action to the contracting authority. Failure to take corrective action with
the stipulated period may result in the temporary suspension of the contract at the discretion of
the Government of Guam.

POLICY IN FAVOR OF SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN OWNED BUSINESSES P.L. 31-115
(September 20, 2011) 5 GCA § 5011 and § 5012 In the procurement of any supply or service,

(except for professional services), if such supply or service is offered by a Service-Disabled
Veteran Owned Business "SDVOB”, as defined in 5 GCA § 5012, that is at least fifty one percent
(51%) owned by service-disabled veteran(s), and if the supply or service is available within the
period that is required for the procurement, and the price for the supply or service does not
exceed one hundred five percent (105%] of the lowest bidder price, a preference shall be given to
that SDVOB by the Government of Guam, and the supply or service shall be purchased from said
SDVOB. This shall be in additian to any other procurement benefit the SDVOB may qualify for
under Guam law. A business concern is a qualified SDVOB if: {a) the business concern is licensed
to do business on Guam; (b) the business concern maintains its headquarters on Guam; (c) the
business concern is at least fifty-one (51%) owned by a service-disabled veteran(s} who served
in the active U.S. military service, was discharged or released under honorable conditions and
whose disability is service-connected as demonstrated by a DD214, and certified by an award
letter from the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs; the DD214 and Disability award letter from
U.5. Department of Veterans Affairs are submitted to the Government of Guam procuring agency
for every service offered; and the service disabled veteran(s) owner(s) of the business concern
has filed individua!l tax returns on Guam for a period of at least three (3) consecutive years
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INSTRUCTIONS

1.

Thisis not an all-or nothing bid. Bidders may offer quotes for any one or all coverages for the five
year term. PAG, at its sole discretion, may elect to accept the lowest overall price for each
insurance required, or select bundle whichever is less costly to the Port,

Bids must be in a sealed single package and delivered to the following address no later than the
date and time set by the Port Authority of Guam

Port Authority of Guam
1026 Cabras Highway
Piti, GU 96925

Bid Package shall include:

d.

e,

Bid response forms for each coverage for which a bid is
being submitted.

Complete specimen policies and required endorsement
for each coverage for which a bid is being submitted,
Information on the claims reporting procedures for each
carrier.

Copy of Broker’s license(s) to transact insurance on
Guam.

Proof of at least $1,000,000 Professional Liability
Insurance.

PAG will only purchase insurance from insurers licensed to transact business on Guam, and with
financial strength ratings of at least A-1X (Excellent) by A.M. Best, AA-[Strong) by Standard and

Poors, or Aa3 [Excellent) by Moody's.
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BID RESPONSE FORM

1.0 PROPERTY INSURANCE
Limit Deductible Annual Premium
%55,000,000.00 $1,000,000
Carrier Carrier's Financial Rating
2.0 LIABILITY INSURANCE
Limit Deductible Annual Premium
$50,000,000 CSL Nil o
Carrier Carrier's Financial Rating
3.0 DIRECTOR'S & OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE
Limit Deductible Annual Premium
$5,000,000 CSL Nil
$2,000,000 EPL
Carrier Carrier’s Financial Rating
4.0 AUTOMORBILE INSURANCE
Limit Deductible Annual Premium
$2,000,000 CSL $1.000
Carrier Carrier’'s Financial Rating
5.0 CRIME INSURANCE
Limit Deductibile Annual Premium
$1,000,000 Nil o ]
Carrier Carrier’s Financial Rating
6.0 BUNDLED COST TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM (1.0-5.0): $
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PLEASE REVIEW ALL
ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

1. Renewal Proposal Form Directars and Officers Insurance and Independent Audit
Report and Financial Statement.

Supplementary Questionnaire far Employee Practice Liability
Crime Insurance Application

Directors and Officers Insurance Application

Port Liability insurance Application

Summary of Declared Values 2022

Property Schedule 2022

Autompobile Listing

. Equipment Listing

10. Construction Activities FY2023

©END!EWwN
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Application Form

PULASE COMMLETE ALL SECTIONS. INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RLIECTED

RENEWAL PROPOSAL FORM FOR
IDMRECTORS & OFFICERS INSURANCE

PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
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Application Form

PLEASE COMPLCTE ALL SECT/UNS. INCUSFLETT APPLICATIONS WALL £ REXCTID

Renewal Proposal Farm For Directors Officers
Liablity and Company Reimbursement Insurance

Proposer Details

1. Nama of Propossr
PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

2. Address of Head OFice

1026 CABRAS HWY., STE. 21
BiTl, GUAM. 86915

N.B. Hereinafler the Propaser and its subsidiaries shell be known es the “Company.”

3. Has the Company changed ilsa pdnclpal business acliviles within  the past
12 mMONEhBT ...ocvrereerreererrernrsssrarsessraressieae OYes KiNo

4,  Limii(s) of Liablity being requested;
5,000,0000

5. (a) Pleasn provide lotal (conmolidated) annual gress assets of the Company from Lhe most racent
year end report:
FY21: $23B,289,834

{b) Please provide iotal (consalidated) annual revenues of the Company from the moat recent year
and report:
FY21: $55,050,328

(c) Please provide the total (eonsolidated) net worth of the Company for the past iwo years:
£Y20: $16.036.240 FY21: $13.803,428

(d) Pleasa provide the total (consalidaled) net Income of the Company for the past two years:
FY20: $592,047 FYai: ($2,232,0820)
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Application Form

PLEASE COMMLTE ALL SICTIONS IMCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS Wit BE REMETED

Llabllity and Company Relmbursement Insurance

. Renawal Proposal Farm For Directors Officars

6. Did the Proposer acquire or creata any new subsidiaries within the past 12 months?

COYes
I *yes,” plazse provide tha following Information for each subsidiary:
i publicly hatd
Country of then exc Type of lfuting
Nameof | formetiomor | PubliclyTrded | otie, (Diract, ADR and
incorporation ¥y axchange/ market | lsvsl, OTC)
par country

Is insurance baing requesled for the directors and officers of sach new subsidiary?
Clves [No

..............................................................................

7. During the last 12 months has any subsidiary been sold or ceased trading?  [JYes [XNo

IF “yes® to this queslion 7 please give detalls.

B.  If any of the below has changed for the Campany during the last 12 months then please provide the
amanded numbers and/or infarmation:

{a) Tatal numbar of shareholders:

(b) Total number of shares issued;

{c) '{:ta! nmbar of shares (parcentage) held by each director and officer of the Company (both direct and
nel

(d) Total number of shares {percentage) held by instilutional investors:
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Application Form

PLEASE COMMETE ALL SICTICUTS. INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WL BE RLECTID

tanawal Proposal Form For Directors Officers
Liabllity and Company Reimbursement Insurance

8) Al ascurity halders, holding a 5% or mare ownership Inlerest in the P ser, or any subslidiary that is
te) publicly traded, giving the l?older‘s name and the pe?centage held: fopa ! =

Holder Entiv Percentage of Ownership

B. (a) Is the Proposer or any subsidiary considering any acquisition, tender offer, merger, buy-out or other
change in equity structure? CYes [dNo

(b) Is the Proposer or any subsldlary aware of whether any other company or entily is considering an
acquisition, lender offer, merger, buy-out or other change in equity slructure of which the Proposer
or any subsidiary would be a largst?............. Oves Na

(€) Has either the Proposer or any of its subsidiaries undargone a new public affaring of s=curities, or a
change in the lsting status of its existing securilles, within the 1ast 12

mMonthE?. oo Cdves [dNo

(d} Is the Proposar or any of 4s subsidiaries inlending elther a new public offering of securities, or a
:'hange‘n the listing status of its exisling securities, within the next 12 montha? O
es  [xNo

if "yes® o any of the abave, pleass provide specific detalls.
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Application Form

PLELST COMPLETE AL SECTRINS  (MCOMPLETT APPLICATHIRS WILL BE REACTID

. Prapasal Form For Diractors Officers
Liability and Company Reimbursement insurance

10. Flease provide a list of all new directors and officers of the Proposer and of esch subsidiary who
became a direcior andfor officer of the Proposer andfor a subald/ary within the past 12 months.

Name Title

Francisco 3. Sanlos Chalman

Docathy P, Harris Vics Chaigman
=Dt Judith Gutherts Secrefary
—Conchita §.N. Taitano Memhar

_— -

Is insurance being sequested for each new director and officer In thelr listed capacity?

............................................................................................ .BYes [ONo
11. {a) Have any Diraclors and / ar Executive Officars of the Company resigned or baen replaced In tha
past 12 months? ............ccvvvvvnerenennn, es [INo
If*Yes,” who, title and why?
_Nathan angjo and T sa Marle Koki - Due lo o

(b) Is the Company considaring a replacement of or addition of Directors and Executive
Officers of the Company within the next 13 months? ............... oYes CINo

IF“Yes,” who, title and why?

12, Did the Company change [ts exiamal auditing firm In the past 12 months....0Yes  [gNo

If *yes,” why, when and to whom?
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Application Form

PLEASE COMPMLETE ALE STCTIONS. INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL 80 RLACTED

. Proposal Form For Directors Officers
Liahllity and Company Reimbursement lnsuranea

13. Does the Campany have any plans to ramove or replace ks extemnal auvdilor In the next 12
MONMIS s iimncnisens i isisiissn e taassarervesssnserersrnrersassassssssssniosne . X Y85 NO

i *Yes,” why and o whom?

14. (a) Have all revenue recognition practlcas of the COmpany baen appruvad by your existing extemal
auitor, without qualification?.... vorsnssnnnens XIYES  [JNo

If "no,” please provida spaciic details,

{b) Have tha Company's extemnal auditors necommended I:hangns tn the revenue recognition ar other
significant accounting practices in the past 12 months?...........C0Yes ENo

(c) Has the Company changed or considered changes to the revenue recognition or other significant
accounting practices in the past 12 montha?........ceu.... w“ Oves [XNo

(d) s the Company considaring changas to the ravanus rscognltion or other significant accounting
praclices?... - nnerssersesesessensees [17€8 [NOD

Il *yea,” to (b, (c) or (d) pleasa provide specific datalls.

15. Old the Company or any of diractars andlor afficers thersaf acquire any interests In any partnerships
or Spada! Furpou Vehicles or Entiiina within the past 12
manths?... OO RPN I ) (-~ S (", -

I{"yes,” pleass provide detalls.
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Application Form

PLEASE CUMPLETE ALL SECTIONS. INCONPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL B RUICTED

Renewzl Proposal Form For Directors Officers

Llabllity and Company Reimbursemant Insurance

18,

17.

18.

Does tha Company anticipate having Io take a signlﬁcanl one time charga to eamings, or restate
aamings, within the next 12 months? .. wemensnsmaennns ] Y85 [N

I “yes,” please provide delalis,

i “yes" to question 16, it (s agraed that the proposed policy shall not provide any coverage
for loss in connection with any claim, Investigation, proceeding or action alleging or arlsing
from such evant, unless an endorsement Is added to the proposed policy specifically
axtending coverage to such arising,

Has the Company mede any significant changes lo its specific written corporale policles with
respect {o direciors’, officers' and employees'’ ability to purchase or sell the Company's slock,
Including the abllity to exercise stock opHons? .............occeovivemreiimericrerans . Oyes [XNo

If "yes,” please provide delails.

The directors or officers of the company, the General Counsel (or equivalent person) of the
company and the risk manager of tha company have na knowledga or Information of any act, error
or omission which coutd reascnably give ise to a clalm. invesﬂgaﬁon or action under the proposed
poiicy, excapt as fotlows: (Atlach complete detalls.).... wenldYes  BdNo
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Application Form

PLEASE COMPLETL ALL STCTIONS. INCONPLETE APFLICATIONS WILL GE REECTED

Renewal Proposil Farm For Direclors Officers
Liability and Company Reimbursement Insurance

Cover for the United States of America

Pleass complete questions 18-25 ¥ Lhe Proposer is requesting any coverage for claims brought in the
United Siales of America or claims made elsewhera arising out of the Company's operations In the Unitad

States of America. NOT APPLICABLE

19, (a) Please provide tha tolal gross assels of lhe Company In North Amerlea, If auch assets have
significanily changed In the last 12 months? NOT APPLICABLE

{b) Please provide the tolal revenues of the Company derived from ils aclivities in North America, i
such revenues have significanily changed in the last 12 months? NOT APPUCABLE

{c} Tatal number of employees In the Unlted States of America and thres US atates with the larpest
number of such employees: NOT APPLICABLE

20. in the fast 12 menths, did the Compan act;ulra any cwnership int 50% or less in any entity
located or Incorporated in the Uniied States of Ametica? ........ ..Ileus o
If “yes"

(3} Please provide in an attachment the name of the er&liglz, type of Indusiry, whether public or private,
and i publicly traded, type of securities (equity or debl) and the name of exchange of market on
which such securiies are lradaed:

{b) Dces the Company have any raprasentation on the Board of Dirsclom, or as an Executive Officer,
or any entity listed In guestion 20(a) above?........ [Yes [No

if “yes" (o 20{b), please provide name of entity, name of individual and position,

21. Has eithar the Proposer or any of its subsidiarles undergone a naw public offaring of securities (equity
or debt) In the United States of America, or 8 change In the listing status of Its existing sacuritiea {equity
or debt) traded or sold in the Uniled Stalas of America, within the last 12 months es [XNo
If “yes® {o the above, please provide speciic details, Including;

« the name of the entity, and country of Incorporation/formation

s LS exchange on which securitias are listed,

» lype of security listing (ADR and Lavel, Diract listing etc.),

» percenlage US securities rapresent to all Company securities traded worldwide.
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Application Form

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SCCTIONS. JNCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE REXCTER

Renewal Proposal Form For Direclors Officers
Liability and Company Reimbursement Insurance

22. Is the Proposar or any of lis subsidiaries Intending either a new public cffering of securities in the United
States of America, or a change In the listing status of ils existing securiies presently traded in the
Linliad Statas of America, within the next 12
months?... - - creeiaeamivssenieeninnenes LJY8S  DANO

If "yes"® to the above, please provide specific detalls.

23.Is the r:ompany requlred lo fellow US. Ganaraly Acuphd Accounting Principles {GAAP)?
AR Ddves [INo

If "Yes® are the cnmpanys financlal  stalements ganerally in accordance with US
GAAP?,., SRRSO |\ (1 J O |\

25, Is the company or any direclor or officsr presentiy the subject of a U.5. Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) enforcement action or a US, Inlemal Revenue Service (IRS) enforcemenl
actlon?.......eeireer frar e e ceinreniees LJYeEs  [No

If “yes,” plaase provide details,

26. |s the SEC or IRS Investigating or mquestlng information from the Company of any of the Company’s
diractors, officers ar employRes?...........ceeeuvevnenins Clves No

If ‘yes,” please provide delails.

27. Does the Cornpany have an internal Audit Committea pursuani to U.S. siatules, rules or regulations?
e nte e eeane Cyes .No

I£*no,” why?

FISCAL YEAR TO AUDIT PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR.

) f*Yes" does the Audit Committes meat more than four bmes a year? ........ OvYes [ONo

(i} if “Yes,” has any member of the audit commitize resigned or baen replaced within the past 12
PROMIBZ. ... ieesiemienses sassenes cae cemsnessenraresser e smnenssnerene ClYes [ONo

If *yes,” who and why?
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Application Form

PLEASE COUPLETE ALL SCCTIONS. INCONPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL B ROICTTO

- . Renewal Proposal Form For Birectors Officers
Liabflity and Company Relmbursement Insurance

Documentation

25, Provide coples of the folfowing for the Company.
{a) Latest annual report. NOT APPLICABLE
(b} Latest audited financials SEE ATTACHMENT 1
(c) Latest intarim financials avallable SEE ATTACHMENT 2
{d} Copy (cartified by organization's Secratary) of the indemnification provisions of the charter and the
byJaws. Also aitach a copy of organization's indamnlfication agreement.
{e) h:mcm management letter along with Propoasr's responses lo any recommendations made

if the Company has any securities (aquity or debt) listed or traded in the United States of America,
then:

(0 Lalest 10K report fited with the Securittes and Exchange Commission (SEC) (or similar slale or
loreign agancy).

(g) Al regisiration slatemanis filed with the SEC (or similar stale or forsign agency) within the last
twalve months,

(h) Coples of financial stalamants certiflad by the CEO and CFO. All proxy statemants and nalices of
annual meeting of stockhaldars within the last 12 months

it is agreed that the Propoasr will file with the Insurer, as soon as it becomes avallahls, a copy of
aach registration statament and annual or interim report which the Propeser or any subsidiary may
from Hme to time file with any local or forsign governmental, reguiatory body or agency that
lgulatn sscurities (Including but not limited to the US Securities and Exchange Commission).

SIGNING THIS PROPOSAL DOES NOT BIND THE PROPOSER TO COMPLETE THIS INSURANCE.

Consent Clause

"l agree and authorize the Company to use and disclose any informalion {collecied or held) with regard to
matters pertaining to this application, to enable the Company, ils associaled individuals/organizations or
independent third parlies, to provide advice o inlonmation covering products or services which the
Company believas may be of interest to me or o communicate wilh me for any purpose. ”
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FLEASE COMPLETE ALL SICTIONS. [NCOMPLITE AFPLICATIONS WEL B REIICTID

Daclaration

| declare on behalf of all insureds, after inquiry, that the statements and pariiculars in this suppiemental
proposal are tue and no matedal facts have bean misstaled or supprassad. | agree that thia proposal
forms, any attachment, any information submitted therewith and any and all other informatlion supplied or
requested, shall form the basis of any Contract of insurance efisclad therson, | further undertake to inform
Inaurers of any material allsration lo any Information, statements, representations or facls presenled in this
proposal form occurring after the date this proposal form is signed and before the inception date of the

proposed palicy,
A material fact Is one which would influence the acceptance or assessment of tha sisk.

All written statements and materlals fumished o the insurer In conjunction with this application are hereby
incorporaled by reference into this applicalion and made a part hereof.

Signing this propoaal doea not bind the proposer to compieta this insurance.

Signed

1A
o laslis?

Tite Gensral Manager

Company PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

Date

AlG
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF
THE GOVERNMENT OF GUAM)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020



1
Deloitie & Touche LLP
e o I e 361 South Marine Carps Drive
L Tamuning, GU 96913-3373
1L1Y

Tel: +1 (671) 536-3884
Fax: +1 (671} 649-4265

www. delofite.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Port Authority of Guam:

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port Authority of Guam (the Authority),
a component unit of the Government of Guam, which comprise the statements of net position as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the refated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibllity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
inctudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,



Deloitte.

Oplnion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Part Authority of Guam as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in
its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the Authority determined that the COVID-19
pandemic may have negatively impact its business, results of operations and net position. Cur opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, the 2020 financial statements have been restated
to correct an error in capitalized interest.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary informotion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 19 as well as the Schedules of Proportional Share of the Net
Pension Liahility on pages 56 through 58, the Schedule of Pension Contributions on page 59, the Schedule
of Changes in the Proportional Share of the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 60, the
Schedule of Proportional Share of the Total OPEB Liability on page 61, and the Schedule of OPEB
Contributions on page 62 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers It to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary infarmation in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited pracedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Financial Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The schedules of details of aperating expenses and the summary of salaries and wages on pages 63 through
67 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The schedules of details of operating expenses and the summary of salaries and wages are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedules of details of operating expenses and the summary of salaries and
wages are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Deloitte.

Other Matters, Continued
Other Financial Information, Continued

The schedule of employees by department on page 68 has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 21, 2022
on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and cther
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/M o Trectie Z2N10

April 21, 2022



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Port Authority of Guam's {PAG, Port, Authority) Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A}
provides an overview of the financial performance and activities for the fiscal years (FY) ended
September 30, 2021, and 2020. The information in this MD&A has been prepared by management and
is integral to the data in the financial statements, which follow this section. It should be considered in
conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes.

ABOUT THE AUTHORITY

The Port Authority of Guam was established as a public corporation and an autonomous agency of the
Government of Guam by Public Law 13-87 in October 1975. Port operates the only commercial seaport
in the Territory of Guam and is the primary seaport in Micronesia. It serves the largest U.5. deep-water
port in the region and currently handles about 1 - 2 million tons of carge a year. Port owns five cargo-
handling piers along with two fuel piers and three marinas. The cost of operations and capital
improvements are funded largely from Port's own revenues.

Port is presided over by five board members appointed by the Governor of Guam with the advice and
consent of the Guam Legislature. The Board of Directors appoints the General Manager and Deputy
General Managers, whao are responsible for the maintenance, operatian, and development of the Port
and the agency's business affairs.

With over 90% of the region's goods and supplies passing through its doorways, Port's impact on the
quality and sustenance of life for residents of the region cannot be overstated. As Guam can produce
only limited amounts of food and products on the island, Port is truly the life link between the region
and the rest of the world.

Port is the main lifeline of consumer goods into the island and recognizes its responsibility to deliver
these goods on time. Port is dedicated to praviding full services to ocean vessels in support of loading
and unloading cargo from Guam and Micronesia. In support of this mission, Port also provides land and
infrastructure to private interests to further develop the maritime industries in Guam. As a public
corporation, Port dedicates all of its profits to upgrading equipment and facilities and the continued
growth of the island's seaport.

Our objective is to modernize Port as a first-class facility in the region, providing cargo-handling services
safely, efficiently, and sustainably. Te achieve this, Port must increase capacity, execute infrastructure
development, expand to meet the community's organic growth and the impending military buildup,
promote economic growth and opportunities for maritime-related industries, and address the needs of
Port users,

FY 2021 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
* Current assets exceeded current liabilities by $67.6 million {M).
» As of FY 2021, current assets amounted ta $75.4M, a $3.0M increase. Current assets increased
largely due to the net $2.6M increase in current cash and cash equivalents and a $648 thousand
(K) increase in accounts receivable.
» Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $79.7M, amounted to $116.9M.
* Asof September 30, 2021, the Net position was $13.8M, a $2.2M decrease from FY 2020. Of this

amount, -$132.5M is unrestricted, $92.6M is a net investment in capital assets, and $53.7M is
considered restricted.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Total liabilities increased by $2.2M (or less than 1%), despite a $3.2M decrease in current
liabilities and a $2.8M decrease in net long-term debt in FY 2021. The main reasons for the overal
rise were the FY 2021 increases in other post-employment benefits {OPEB) liability by 55.1M (or
5.5%) and in net pension liability by $2.6M (or 4.1%).

Operating revenues increased by $432K, from $54.7M in FY 2020 to $55.1M in FY 2021. Despite
the struggles brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic on Port's resources and personnel, the
total containers that Port handled in F¥ 2021 was 1.9% higher than last year. This resuited in
revenue increases of cargo throughput charges by $856K, crane surcharge by $172K, and
wharfage charges by $160K.

Operating expenses increased by $2.6M (or 4.6%) from $55.7M in FY 2020 to $58.3Min FY 2021.
The overall increase in operating expenses is largely due to $5.3M in OPEB expenses and $1.3M
in pension expenses for FY 2021,

Before depreciation (a non-cash expense), net operating revenues minus operating expenses
resulted in a $3.1M operating income for FY 2021.

After including the $6.3M non-cash expense of depreciation, $754K of net non-operating
revenues, and $219K of U.S. Government capital grants, Port concluded FY 2021 with a $2.2M
decrease in net position.

Port's net position at the end of FY 2021 was $13.8M, which is a $2.2M decrease from the FY
2020's restated $16.0M net position. The FY 2020 financial statements were restated to account
for $1.5M of capitalized interest on in-progress capital improvement projects.

In a separate report, the independent financial auditors issued an unmodified {clean) opinion on
Port’s FY 2021 financial statements, and found no material weakness or significant deficiency in
Port's internal control over financial reporting. Additionally, the independent financial auditors
issued a clean opinion on Port’s FY 2021 compliance over major federal programs, and found no
material weakness or significant deficiency in Port’s internal control over major federal programs.
The auditors also concluded that Port qualified as low-risk auditee.
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Overview of Financial Statements

Port's basic financial statements consist of the following: 1} statement of net position, 2) statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 3) statement of cash flows, and the 4) notes to financial
statements. This financial report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements.

The statement of net position is a snapshot presentation of all of Port's assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows, and deferred inflows of resources — with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether Port's financial position
improves or declines,

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position provides insight into how Part's net
position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are recorded as soon as the
transaction occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. As such, the revenues and expenses
reported in this statement include some items for which the corresponding cash receipt or cash payment
will occurin future fiscal periods.

Authority Activities and Highlights
FY 2021 Cargo Operations Results

The main basis for gauging the annual revenue status of Port is through the number of cargos it handles
each year. The main classifications of cargos are container and non-container (breakbulk} cargos.
Container cargos are further broken dawn into local or transshipment categories. Local containers
contain goods destined specifically for Guam's econemy. The majority of exports for local cargos are
empty containers. Transshipment containers are unloaded at Port. After a temporary stage in the yard,
they are transferred to another vessel to be transported to the final port of discharge. These transit
containers typically arrive in Part from the U.S. or Asia. They are then transferred to smaller ports in the
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands {CNMI), the Republic of Palau, the Federated States of
Micronesia (FSM), and the Republic of the Marshall Islands {RMI). Transshipment containers {mastly
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empty} from the Micronesian islands are then typically sent back through Port and outbound to U.S. or
Asia ports. Guam's supplemental handling of transshipment cargo bound for, or exported from, allows
Port to grow revenues beyond those generally allowed by local economic conditions. Transshipment
cargos generate an average of 6% of total annual revenues.

In FY 2021, Port handled about 87 thousand {K) containers, which is a 1.9% increase from FY 2020's
container count of 85K. This overall increase is due mainly to the 2K increase in local containers from
67K in FY 2020 to 69K in FY 2021. The container cargo count in FY 2021 included 69K local containers,
12K stuff transshipment cantainers, and 5K empty transshipment containers.

While the number of local containers handled had increased over the past five fiscal years, Port
experienced a decline in the number of transshipment containers from FY 2018 through FY 2020.
Compared to FY 2020, stuff transshipment containers decreased by 5.4% (or 693), while empty
transshipment containers increased by 2.3% (or 119). in FY 2021, Port handled 101K tons of breakbulk
(non-containerized) cargos, an 11.8% increase from FY 2020's 90K tons.
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Net position is the sum of assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
Port's financial position improves or declines, Refer to the following for a condensed summary of Port's
net position as of September 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019 {in thousands).

Cendensed Statements of Net Position

(In Thousands)
2020
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2021 As restated 2019
Current assets:
Current and other assets $121,368 $ 121,077 5118,906
Capital assets 115,921 118,250 116,869
Total assets 238,290 239,327 235,774
Deferred outflows of resources 48,320 37,571 15,602
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources % 286,610 $ 276,898 $251,376
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET
POSITION
Current liabilities $ 7,758 $ 11,002 $ 10,397
Other non-current liabilities 233,052 227,580 186,830
Total liabilities 240,807 238,581 207,227
Deferred inflows of resources 32,000 22,281 28,705
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 92,602 93,784 90,687
Restricted - expendable 53,693 41,375 39,959
Unrestricted (132,492) (119,123) (115,202}
Total net position 13,803 15,036 15,444
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
Net positicn S 286,610 $ 276,898 $251,376
FY 2021 Net Position

Port's net position is largely made up of $92.6M in net investment in capital assets {e.g., land, facilities,
equipment, construction in progress, and intangible assets). These assets are used for the construction,
improvement, operation, and maintenance of Port facilities. Port’s net position also includes $53.7M of
resaurces restricted for the following: a reserve fund used to pay the interest and principal payments
due for the 2018 Port Revenue Bonds, future crane acquisition or extraordinary crane maintenance, and
the maintenance, replacements, and repair of facilities. The remaining is -5132.5M of unrestricted
resources.
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Port's total assets amaunted to 5238.3M, which is a $1.0M decrease from FY 2020. As of FY 2021, current
assets amounted to $75.4M, a $3.0M increase. Current assets increased largely due to the net $2.6M
increase in current cash and cash equivalents and a $648K increase in accounts receivable. As of FY 2021,
non-depreciable property, plant, and equipment amounted to $15.4M, which is a $3.7M increase. These
asset increases were offset by mainly depreciable property, plant, and equipment, which decreased by
$5.1M, due to the disposal of fixed assets and the regular annual depreciation of assets. Please refer to
Nate 3 to the financial statements for more detailed information on Port’s capital asset activity.

Part's total liabilities amounted to $240.8M, which is a $2.2M increase from FY 2020. As of FY 2021,
current liabilities amounted to $7.8M, which is a2 $3.2M decrease compared to the prior year, Current
liabilities are composed of the following accounts: accounts payable trade, security deposits and other
payables, accrued payroll and withholdings, the current portion of long-term debt, and the current
portion of accrued annual leave, Settlement payouts in FY 2021 decreased the contingency liability
balance to $237K. As of FY 2021, long-term debt amounted to $67.2M, which is 3 $2.8M decrease. See
Note & to the accompanying financial statements for additional details on Port’s financing activities.

These liability decreases were offset by the $5.1M increase in OPEB liability and the $2.6M increase in
net pensian liability. Changes in the actuarial assumptions result in an upward or downward movement
of the OPEB and net pension liabilities.

Deferred outflows of resources (reported with assets} and deferred inflows of resources [reported with
l[abilities) are the reported differences between projected and actual investment earnings. Additional
details regarding Port's proportionate shares of pension and OPEB liabilities may be found in Notes 4
and 5 of this financial report.

Analysis of Port's Activities

Net position changes are based on the sum of operating and non-operating revenues plus contributed
capital, minus operating and non-operating expenses. Refer to the following table for a condensed
summary of how the Port's net position changed during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021,
2020, and 2019 {in thousands).

Changes in Net Position
{(In Thousands)

2021
% Increase
2020 /Decrease
2021 As Restated 2019 Over 2020

Operating revenues:
Cargo throughput charges S 34,777 $ 33,820 $ 34,357 2.83%
Equipment and space rental 8,291 9,192 8,833 -9.80%
Crane surcharge 5,984 5,811 5,875 2.97%
Wharfage charges 5,799 5,639 5771 2.84%
Special services 95 138 199 -31.45%
Other operating income 113 78 229 44.89%
55,059 54,679 55,265 0.70%
{Provision for) recovery of bad debts 0 {52) {29} 100.00%
55,059 54,627 55,236 0.79%
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2021
% Increase
2020 /Decrease
2021 As restated 2019 QOver 2020
Operating expenses:
Management and administration 14,877 14,591 11,866 1.96%
Equipment maintenance 6,432 6,391 6,076 0.64%
Operations 13,656 13,750 11,839 -0.68%
Retiree healthcare and other benefits 6,954 5,508 2,960 26.30%
Facitity maintenance 2,142 2,116 1,862 1.20%
General expenses 7,946 6,977 6,885 13.89%
Total operating expenses 52,007 49,331 41,589 5.42%
Earnings from operations 3,052 5,297 13,647 -42,.38%
before depreciation
Depreciation 6,258 6,361 6,766 -1.60%
{Loss) earnings from operations (3,206) {1,064) 6,881 201.30%
Nonoperating (expenses) ravenues:
Total non-operating expenses, net 754 (825} {4,051) -191.40%
Earnings {loss) before capital contributions {2,452) {1,889} 2,830 -29.80%
Cantributed capital:
U.S. Government grants 219 2,481 687 -891.20%
Increase {decrease) in net position {2,233} 592 3,528 «477.20%
Net position at the beginning of the year 16,036 15,444 11,917 3.83%
Net position at the end of the year $ 13,303 $ 16,036 S 15,444 -13.92%

Changes in Net Position

Port's operating revenues increased by $432K, from $54.6M in FY 2020 to $55.1M in FY 2021, Despite
the struggles brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic on Port's resaurces and personnel, the total
containers that Port handled in FY 2021 was 1.9% higher than last year. This resulted in the following
revenue increases: cargo throughput charges by $956K, crane surcharge by $172K, and wharfage charges
by $160K. These increases were offset by the $901K decrease in equipment and space rental revenues.
As the pandemic's negative impact on businesses {such as tourism, travel, and hospitality) had a ripple
effect on Port customers, special service requests decreased, and several leases were terminated.
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Total operating expenses increased by $2.6M (or 4.6%) from $55.7M in FY 2020 to $58.3M in FY 2021,
The overall increase in operating expenses is largely due to the recording of OPEB and pension costs in
FY 2021, which resulted in higher retiree healthcare and other benefits and divisional expenses. FY 2021
adjustments to OPEB and pension expenses were $5.3M and $1.3M, respectively. This resulted in a
26.3% (or $1.4M) increase in retiree healthcare and other benefits expenses and 1% average increase in
the divisional expenses compared to the prior fiscal year. The following expense increases also
contributed to the net increase of total operating expenses; general expenses increased by $636K (or
25.1%), insurance increased by $389K (or 12.4%), and management and administration increased by
$285K (or 2.0%).

General expenses increased largely because of increases in contractual and maintenance expenses.
Insurance premiums increased for property, automaobile, and workers' compensation due to the market
conditions amidst the pandemic. Management and administration expenses increased mainly because
of the following: annual salary increments, hiring of new employees in FY 2021, benefits payouts to
employees who separated in FY 2021, and annual salary increments increased retirement rates and
insurance rates.

Before depreciation (a non-cash expense), the result of net operating revenues minus operating
expenses in FY 2021 was a $3.1M operating income. When adding back the $6.3M non-cash expense of
depreciation, the result is a $3.2M operating loss, which is a decline from the $1.1M operating loss of FY
2020.

In FY 2021, the net result of non-operating revenues and non-operating expenses is a positive $754K,
largely due to the $2.0M of U.5. Government operating grants recelved. Port received $991K from the
U.S. Treasury for reimbursement of COVID-19 expenses (i.e., hazardous pay, etc.), via the Coronavirus
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, as well as 5833K from the U.S. Office of Economic
Adjustment for Owner's Agent Engineering Services.

In FY 2021, capital contributions slightly improved the operating lass by only 219K, U.S. Government
capital grants decreased by $2.3M (or 91.2%) from $2.5M in FY 2020 to only 5219K in FY 2021. By
comparison, Port received two top-lifters in FY 2020 that were Federally-funded in the amount of $1.6M.
Furthermore, decreased activity in Federal-funded projects resulted in less Federal reimbursements in
FY 2021.

After adding capital contributions, Port concluded FY 2021 with a $2.2M decrease in net position. Port's
net position at the end of FY 2021 was $13.8M, which is a $2.2M decrease from FY 2020's restated
$16.0M net position.

Port’s FY 2020 financial statements were restated to account for $1.5 million of capitalized interest on
in-progress capital improvement projects. This restatement resuited in Port concluding FY 2020 with a
$592K increase in net position - which is an improvement from the previously reported $919K decrease
in net positien.
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Operating Expenses (In Millions)
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Key Factors in FY 2021 Operating Results and FY 2022 Future Outlook

Corona Virus (COVID-19) Pandemic: In the early part of 2020, international news media reported the
rise of the Coronavirus Disease 2019, alsa known as COVID-19, in the Asia Pacific Region and for which
the U.S, President declared a public health emergency. Immediately after the President's declaration,
Port management issued to all shippers, agents, and Port staff guidelines containing the appropriate
measures to reduce COVID-19 exposure risk to our tenants and employees. These guidelines included a
process outlining what shipping agents should do if a crew member was ill and suspected to have COVID-
19 and guidance on what employees were prohibited from doing while on the vessel during operations.
In March 2020, the Governor of Guam declared a public health emergency to safeguard Guam from

COVID-19.
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To date, 100% of Port employees have been vaccinated in response to Executive Order 2021-17, which
mandated that all Government of Guam executive branch employees be vaccinated no later than
September 24, 2021, Just as we thought some normalcy was returning to our lifestyles, another strain
was jdentified in 2021, causing us to take appropriate measures to reduce the risk to our tenants and
employees, During 2021, we held:

* Vaccination Clinics: As the number of positive cases rose amongst our employees, Port sprang into
action to take every step possible to protect the employees, tenants, and people of Guam. Aside
from the Port Clinic and establishment of the Port Contact Tracing Team, we coordinated with the
Guam Department of Public Health and Social Services and the Guam Mational Guard to set up
vaccination clinics, so that our employees, their families, and tenants could receive the COVID-19
vaccinations. Pleased with our set-up for the clinics, the Guam National Guard informed Port that we
set the bar high on how any government agency or business was to run a successful vaccination clinic
at their job site.

* Dock-Side Vaccination Clinic: At the request of the shipping agents, and with the assistance of the
Guam Department of Public Health, FHP Clinic, U.S. Immigration, and Guam Customs, Port set up a
vaccination clinic in which crew members could receive their dose of vaccination on Port docks.

Port Modernization: The Port Authority of Guam's Modernization Program is designed to meet the
island's growth, including military realignment and expansion and growing the tourism market. The key
project initiatives for the bond market were as foliows:

* Expansion of wharf space to accommodate larger vessels and increase vessel handling capacity;

e Upgrade of the terminal operating system to allow for automated invoicing, cargo and container
tracking, financial management, and maintenance management;

» Expansion of existing facilities to support fishing and cruise line industries; and

s Replacement of gantry cranes at the end of useful life te maintain continuous, uninterrupted cargo
movement.

As part of the modernization program, Port obtained $71.4M in revenue bonds to pay for capital
improvements at Port and refinance some of its existing debt at a lower interest rate. This was also
accomplished through legislation. The capital improvement projects to be funded with bond proceeds
include the following:

Rehabilitation of Hotel Wharf and access road;

Replacement and relocation of water lines;

Repair and expansion of the Equipment Maintenance & Repair Building and Warehouse 1; and
Replacement of Port Administration Building and repair of Golf Pier — one of two Port-owned fuel
piers.

s Upgrade of Port's 20-year Oracle JDE World financial management system to a more robust and
modern Oracle IDE Enterprise One System.

The only project that has a local share of a federal grant (TIGER) is Hotel Wharf and access road, totaling
g24 million. The Port will be using the revenue bond proceeds to fund its share of the Tiger grant for
14.2 million,
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Part Master Plan Update: Port Master plan was updated in 2013 to take into consideration that the re-
set of the military build-up would be pushed back between 2020 and 2026. However, in the 2015
National Defense Authorization Act {NDAA), a four-year freeze was lifted on the spending on the Marine
relocation. For the Fiscal Year 2017, the NDAA authorized $253 miillion in new military construction
projects. In 2018, the NDAA authorized $354.6 million in new military construction projects for Guam.
Based on expected aggregate population increase statistics, Guam should expect to see increases in
Department of Defense military personnel and dependents on the island between 2018 and the highest
peak increase in 2023,

The 2013 Port Master Plan summarized the evolution of change in the Port Modernization Program and
identified 55 improvement and sustainability projects to be funded by revenue bond proceeds and Port
revenues and financial feasibility assessment based on the assumption that the military build-up was
pushed back. Out of the 55 projects, 23 are not completed.

In July 2020, the Port engaged with its Owner Agent Engineer consultants in updating the 2013 Master
Plan. The update aims to assist the Port in defining its near-term and long-term approach to
modernization, maintaining fiscally sustainable operations, and promoting increased awareness and
consensus on its approach ameng all affected stakeholders and ratepayers of Guam.

In August 2021, OEA consultants briefed management, Governor, Lt. Governor, and several senators
who participated in a zoom conference on the master plan status, project planning and analysis, demand
forecast, port modernization — bulld back better, current and new OAE contract, transshipment task
force and diversification of commaercial activities and revenues. The first draft of the Master Plan Update
is expected to be submitted to the Port during the first quarter of 2022.

Procurement Delegation: After 14 years since the Part lost its procurement delegation, the Chief
Procurement Officer, through the close work relationship with management, restored the full delegation
of procurement authority in May 2020. Since then, she has granted a full delegation of procurement
authority to the Port for Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022.

Bond Rating: On May 17, 2021, Moody's investors Service ralsed its outlook for the Port Authority of
Guam from negative to stable, pointing to low leverage, strong liquidity, and the Port's ability to remain
fully operational during the coronavirus pandemic. Not only did Moody's Investors Service raise the
Port's outlook to stable from negative, but the service also affirmed the Baa2 rating assigned to the Port
Authority of Guam's seniar port revenue bonds. The affirmation of the Baa2 rating and outlook change
to stable follows Moody's rating action on the Government of Guam's general obligation bonds rating,
which was affirmed at Bal with a stable outlook on 4 May 2021.

"The Port Authority of Guam's Baa2 rating reflects its position as the sole commercial port in
Guam, handling around 90% of the territory's imported cargo, including a significant portion of
military cargo,” stated Moody's in a release,

S&P Global Ratings has upgraded its outlook for the Part Authority of Guam to stable from negative and
affirmed its 'A’ long-term rating on the agency's outstanding series 2018 Port Revenue Bonds. "The
outlook revision reflects our view that, despite the economic disruption caused by the global COVID-19
pandemic, volume levels at the port have remained relatively stable and resilient from fiscal 2019 to
fiscal 2020 and continuing into fiscal 2021 (Sept. 30 year-end), given the essentiality of the port to Guam,
supporting financial metrics that remain in line with our expectations at the current rating level," the
ratings report released by Standard and Poor's Global Ratings stated.
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Gantry Purchase_and Maintenance: Port's Owner Agent Engineer consultants provided a recent
assessment and found a dire need to replace the Port of Los Angeles {POLA) cranes. The POLA cranes
were originally built in 1983/1984. Although these cranes were refurbished in 2003, they reached the
end of their expected service life and need to be replaced by 2024, Because of the importance of the
Port as the lifeline to sustain economically and U.5. Department of Defense military buiid-up
construction activities on Guam, the Governor has required new Ship-to-Shore (STS) gantry cranes to
replace the Port's aging fleet as one of her top priorities. Through management's guidance, the planning
staff submitted a grant application to U.S. Economic Development Administration {EDA) for the
acquisition of 2 gantry cranes under the Cares Act Funded Recovery Assistance Program and developed
a loan application to the U.S. Department of Agriculture for one gantry crane as a back-up to its EDA
application.

In November 2021, Governor Leon Guerrero allotted $15 million in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
Fiscal Recovery Funds to Port. These ARPA funds will free up Port's reserve fund to allow funding for
capital projects, bond project shortfall, or the purchase of one new gantry crane. Port management is
working with its Owner Agent Engineer to develop the STS gantry cranes specifications for procurement.

Public Law 31-145, enacted in 2011, required the Port to contract the services of a Performance
Contractor to manage the performance, aperation, and maintenance of the Port's gantry cranes and
other cranes utilized in Port operations. When this administration came on board in 2019, the 2012
contract had expired. In 2021, the Port successfully negotiated a contract with Matson Navigation
Company, and Public Utilities Commission approved the procurement award.

Revenue Bond, Federal, and Port Funded Prajects: As a result of management's efforts to make sure

the Port meets the expectations of our bond, federal and local stakehoiders; the following are the
updates in the Port's Capital Impravement Project {CIP) initiatives:

1. Hotel Wharf Rehabilitation and Reconstruction Project: After Maritime Administration (MARAD)

approved the envirenmental assessment and FONSI for Hotel Wharf and issued in September
2019 the notice to proceed with the rehabilitation project, the Port was able to relocate the coral
head, which was situated near the wharf.

In March 2021, the Port awarded the Construction Management contract for the Hotel Wharf
and Route 11 Access Roadway project. The procurement solicitation was issued in 2021, and the
review is currently ongoing.

2. Removal of Port Inoperable Assets: The military build-up peak is expected to occur in 2023. To
ensure the Port can stage the increase of cargoes in its terminal facilities and accommodate the
additional vessels calling Port, a solicitation of procurement was prepared by a committee
comprised of Port staff and our consultants, WSP. The multi-step invitation of the bid was issued
on December 31, 2020.

In September 2021, the Port issued the purchase order to remove five inoperable cranes and the
removal/ disposal of a sunken barge located in the F6 wharf. This project is currently in progress.

3. Port Wharves Assessment and Upgrades: inJuly 2018 the Port contracted a company to conduct
a post-seismic assessment of the wharves and F1 fuel pier. Based on their assessment, repairs to
the F1 fuel pier and wharves F3 to Fb6 are highly recommended.
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MARAD announced that it had approved the Port's Rebuilding America Infrastructure with
Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grant application for $17.9 million. The project, estimated at
over 522 million, will upgrade wharves F1 through Fé to support STS gantry cranes operations, It
will specifically address sheet piles and concrete cap spalling at the face of the Port’s F2, F3, F4,
and F6 wharves and the deteriorating structure of the F1 Pier.

Oracle Enterprise One (E1) Financial Management System {FMS): In 2019, the Port initiated a
project to upgrade the Port's IDE World Management Financial Management System to a more

robust and technological JDE E1 FMS. To steer this huge undertaking, the Port created a team
comprised of Finance and IT personnel who worked closely with the Oracle project team. After
successfully getting through the proof of concept and procurement stages, Enterprise 1 was
launched in August 2020.

On May 17, 2021, the Port's Enterprise One FMS system went live. Deliverables for Enterprise
One include modules for General Accounting, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Fixed
Assets, Budgeting, Payroll, Human Resources, Procurement, and Inventory. The system also has
the ability to streamline processes that reduce non-value activity such as paper filing,
spreadsheet reconciliations, manual calculation of interests and collection of late payments,
manual inventory processes, and manual financial document delivery. Additional capabilities
include the ahility to fully implement Job Costing and Work Order system that integrates to the
General Ledger and other financial modules, which was not passible with the previous system.
But most especially, the new system possesses the ability to move homegrown systems such as
Special Service Request invoicing, Operations Time Entry, check printing, W2 processing,
requisition and purchase order processing for local GSA transactions, tax table update, and
financial required reports into the new JOE Enterprise One system.

Federal Grants and Grant Opportunities: Management team worked closely with Planning staff and
respective division heads on the following federal grants:

The Port was approved for 5500,000 to support Harbor of Refugee's repair work and $512,759
for the Agat Marina Dock B construction by the Department of Agriculture. A draft Memorandum
of Understanding is currently with the Department of Agriculture for their review.

MARAD RAISE grant application for $17.9 million. The project, estimated at over $22 million per
email notification from David Bonet on January 4, 2022, advising on the next
steps. $22,427,496: 517,941,997 - federal share; $4,485,499 PAG share. Although awarded, a
grant agreement has not been executed pending NEPA, Section 106, and other requirements.

The Port has partnered with Commonwealth Northern Marianas [sland {CNMI) for & joint route
designation and project designation for consideration under MARAD's America's Marine Highway
Program. If approved by MARAD, this joint designation will allow both ports (Guam and CNMI}
to apply for grant opportunities for infrastructure upgrades or equipment acquisition.

OnJune 10, 2021, the U.S. Economic Development Authority (EDA) awarded the Port $3.0 million
for the fuel connectivity line. Award letter breaks down the total amount of $3,016,363:
52,413,091 - federal share; 5603,272 - PAG share.

DOl Maintenance Assistance Program - Phase Il Welding Shop Repairs - Email notification of
award July 2021 - $303,700: $151,850 federal share; $ 151,850 PAG share.
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f. FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant - Warehouse | Hardening Project - Email notification of award:
December 30, 2021 - $514,500: 5385,875 - federal share; $128,625 - PAG share

B. FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant - Fendering System Hardening Project - Email notification of
award: December 28, 2021 - $804,919: $603,689 - federal share; $201,230 - PAG share.

h. Acquisition of Radar Intrusion and Vessel Tracking System - $268,333: 5201,250 - federal share;
$67,083 - PAG share

i. Acquisition of TWIC Readers and Credentialing System - $220,001: $165,001 - federal share;
$55,000 - PAG share

Legal Services: With the sudden departure of the Port's in-house counsel in February 2020, and in order
to ensure the pracurement processes are not further delayed, management proactively worked with the
Attorney General in designating the GSA's Administrative Counsel as the Special Assistant Attorney
General for the period the Chief Procurement Officer was assigned to the Port. Then in October 2020,
the Attorney General assigned Assistant Attorney General Tom Keeler to assist the Port in reviewing
procurement packages. However, his assignment was only for a temporary period.

In 2019, the Port began creating the position process in establishing a staff attarney position within its
Classification and Compensation Plan. The transparency and disclosure process on creating the Port Staff
Attorney position was completed in April 2019 and filled in January 2021.

Guam Customs Inspection Facility: The PAG team worked closely with Customs representatives to
identify the site where the new customs inspection, holding, and securing area will be located. The Port
coordinated with the Department of Land Management on the survey and transfer of the property from
the Port to Customs and the Department of Public Works on the clearing of the property. As part of the
Port Master Plan Update, we included the Guam Customs Inspection Facility feasibility study, which the
Office of Economic Adjustment funded. Our consultants provided proposed facility design layouts on the
4-acre parcel adjacent to the main terminal facility, to which Guam Customs agreed with the layouts.
The preferred design's objective was two-fold: (1) allowed Customs to conduct privacy operations inside
the facility and {2) mandated the use of the Department of Public Warks' weigh station by the truckers.
Customs will use the design to abtain financing for the facility's construction.

Abandoned Derelict Vessel Project: The Port team worked closely with Guam Environmental Protection
Agency and Guam Power Authority to remove 14 abandoned derelict vessels within the navigational
hazards that pose significant threats to commercial and natural resources in Apra harbor. A port water
tour was done in December 2020, which allowed the Governor and Lt. Gavernar to observe first-hand
the locations of these vessels and to be briefed on the type of work that is to occur in the removal of
such vessels. After the boat tour, the Governor signed an executive order forming a group to remove the
abandoned vessels fram the Port harbor.
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Employee Concerns: Mutual trust and greater understanding between management and employees
would need to be built and created. The key elements in any organization's operation are cooperation
and not confrontation between management and employees. Port employees have expressed the desire
far the following:

Improved communication;

Management awareness of employee job-related concerns;
Personal growth and development;

Enhanced decision-making skills;

increased individual power;

Improved motivation; and

Opportunities for recognition of individual improvement.

LARASAN

The union contract was negotiated between the Guam Federation of Teachers on behalf of the Port
Operations and Maintenance employees, and the Port was approved by the Port Board in 2012.
However, the contract was stalled because of a lack of authorized signatories in order for the union and
the Port to implement the contract's provisions.

The Port implemented a quality circle concept in the 1990s aimed at developing employees and allowing
them the opportunity to use their wisdom, creativity, and experience to improve their work
environment. The program saw successful results. During this period, the Port's gantry cranes'
productivity moves went from 18 moves per hour to 40 moves per hour, surpassing lapan's productivity
moves. The concept also instilled a sense of belonging amongst the employees and made them feel that
they have an essential role in the organization.

One important achievement was establishing mutual trust and understanding with the employees and
Port customers and stakeholders—both federal and local. Communication improved, productivity
increased, and participation discussions on decisions affecting the Port and its users are being held
regularly. The last two years were tough for the employees due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Port
management wanted to gauge the relationship between the Port organization and its employees to
determine if management was moving in a better direction as an agency. Two climate surveys were
initiated, and 98% of the employees participated in the surveys. The outcomes showed overwhelmingly
positive results in job satisfaction and revealed that employees believe that morale is at an all-time high.

Debt Service Coverage
Under the bond indenture of the 2018 Port Revenue Bonds, Port is required to maintain a minimum debt

service coverage of 1.25 in relation to net revenues versus annual debt service. Refer to the following
for a summary of the annual debt service coverage for the year ended September 30, 2021.
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2021

Revenues S 46,934
Less Operations & Maintenance Expenses $ 48,637

Net Revenues $ (1,703)
Plus Other Available Monies 3 1,806
Plus Non-Cash Accounting Adjustments S 7,658

Net Revenues & Other Available Monies 8 7,761
Rate Covenant:
Net Revenues & Other Available Monies S 7,761
Total Annual Debt Service S 5,752
Annual Debt Service Coverage 1.35
Debt Service Coverage Requirement 1.25

See note 6 to the financial statements for additional information on Port's financing activities.
CONTACTING THE PORT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Management's Discussion and Analysis report is intended to provide information concerning known
facts and conditions affecting the Port's operations. This financial audit report is designed to provide a
general overview of the Port Authority's finances and demonstrate its accountability for the funds it
receives and spends.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 is set forth in
the Port’s report on the audit of financial statements which is dated March 31, 2021. That Discussion
and Analysis explains in more detail major factors impacting the 2020 and 2019 financial statements. A
copy of that report can be obtained by contacting Jose B. Guevara lll, Port Authority of Guam, or from
the Port’s website at www.partguam.com.

For additional information about this report, please contact Jose B, Guevara I, Port Authority of Guam,
1026 Cabras Highway Suite 201, Piti, Guam 96915, or visit www.portguam.com.
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Current assets:

PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

{A Component Unit ot the Government ot Guam)

Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS AND DEFERRED CUTFLOWS OF RESCLIRCES

Cash and cash eguivalents - unrestricted
Cash and cash egulvalents - restricted expendable

Total cash

and cash eguivalents

Accounts recelvable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $299,658 in 2021 and 2020
Federal receivables

Prepaid axpenses

Total current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted expendable

Replacement parts inventaries, net of allowance for nbsolescence
of $186,018 in 2021 and $137,558 in 2020

Depreciable property, plant and equipment, net

Nandepreciable property, plant and eguipment

Total assets

Deferred outflows of
Deferred outflows of

resaurces from pension
resources from other post-employmant benefits

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Current labillties:

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable, trade and others
Security deposlis and other payables
Accrued payroll and withholdings
Current portion of accrued annual leave
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Net pension Rability

Other past-employment benefits llabWity
Accrued annual leave, net of current portion
Accrued DCRS sick leave

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources from pension
Deferred inflows of resources from other post-employment benefits

Tatal deferred inflaws of resources

Commitments and contingencies

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted - enpendable

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total labllitles, deferred inflows of resources and net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2020
As restated
2021 Note 11

5 10,314,359 $ 20,018,505
59,031,043 46,713,098
69,345,400 66,731,603
5,888,274 5,240,402

158,963 351,325

42 £4,631

75,392,679 72,387,961
45,474,646 48,041,056
501,325 b4R,238
101,532,587 106,588,701
15,388,197 11,661,382
238,289,934 239,337,338
15,315,097 13,903,067
33,005,118 23,668,119
48,320,215 37,571,186

S 285,610,149 S 276,890,524
9 2,560,000 5 2465000
2,020,595 2,613,416

851,722 2,573,881

738,773 1,272,831

1,306,757 1,798,867

277,679 277,633

7,755,526 11,001,628
67,232,826 70,042,079
66,111,010 63,517,803
97,077,114 92,013,986
1,046,890 462,075
1,583,841 1,543,920
240,807,207 238,581,491
1,733,158 1,637,235
30,266,358 20,643,550
31,999,514 22,280,785
952,602,604 93,784,080
53,693,300 41,375,365
{132,492,483) {118,123,177}
13,803,428 16,035,248

5 286i610|149 5 275,&93‘524



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

(A Component Unit of the Government ot Guam)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Operating revenues:
Cargo throughput charges
Equipment and space rental
Crane surcharge
Wharfage charges
Special services
Qther operating income

Provision for bad debts

Operaling expenses:
Management and administration
Retiree heatthcare and other benefits
Equipment maintenance
Depreciation
Transportation services
Stevedoring services
Insurance
Terminal services
General expenses
Facility maintenance
Utilities

Total operating expenses
Loss from operations

Nanoperating (expenses) ravenues:
.5, Government pperating grants
Other income {expense], nat
Interest [expense) income, nat
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Total nonoperating revenues {expenses), net
Loss before capital contributions

Contributed capital:
.5, Gavernment capltal grants

{Decrease) increase In net pasition
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2020
As restated
2021 Note 11
34,776,915 § 33,820,469
8,291,223 9,191,957
5,583,633 5,811,219
5,799,596 5,639,175
94,587 137,990
113,392 78,262
55,059,328 54,679,112
- {51,658}
55,059,326 54,627,454
14,876,738 14,591,435
6,953,748 5,504,567
6,432,429 6,391,270
6,258,251 6,350,712
6,022,858 6,006,525
4,297,020 4,392,152
3,518,937 3,130,414
3,335,380 3,351,409
3,166,415 2,530,651
2,141,832 2,116,004
1,260,806 1.316,320
58,265.414 55,691,459
{3,205,088)} [1,064,005)
1,995,703 445,151
18,707 [306,685)
(1,143,221) [954,937)
urdle) ____ (8466
753,875 1824,937)
(2,452,213) (1,888,242)
219,393 2,480,989
12,232,820} £92,047
16,036,248 15,444,201
13,803,428 S 16,036,248




PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

[A Component Unit ot the Government of Guam)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cazh payments to supgliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activity - interest received

Cash fMlows from capltal and related financing activities:
Capital grants received
Repayment of long-term debt
Interest paid
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment

Net cash used kn capital and related finanting activities

Cash flows fram nen-capital related financing activities:
QOperating grants received
Other non-caplial activities

Cash grovided by non-capital related financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash rquivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation 1o statement of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents - current
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted non-current

Reconciliation of doss from operations to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations
to net cash provided by cperating activitles:
Degreciation
Provision for bad dehts
Pension expenses
Other past-employment benefit costs
Changas in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepald expenses
Replacement paris inventories, net
Accounits payable, trade and others
Security deposits and other payables
Accrued payroll and withholdings
Accrued annual leave
Unearned revenue
Accrued sick leave

Net cash provided by operating actlvities

See accompanying notes te financial statements.
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2020
As restated
2021 Note 11
s 54411500 5 54,019,381
{14,568,561}) {10,982,153)
{34,119,134) (33,574,337}
5,723,805 9,462,891
99,789 542,686
411,755 2,353,945
12,465,000) {2,380,000)
{691,103) {1,213,069)
[5,046,266) {7,750,757)
(7.790,614) {8.989,881}
1,995,703 445,151
18,704 {306,683)
2,014.407 138,468
47,387 1,254,164
114,772,659 113,518,495
$ 114:320i045 114,772,659
5 59,345,400 66,731,603
45,474,646 48,041,056
1 114,820,046 114,772,659
-]
5 (3,206,088) {1,064,005)
6,258,251 6,360,712
. 51,658
1,277,098 648,617
5,348,938 3,959,175
{647,872} {736,211)
64,589 {26,497
146,413 {79,321)
{1,393,580) 323,419
{1,722,156) {1,257,546}
{534,058) 373,232
92,705 415917
44 76,481
39,921 457,260
4 5,723,805 9,462,801




PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

(1) __Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Port Authority of Guam (the Authority) was created by Public Law 13-87 as an autonomous
instrumentality of the Government of Guam to own and operate the facilities of the Commercial Port
of Guam. All assets and liabilities were transferred from the Commercial Port of Guam to the
Authority at book value effective April 20, 1976. The Authority is governed by a five-member
Board of Directors appointed by the Governor with consent provided by the Legislature. The Authority
is a component unit of the Government of Guam (GovGuam).

The Authority’s main cargo handling facilities are located on thirty acres of reclaimed land on
Cabras Island in Piti, Guam. Title to this land was transferred from GovGuam tc the Authority in 1975.
Eleven acres of adjacent property was assigned to the Authority from the U.5. Navy atan annual rent
of $1 to be used for future container yard expansion.

The Authority controls and/or manages approximately 260 acres of fast and submerged lands
inclusive of the thirty acres noted previously. These areas include the Harbor of Refuge, Aqua weorld
Marina, a portion of the Piti Channel, Agat Marina, Gregario D. Perez Marina, Hotel Wharf, Dog
Pier, Family Beach and the Port Authority Beach. The Guam Economic Development Authority
(GEDA) has assigned the management of the thirty-two acre Cabras Industrial Park to the
Authority.

On July 14, 2008, Public Law 30-52 placed the Authority under the oversight of the Public Utilities
Commission of Guam (PUC). Because of the rate making process, certain differences may arise in
the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
between regulated and non-regulated enterprises. Such differences mainly concern the time at
which various items enter into the determination of net earnings in order to follow the principle of
matching costs and revenues.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority utifizes the flow of economic resources measurement focus. its financial statements
are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
as applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority’s revenues are derived primarily from providing various services to major shipping
line customers under an approved tariff rate schedule and are reported as operating revenues.
Revenue is recognized on the accrual basis and is recorded upon billing when services have been
completed. Capital grants, financing or investing related transactions are reported as non-
pperating revenues and expenses. All expenses related to operating the Authority are reported as
operating expenses. Capital grants and other capital contributions from governmental agencies are
recorded as net position when earned. Operating grants are recorded as revenue when earned.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Net Position
Net position represents the residual interest in the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows of

respurces after liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted and consists of the
following three sections:

Net investment in capital assets:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted:

Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that require the Authority
to maintain them permanently.

Expendable - Net position whose use by the Authority is subject to externally imposed stipulations
that can be fulfilled by actions of the Authority pursuant to those stipulations or that expire with
the passage of time.

All of the Authority’s restricted net position at September 30, 2021 and 2020 is expendable.
Unrestricted:

Net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net position may
be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Directors or may
otherwise he limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of net position and of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is
defined as cash on hand, deposits in banks, time certificates of deposit, money market funds
and short-term investments in U.S. Treasury obligations with initial maturities of three months
or less. Restricted cash is considered ta be cash and cash equivalents but is separately classified in
the statements of net positlon.

Accounts Receivable and Aliowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Authority’s accaunts receivable as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 are due
from international steamship lines/agents which are located or operating on Guam.

The Authority performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not require
collateral. Receivables are considered past due when payment is not received within 30 days from
the date of hilling. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, receivables that are more than thirty days
past due totaled $1,680,428 and 5825,382, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
stated at an amount which management believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on
accounts receivable that may become uncollectible based on evaluations of the collectability of these
accounts and priar collection experience. The allowance is established through a provision for bad
debts charged to expense. Uncollectible accounts are written-off against the allowance or are
charged to expense in the period the Authority deems the accounts to be uncallectible.
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(1) _ Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Replacement Parts Inventories

Replacement parts inventeries consist of spare parts and supplies stated at average cost and are
charged to expense as used. Due to the nature and availability of parts necessary for operations,
inventory includes items which often are not used within one year and are largely used for repair and
maintenance of non-current plant and equipment. Thus, replacement parts inventories are classified
as non-current assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Land is recorded at its appraised value on the date of transfer from GovGuam. Buildings and
structures are stated at cost, which includes interest during the construction period. Equipment is
stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets (5 - 40 years for buildings and equipment). Current policy is to capitalize individual
purchases over $1,000 with useful lives exceeding one year. Normal maintenance and repairs are
charged to operating expense as incurred; expenditures for major additions, improvements,
infrastructure and replacements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of
and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal
with the resulting gain or loss credited or charged to nonaperating revenue or expense,
respectively.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recorded as a long-term liability in the statements of net position.
Estimated amounts to be paid during the next fiscal year are reported as current liabilities.
Annual leave pay is convertible to pay upon termination of employment.

In accardance with Public Law No. 27-5 and Public Law No. 28-68, employee annual leave
accrual rates are credited at either 104, 156 or 208 hours per year, depending upon the
employees’ length of service as follows:

1, One-half day (4 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees with less
than five (5) years of service;

2. Three-fourths day (6 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees with
more than five (5} years of service but less than fifteen (15) years of service; and

3. One {1} day (8 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of em ployees with more
than fifteen (15) years of service.

The statutes further amended the maximum accumulation of such annual leave credits from 480 to
320 hours. Public Law No. 27-106 allows employees who have accumulated annual Jeave in excess of
320 hours as of February 28, 2003, to carry over their excess and to use the excess amount of
leave prior to retirement or termination from service or they may credit not more than 100
excess hours to sick leave. However, at retirement, lump sum compensation or retirement
credit for annual leave in excess of three hundred twenty (320) hours is not allowed.

Public Law 26-86 allows members of the Defined Contribution Retirement System {DCRS) to

receive a lump sum payment of one-half of their accumulated sick leave upen retirement. A
liability is accrued for estimated sick leave to be paid out to DCRS members upon retirement.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

(1) _Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Pensions

Pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting. The
Authority recognizes a net pension liability for the defined benefit pension plan in which it
participates, which represents the Authority’s proportional share of excess total pension liability
over the pension plan assets — actuarially calculated — of a single employer defined benefit plan,
measured one year prior to fiscal year-end and rolled forward. The total pension liability also
inciudes the Authority’s proportionate share of the liability for ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments
{COLA} and supplemental annuity payments that are anticipated to be made to defined benefit
plan members and for anticipated future COLA ta DCRS members. Changes in the net pension
liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows of resources or
deferred outflows of resaurces depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred.
Those changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or
deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs
and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the weighted average
reraining service life of all participants in the qualified pension plan and recorded as a component
of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred. Projected earnings on
qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pension expense.
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of
resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense on
a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

OPEB is required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting. OPEB offered
to the Authority’s retirees includes health and life insurance. The Authority recognizes OPEB
liability for the defined benefit OPEB plan in which it participates, which represents the Authority’s
proportional share of total OPEB liability - actuarially calculated - of a single employer defined
benefit plan, measured one year prior to fiscal year-end and rolled forward. An OPEB trust has not
been established; thus, the OPEB plan does not presently report OPEB plan fiduciary net position.
Instead, the OPEB plan is financed on a substantially “pay-as-you-go” basis.

Changes in the OPEB liability during the period are recorded as OPEB expense, or as deferred
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending an the nature af the change, in
the period incurred. Those changes in the OPEB liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of
resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or
other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the
weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the qualified OPEB plan and recorded
as a component of OPEB expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred.

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a cansurnption of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources {deduction of net position} until
the applicable future period.
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Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (additions to net position) until the
applicable future period.

Taxes

As an instrumentality of GovGuam, the Authority and all property acquired by or for the
Authority, and all revenues and income there from are exempt from taxation by GovGuam or by
any political subdivision or public corporation thereof and from all taxes imposed under the
authority of the Guam Legislature, or with respect to which the Guam Legislature is authorized
ta grant exemption.

Risk Management

The Authority has commercial insurance coverage for directors’ and officers’ liability,
comprehensive liability, employee dishonesty and forgery, money and securities loss, and
automobile injury and property damage. Worker's compensation is managed through the local
Department of Labor under the Government of Guam Special Fund (Special Fund); however, the
Authority reimburses the Special Fund for the costs of claims. The Authority also has commercial
property insurance coverage for 100% of the total net book value of property, plant and
equipment, subject to deductibles. The Authority incurred no casualty losses in excess of
insurance coverage during the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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New Accounting Standards

In 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance, which postponed the effective dates of GASB Statement No. 84, 89, 90,
91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 18 months; however, earlier application
of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 95 is encouraged and Is permitted to the extent
specified in each pronouncement as originally issued. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95,
management has elected to postpone implementation of these statements.

During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Authority implemented the following
pronouncements:

» GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which improves guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how
those activities should be reported.

» GASB Statement No. 80, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and 61, which improves the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of
financial statement information for certain component units.

e GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbonk Offered Rates, which establishes
accounting and reporting requirements related to the replacement of Interbank Offered Rates
such as the London Interbank Offered Rate {LIBOR) for hedging derivative instruments. The
provision remaving LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the evaluation of the
effectiveness of derivative instruments is effective for the year ended September 30, 2022.

The implementation of these statements did not have a material effect on the accompanying
financial statements.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract. Management believes that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2022.

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period
and (2) to simBIlfy accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Management believes that this statement, upon implementation, may have a material effect on
the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 89 will
be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.
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New Accounting Standards, Continued

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primaxobjectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This
Statement achieves thase objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additianal commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and
improving required note disclosures. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB
gBal’tgment No. 95, GASBE Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30,

In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency
of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety
of topics and includes specific provisions about the effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and
Implementation Guide No. 2015-3, Leases, for interim financial reports, the terminology used to
refer to derivative instruments and the applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84,
Ffduciar&/ Activities, to postemployment benefits. The reguirements related to the effective date
of GASB Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 95, the remaining requirements of GASB Statement Na. 92 are effective
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to crublic-private and public-public partnership
arrangements. This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for
availability payment arrangements. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
lmrlementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 94
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.

in May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-
to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a carresponding subscription liability; (3)
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. Management
does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the
financial statements. GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30,
2023
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New Accounting Standards, Continued

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for internol Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GAS8 Statement No. 32.
The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related
to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component
unit does not have a gaverning board and the primary government performs the duties that a
governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain
defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit
pIans} as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3? enhance the
relevance, consistency, and comparabili? of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal
Revenue Code {IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the
definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. Management does not
believe that this Statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial
statements. GASB Statement No. 97 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In October 2021, GASB issued Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This
Statement establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. That
new term and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annuarﬁnancial report and its acronym
in generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. Management does
not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial
statements. GASB Statement No. 98 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

(2) __Cash and Cash Equivalents

The 2018 bond indenture agreement requires the establishment of special funds to be held and
administered by trustees. In addition, proceeds from borrowings to finance various construction
projects are maintained by the Autharity in construction accounts as required by the 2018 bond
indenture. Also, certain funds are restricted by rate orders of the PUC,

The deposit and investment policies of the Authority are governed by 5 GCA 21, Investments agnd
Deposits, in conjunction with applicable bond indentures. Authorized investments include
obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or agencies of the U.5. gavernment;
bonds, notes or other indebtedness rated in the highest rating by Moody’s Investors Service
{Moody’s) or Standard & Poor's Corporation (S&P); obligations issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association or the Federai Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with remaining maturities
of not mare than three years; any bonds or other obligations of any state of the U.S. or any agency,
instrumentality or local government unit of such state which are rated in the highest rating
category of either Moody's or S&P; demand and time deposits in certificates of deposit or bankers
acceptances with U.S. domestic banks which have a rating of their short term certificates of depasit
of A-1 or better by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s and mature no more than 360 days after purchase;
commercial paper which has a rating in the highest classification by S&P and Moody’s; and money
market funds rated AAA or better by S&P.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and investment Risk Disclosures, addresses common deposit and
investment risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk. As an element of interest rate risk, disclosure is required of investments that have
fair values that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. GASB Statement No. 40 also
requires disclosure of formal policies related to deposit and investment risks.
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GASB Statement No. 40 also requires disclosures for deposits that have exposure to custodial credit
risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it. Such deposits are not covered by depository insurance and are either
uncollateralized, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or held
by the pledging financial institution but not in the depasitor-government’s name. The Authority
does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash
equivalents totaled $114,820,046 and $114,772,659, respectively, and the corresponding bank
balances were $114,912,814 and $114,861,925, respectively. Of the bank balance amount as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, $19,645,318 and $28,960,799, respectively, was maintained in
financial institutions subject to Federal Depaosit Insurance Corporation (FDIC} insurance. As of
September 30, 2021, and 2020, bank deposits in the amount of $500,000 were FDIC insured for both
years. Bank balances as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 also include $95,267,496 and
$85,901,126, respectively, of short-term investments held and administered by the Authority’s
trustee in the Authority’s name in accordance with a trust agreement and the 2018 bond
indenture. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, monies in the amount of $ 7,361,375 and
$6,840,156, respectively, were invested in deposit accounts insured by the U.S. Government. The
Authority does not require collateralization of its cash deposits; therefore, deposit levels in
excess of FDIC insurance coverage are uncollateralized. Accordingly, these deposits are exposed to
custodial credit risk. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, $12,905,392 and %21,530,377,
respectively, of cash and cash equivalents are subject to custodial credit risk. Under 5 GCA21, the
Government of Guam requires collateralization of deposits in excess of depositary insurance in an
amount in value at least ten percent in excess of monies deposited with the financial institution.
Such collateralization should be in securities in U.S. Treasury notes or bonds or in U.S. government
agencies for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal
and interest; evidence of indebtedness of the Government of Guam; investment certificates of the
Federal Home Bank; or such securities as may be approved by the Director of Administration and
the Governor of Guam. The Authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its deposits.
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The composition of restricted cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Current restricted:
2018 Bond Indenture Funds
Working capital reserve fund

2021

$ 3,091,053

2020

$ 3,090,744

General reserve fund 12,014,291 10,000
Debt service fund 1,438,541 1,438,102
Revenue fund 4,627,927 2,262,880
Capital improvement fund 10,202,474 10,201,454
Operations and maintenance fund 3,207 3,123,079
Renewal and replacement reserve fund 2,525,314 1,853,098
Operations and maintenance reserve fund 10,552,876 10,552,976
Bond reserve fund 5,337,736 5,337,736
49,753,519 37,870,069

PUC Restricted Funds
Crane replacement sinking fund 4,938,996 4,368,914
Facility maintenance fund 4,298,526 4,474,115
9,237,522 8,843,025

Total restricted cash and cash
equivalents - current 59,031,041 46,713,098
Noncurrent restricted:

2018 Bond Indenture Fund - Construction fund 45,474,646 48,041,056
$104,505,687 $ 94,754,154

(3] Property, Plant and Equipment

A summary of changes in property, plant and equipment for the years ended September 30, 2021
and 2020 is as follows:

Ending Balance

Beginning Balance  Transfers Transfers September 30,
October 1, 2020 and Additions  and Deletions 2021
Depreciable:
Buildings S 145,208,274 5 1,045,664 S (347,296) $ 145,906,642
Equipment 35,814,876 271,033 (694,147) 35,391,762
181,023,150 1,316,697 (1,041,443} 181,298,404
Less accumulated depreciation (74,434,449) (6,258,251) 926,883 (79,765,817)
106,588,701 (4,541,554) (114,560) 101,532,587
Non-depreciable;
Land 3,563,000 - - 3,563,000
Construction work-in-progress 8,098,382 4,417,705 £50,890 11,825197
11,661,382 4,417,705 (690,890) 15,388,197
Total $118250,083 $ _(523,849) $_(805,450) $ 116,920,784
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Ending Balance

Beginning Transfers September 30,
Balance and Additions Transfers 2020
October 1, 2020 As restated and Deletions _As restated
Depreciable:
Buildings $145,148759 S 59,515 S - § 145,208,274
Equipment 34,404,727 3,005,221 (1,599,072} 35,814,876

179,553,486 3,068,736 (1,599,072) 181,023,150

Less accumulated depreciation (65.664,343) 6,360,712 1,590,606 (74,434,44%)

109,889,043 (3,291,976 (8,466) 106,588,701
5 3,563,000

Non-depreciable:
Land 3,563,000

Construction work-in-progress 3,416,361 7,180,454 (2,498,433} 8,098,382

6,979,361 7,180,454 (2,498,433} 11,661,382

Total $116,868,504 $3.888478 S (2.506,899) $118250,083

Interest capitalized and included in construction work-in-progress for the years ended September 30,
2021 and 2020 was 51,878,968 and $1,511,516, respectively.

(4) _ Pensions

The Authority is statutorily responsible for providing pension benefits for the Authority's
employees through the GovGuam Retirement Fund (GGRF).

A. General Information About the Pension Plans:

Plan Description: GGRF administers the GovGuam Defined 8enefit {DB} Plan, a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan, and the Defined Contribution Retirement System (DCRS). The DB
Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to plan members who enrolled in the
plan prior to October 1, 1995. Article 1 of 4 GCA 8, Section 8105, requires that all employees
of GovGuam, regardless of age or length of service, become members of the DB Plan prior to
the operative date. Employees of a public corporation of GovGuam, which includes the
Authority, have the option of becoming members of the DB Plan prior te the operative date.
All employees of GovGuam, including employees of GovGuam public corporations, whose
employment commences on or after October 1, 1995, are required to participate in the Defined
Contribution Retirement System {DCRS) Plan. Hence, the DB Plan became a closed group.

Members of the DB Plan who retired prior to October 1, 1995, or their survivors, are eligible to
receive annual supplemental annuity payments. In addition, retirees under the DB and DCRS
Plans are eligible to receive an annual ad hoc cost of living allowance (COLA).

A single actuarial valuation is performed annually covering all plan members and the same
contribution rate applies to each employer. GGRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the DB Plan.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Government of Guam Retirement Fund, 424 A
Route 8, Maite, Guam 96910, or by visiting GGRF's website — www.ggrf.com.
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A. General Information About the Pension Plans, Continued:

Plan Membership: As of September 30, 2020 (the measurement date), plan membership
consisted of the following:

DB members:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 7,399
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 3,257
Active employees 4,440
15,096
DCRS members:
Active employees 6,810
21,906

Benefits Provided: The DB Plan provides pension benefits to retired employees generally based
on age and/or years of credited service and an average of the three highest annual salaries
received by a member during years of credited service, or 56,000, whichever is greater.
Members who joined the DB Plan prior to October 1, 1981 may retire with 10 years of service
at age 60 {age 55 for uniformed personnel); or with 20 to 24 years of service regardless of age
with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 60; or upon completion of 25 years of service
at any age. Members who joined the DB Plan on or after October 1, 1981 and prior to August
22, 1984 may retire with 15 years of service at age 60 (age 55 for uniformed persennel); or with
25 to 29 years of service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age
60; or upon completion of 30 years of service at any age.

Members who joined the DB Plan after August 22, 1984 and prior to October 1, 1995 may retire
with 15 years of service at age 65 (age 60 for uniformed personnel); or with 25 to 29 years of
service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 65; or upon
completion of 30 years of service at any age. Upon termination of employment before attaining
at least 25 years of total service, a member is entitled to receive a refund of total contributions
including interest. A member who terminates after completing at least 5 years of service has
the option of leaving contributions in the GGRF and receiving a service retirement benefit upon
attainment of the age of 60 years. In the event of disability during employment, members
under the age of 65 with six or more years of credited service who are not entitled to receive
disability payments from the United States Government are eligible to receive sixty-six and two-
thirds of the average of their three highest annual salaries received during years of credited
service. The DB Plan also provides death benefits.

Supplemental annuity benefit payments are provided to DB retirees in the amount of 54,238
per year, but not to exceed $40,000 per year when combined with their regular annual
retirement annuity. Annual COLA payments are provided to DB and DCRS retirees in a lump
sum amount of $2,000. Bath supplemental annuity benefit payments and COLA payments are
made at the discretion of the Guam Legislature, but are funded on a “pay-as-you-go” basis so
there is no plan trust. It is anticipated that ad hoc COLA and supplemental annuity payments
will continue to be made for future years at the same level currently being paid.
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{4)__Pensions, Continued

A. General Information About the Pensian Plans, Continued:

On September 20, 2016, the Guam Legislature enacted Public Law 33-186, which created two
new government retirement plans; the DB 1.75 Plan and the Government of Guam Retirement
Security Plan {GRSP). Commencing April 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018, eligible
employees may elect, during the “election window”, to participate in the DB 1.75 Plan or the
GRSP with an effective date of January 1, 2018.

The DB 1.75 Plan is open for participation by certain existing employees, new employees, and
reemployed employees who would otherwise participate in the DC Plan or the new GRSP and
who make election on a voluntary basis to participate in the DB 1.75 Plan by December 31,
2017. Employee contributions are made by mandatory pre-tax payroll deduction at the rate of
9.5% of the employee’s base salary while employer contributions are actuarially determined.
Members of the DB 1.75 Plan automatically participate in the GovGuam deferred compensation
plan, pursuant to which employees are required to contribute 1% of base salary as a pre-tax
mandatory contribution. Benefits are fully vested upon attaining 5 years of credited service.

Members of the DB 1.75 Plan may retire at age 62 with 5 years of credited service, or at age 60
with 5 years of credited service without survivor benefits, or at age 55 with 25 years of credited
service but the retirement annuity shall be reduced % of 1% for each month that the age of the
member is less than 62 years (6% per year). Credited service is earned for each year of actual
employment by the GavGuam as an employee. Upon retirement, a retired member is entitled
to a basic retirement annuity equal to an annual payment of 1.75% of average annual salary
multiplied by years of credited service. Average annual salary means the average of annual base
salary for the three years of service that produce the highest average.

Contributions and Funding Policy: Contribution requirements of participating employers and
active members to the DB Plan are determined in accordance with Guam law. Employer
contributions are actuarially determined under the One-Year Lag Methodalogy. Under this
methodology, the actuarial valuation date is used for calculating the employer contributions
for the second following fiscal year. For example, the September 30, 2019 actuarial valuation
was used for determining the year ended September 30, 2021 statutory contributions.
Member contributions are required at 9.52% of base pay.

As a result of actuarial valuations performed as of September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017,
contribution rates required to fully fund the Retirement Fund liability, as required by Guam law,
for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, have been determined
as follows:
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2021 2020 2019

Normal costs {% of DB Plan payroll) 13,70%  13.86% 13.54%
Employee contributions {DB Plan employees) 9.52% 9.52% 9.52%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of DB Plan payroll) 4.18% 4.34% _4.02%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of total payroll) 2.18% 2.39% 2.29%
Unfunded liability cost [% of total payroll) 21.44%  20.70% 21.29%
Government contribution as a % of total payroll 23.62% 23.09% 23.58%
Statutory contribution rates as a % of DB Plan payroll:

Employer 26.97%  26.28% 26.56%

Employee _9.52% _9.52% 9,52%

The Authority’s contributions to the DB Plan for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and
2019 were $3,344,987, $3,436,208, and 53,172,830, respectively, which were equal to the
statutorily required contributions for the respective years then ended.

The Authority’s contributions to the supplemental annuity benefit payments and the COLA
payments for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were $1,032,242,
$1,064,349 and $1,076,038, respectively, which were equal to the statutorily required
contributions for the respective years then ended.

Members of the DCRS plan, who have completed five years of government service, have a
vested balance of 100% of both member and employer contributions plus any earnings
thereon.

Contributions into the DCRS plan by members are based on an automatic deduction of 6.2% of
the member’s regular base pay. The contribution is periodically deposited into an individual
annuity account within the DCRS. Employees are afforded the opportunity to select from
different annuity accounts available under the DCRS.

Statutory employer contributions for the DCRS plan for the year ended September 30, 2020 are
determined using the same rates as the DB Plan. Of the amount contributed by the employer,
only 6.2% of the member’s regular pay is deposited into the DCRS. The remaining amount is
contributed towards the unfunded liability of the defined benefit plan.

The Authority’'s contributions to the DCRS Plan for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020
and 2019 were $ 2,558,187, $2,325,742, and $2,019,302, respectively, which were equal to the
required contributions for the respective years then ended. Of these amounts, $ 1,961,020,
$1,777,051 and $1,547,929 were contributed towards the unfunded liability of the DB Plan for
the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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(4) Pensions, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions:

Pension liability: At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority reported a net pension
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities measured as of September 30,
2020 and 20139, respectively, which is comprised of the following:

2021 2020
Defined Benefit Plan $ 49,926,145 $ 46,826,407
Ad Hoc COLA/supplemental
annuity Plan for DB retirees 13,145,995 13,573,770
Ad Hoc COLA Plan for DCRS retirees 3,038,870 3,117,626

$66,111,010 $ 63,517,803

The Authority’s proportion of the GovGuam net pension liabilities was based on the Authority’s
expected plan contributions relative to the total expected contributions received by the
respective pension plans for GovGuam and GovGuam’'s component units. At September 30,

2021 and 2020, the Autharity’s proportionate shares of the GovGuam net pension labilities
were as follows:

2021 2020
Defined Benefit Plan 4,01% 3.86%
Ad Hoc COLA/supplemental annuity
Plan for DB retirees 4. 08% 4.19%
Ad Hoc COLA Plan for DCRS retirees 4.58% 5.21%

Pension Expense: For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority recognized

pension expense for its proportionate share of plan pension expense from the above pension
plans as follows:

2021 2020
Defined Benefit Plan $ 5,858,335 $ 5,413,787
Ad Hoc COLA/supplemental annuity
Plan for DB retirees 1,075,822 1,214,385
Ad Hoc COLA Plan for DCRS retirees 202,627 228,058
$ 2,136,784 $ 6,856,230
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

4] Pensions, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority
reported total deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

2021
Ad Hoc COLA/SA. Ad Hoc COLA Blan
Defined Benefit Plan Plan dor DB Retirees for DCRS Retirees
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of  InAows of Dutllows of  Inflows of
Resaurces Resourres Resources Rasources Resources Resaurces
Difference between expected
and actual expesience § 1248628 5 - [ 8341 s - 5293077 $ 71,246
Net difference between projeciad
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 3,577,149 243,755 205,522 =
Changes of assumptlons - - 1,030,347 18,711 239,310 230,390
Centributions subsequent to the
measurement date 5,306,007 - 922,242 - 110,000
Changes In proportion and difference
between the Authority contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 2,959,881 864 196,600 211,874 35518 745,394
$11977.662  $244.619 §2158330 5 440507 $1279,107 $1.048.030
=t 1, 2020
Ad Hoe COLA/SA Ad Hoc COLA Plan
Defined Beneflit Flan Han far DB Retirees for DCRS Retirees
Ceferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Beferred
Cutflows of Inflows of Quitflows of  Inflows of Outflows of  inflows of
Resources Resources Besourges Resources Resources Resources
Differance between expected
and actual experience § 67,12 s - 5 94059 $ - S 328,337 $ 90,553
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 1,646,566 415,100 41,739 - -
Changes of assumpticns . - 1,218,677 211,008 150,577 302,454
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 5,213,259 - 958,349 106,000
Changes in proportion and difference
between the Authority contribulions and
proportionate share of contributions 3,130,359 9,498 348,185 37,089 41,447 528,894
5 10,057,435 5 424,598 $2619270 5 _290.73F S1,226361 5921901
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Pensions, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Deferred outflows resulting from contributions subsequent to measurement date will be
recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the following year. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions at September 30, 2021 will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending Defined
September 30 Benefit Plan
2022 S 2,498,258
2023 2,311,933
2024 1,173,165
2025 443,680
2026 -
Thereafter -
S 6,427,036

Ad Hoc COLA/

Supplemental Annuity Ad Hoc COLA Plan
Plan for DB Retirees for DCRS Retirees

S 608,281 S 9,878

168,661 9,878

18,639 9,878

- 9,878

- 9,878

- (28,315)

$ 795,581 $ 21075

Actuorial Assumptions: Actuarially determined contribution rates for the DB Plan are
calculated as of September 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which
contributions are reported. The methads and assumptions used to determine contributian

rates are as follows:
Valuation date:
Actuarial cost method:
Amortization method:

Remaining amortization period:

Asset valuation method:

Inflation:
Total payroll growth:
Salary increases:

Retirement age:

39

September 30, 2019
Entry age normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed

May 1, 2033 (13.58 years remaining as of
September 30, 2019)

3-year smoothed market value (effective
September 30, 2009)

2.50% per year

2.75% per year

4% to 7.5%

50% probability of retirement upon first eligibility
for unreduced retirement, Thereafter, the

probability of retirement is 20% for each year until
age 75, and increases to 100% at age 75.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Pensjons, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Mortality: RP-2000 healthy mortality table (males +3, females +2).
Martality for disabled lives is the RP 2000 disability
mortality {males +6, females +4). Both tables are projected
generationally from 2016 using 30% of Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2011 to September 30, 2015. The
rationale for each significant assumption is provided in the experience study. To the extent
that actual experience differs from the assumptions, future pension costs will differ. The next
experience study for the period October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2019 is scheduled to be
performed prior to the next year’'s valuation.

The investment rate assumption as of September 30, 2020 was 7%. The long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block methad in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of the expected
nominal return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Nominal

Asset Class Allocation Return

U.S. Equities (large cap) 26.0% 7.01%
U.S. Equities (smali cap) 4.0% 8.61%
Non-U.5. Equities 17.0% 8.66%
Non-U.5, Equities (emerging markets) 3.0% 10.59%
U.S. Fixed Income (aggregate) 24.0% 3.33%
Risk parity 8.0% 5.66%
High yield bonds 8.0% 6.11%
Global Real Estate {REITs) 2.5% 8.55%
Global Equity 7.5% 7.74%
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

(4) _ Pensions, Continued

8. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the DB Plan as
of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was 7.0%, which is equal to the expected investment rate of
return. The expected investment rate of return applies to benefit payments that are funded
by plan assets {including future contributions), which includes all plan benefits except
supplemental annuity payments to DB retirees and ad hoc COLA to both DB and DCRS retirees.
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the supplemental annuity and
ad hoc COLA payments as of September 30, 2020 was 2.21% (2.65% as of September 30, 2019),
which is equal to the rate of return of a high quality bond index.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following presents the sensitivity of the net pension
liability to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the
Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount

rate:

Defined Benefit Plan:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.0% 7.0% 8.0%

Net Pension Liability $ 62,578,985 $ 49,926,145 5 39,035,928
Ad Hoc COLA/Supplemental Annuity Plan for DB Retirees:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.21% 2.21% 3.21%

Net Pension Liability $ 14,451,779 $.13,145,995 $ 12,011,679

Ad Hoc COLA Plan for DCRS Retirees:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.21% 2.21% 3.21%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,446,636 S 3,038,870 $_2,691.898

41



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

(4)__ Pensions, Continued
C. Payables to the Pension Plans:

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority recorded payables to GGRF of $259,656 and
$295,072, respectively, representing statutorily required contributions unremitted as of the
respective year-ends.

{5) _ Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB}

The Authority participates in the retiree health care benefits program. GovGuam’s Department of
Administration is responsible for administering the GovGuam Group Health Insurance Program,
which provides medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to retirees, spouses, children and
survivors. Active employees and retirees who waive medical and dental coverage are considered
eligible for the life insurance benefit only. The program covers retirees and is considered an other
post-employment benefits plan.

A. General Information About the OPEB Plan:

Plan Description: The other post-employment benefits plan is a single-employer defined benefit
plan that provides healthcare benefits to eligible employees and retirees who are members of
the GovGuam Retirement Fund. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No, 75. The Governor's recommended budget and the annual
General Appropriations Act enacted by the Guam Legislature provide for a premium level
necessary for funding the program each year on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. Because the OPEB
Plan consists solely of GovGuam’s firm commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of
premiums to insurance companies on behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial
report is either available or generated.

Plan Membership: As of September 30, 2020 and 2019 (the respective measurement periods),
OPEB plan membership consisted of the following as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 (the
respective actuarial valuation dates):

2020 2018
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8,114 7,462
Active plan members 11,080 10,832
Total members 19,194 18,294

Benefits Provided: The OPEB Plan provides post-employment medical, dentai and life insurance
benefits to the Authority retirees, spouses, children and survivors, which are the same benefits
as provided to active employees. Active employees and retirees who waive medical and dental
coverage are considered eligible for the life insurance benefit only. The Authority contributes
a portion of the medical and dental premiums, based on a schedule of semi-monthly rates, and
reimburses certain Medicare premiums to eligible retirees. Retirees are also required to pay a
portion of the medical and dental insurance premiums. Three types of health plans are offered
to eligible participants.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam}

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB}, Continued

A. General Information About the OPEB Plan, Continued:

e Standard islandwide Preferred Provider Organization (PPQ} Plan
s High Deductible {Health Savings Account - HSA) PPO Plan
s Retiree Supplement Plan {RSP)

The PPO and HSA Plans apply to both active employees and retirees and work with set
deductible amounts whereas the RSP Plan is an added option for retirees only.

Contributions: No employer contributions are assumed to be made since an OPEB trust has not
been established. Instead, the OPEB Plan is financed on a substantially “pay-as-you-go” basis
whereby contributions to the plan are generally made at about the same time and in about the
same amount as benefit payments and expenses becoming due.

For the years ended September 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Authority reimbursed GovGuam
41,519,812 , $1,475,500 and 51,681,439, respectively, for its share of the costs of the above
mentioned Plan, which were equal ta the statutorily required contributions.

. Total OPEB Liability:

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority reported a total OPEB liability of $97,077,114
and $92,013,986, respectively, far its proportionate share of the GovGuam total OPEB liability
measured as of September 30, 2020 and 2019. The following presents the Authority’s change
in proportionate share since the prior measurement date:

Proportion at prior measurement date, September 30, 2019 3.60%
Proportion at measurement date, September 30, 2020 3.85%
Increase in proportion 0,25%

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2020, rolled forward to the measurement date using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 2.75%

Amortization method: Level dollar amount over 30 years on an open amortization
period for pay-as-you-go funding.

Salary increases: 7.5% per year for the first 5 years of service, 6% for 6-10

years, 5% for 11-15 years and 4.0% for service over 15 years.
No changes since prior measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Other Post-Employment Benefits {OPEB), Continued

B. Total OPEB Liability, Continued:

Healthcare cast trend rates:

Dental trend rates:

Participation rates:

Medicare enrollment:

Dependent status:

Non-Medicare and Medicare - 6% for Year 1-3 then
reducing 0.25% annually to an ultimate rate of 4.25%. Part
B 4,25%. Health care trend assumptions begin at current
levels and grade down over a period of years to a lower level
equal to some real rate plus inflation. The principal
components of health trend are medical inflation,
deductible erosion, cost shifting, utilization, technology and
catastrophic claims. The overall effect of these components
are expected to decline year by year. Medical trend rates
are applied to claims cost and retiree contributions,
Medicare Part B and Medicare Part D reimbursements are
assumed to be 4.25% per year.

4.25% per year, based on a blend of historical retiree
prerr&ium rate increases as well as observed U.S. national
trends.

Medical - 100% of active employees covered under a
GovGuam medical plan will elect to participate at
retirement. Dental - 100% of active employees covered
under a GavGuam dental plan will elect to participate at
retirement. Life - 100% of active employees will elect to
participate at retirement. Current retirees will continue in
the GovGuam plan as provided in the data, and upon
attainment of age 65, will remain in that plan or enroll in a
Retiree Supplementzal Plan per Medicare Enrolment
assumption below.

Based on current over 65 data, 55% (previously, 15%) of
current and future retirees are assumed to enroll in
Medicare and will enrall in a Retiree Supplemental Plan
upon attainment of age 65. All employees retired prior to
September 28, 2008 are assumed ineligible for Medicare
upon attainment of age 65 and therefore will not enroll in
a Medicare Supplemental Plan.

Male spouses are assumed to be three years older and
female spouses are assumed to be three years younger
than the retired employee. Medical - 100% of spouses of
active employees covered under a GovGuam medical plan
will elect to participate at the active employee's retirement.
Dental - 100% of spouses of active employees covered
under a GovGuam dental plan will elect to participate at the
active employee's retirement. Life - 100% of spouses of
active employees will elect to participate at the active
employee's retirement. For current retired employees, the
actual census information is used.
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB}, Continued

B. Total OPEB Liability, Continued:

Actuarial cost method:

Healthy retiree mortality rate:

Disabled retiree mortality rates:

Withdrawal rates:

Disability rates:

Retirement rates:

Entry Age Normal. The costs of each employee's post-
emplayment benefits are allocated as a level basis over the
earnings of the employee between the employee’s date of
hire and the assumed exit ages.

RP-2000 Caombined Healthy Martzlity Table, set forward 3
years and 2 years for males and females, respectively,
projected generationally using 30% of Scale BB.

RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for males and females,
set forward 6 years and 4 years for males and females,
respectively, projected generationally using 30% of Scale
BB.

15% for less than 1 year of service, decreasing 1% for each
additional year of service up to 10 years, further decreasing
0.5% for each additional year of service up to 15 years, and
2% for service over 15 years.

1974-78 SOA LTD Non-Jumbo, with rates reduced by 50%
for males and 75% for females as follows: 0.05% for males
aged 20-39 years {0.03% for females); 0.10% - .18% for
males aged 40-49 years {0.05% - 0.09% for females); 0.32%
- 0.53% for males aged 50-59 years {0.16% - 0.27% for
females); and 0.76% for males aged 60-64 years {0.38% for
females).

50% of employees are assumed to retire at first eligibility
for unreduced benefits under the Government of Guam
Retirement Fund, 20% per year thereafter until age 75, and
100% at age 75.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: An OPEB trust has not been established thus the OPEB Plan
does not presently report OPEB plan fiduciary net position.
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(8] Other Post-Employment Benefits {OPEB), Continued

B. Total OPEB Liability, Continued:

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.21% as of
September 30, 2020 (2.66% as of September 30, 2019). The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the Authority will be made in
accordance with the plan's funding policy. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be insufficient to make all projected benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the 2.21% municipal bend rate as of September 30, 2020
(2.66% as of September 30, 2019) was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total CPEB Hability.

C. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Changes in the Authority’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability for the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
At October 1 $ 92,013,986 $ 67,314,364
Changes for the year:

Service cost 3,962,600 2,492,109

Interest 2,534,191 2,885,664

Change in proportionate share 6,936,757 407,840
Difference between expected and

actual experience 10,794,471 -

Change of assumptions {17,752,367) 20,456,909

Benefit payments (1,412,524} (1,542,900

Net change 5,063,128 24,699,622

At September 30 $ 97,077,114 $ 92013986

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following schedule shows the impact on the OPEB
liability if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that
was used (2.21%) in measuring the 2020 OPEB liability,

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.21% 2.21% 3.21%
OPEB Liability $ 115,253,939 $ 97,077,114 $ 82,587,453
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

C.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability, Continued:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following schedule presents the
sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. The
sensitivity analysis shows the impact on the OPEB liability if the healthcare cost trend rate
used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the current healthcare cost trend rate used in
measuring the 2020 OPEB liability.

Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
OPEB Liability S 80,859,667 $ 97,077,114 $ 118,165,188

OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB:

For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority recognized OPEB expense
of § 6,868,750 and $5,434,675, respectively. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources:

2021 2020
Deferrad Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions § 15,793,325 $ 20,976,202 5 20,057,226 % -
Difference batween expected and

actual experience 8,887,321 9,290,156 - 12,064,107

Cantributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,519,812 - 1,475,500 -

Changes in proportion and difference
between the Authority contributions
and proportionate share of

contributions 6,804,660 - 2,135,393 8,579,443
$ 33,005118 5 30.266,358 $23,668.119 $ 20,643,550

Deferred outflows resulting from contributions subsequent to measurement date will be
recognized as reduction of the OPES liability in the following year. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and defarred inflows of resources related to OPEB at
September 30, 2021 will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
September 30
2022 S (297,151
2023 (1,993,063
2024 1,398,181
2025 2,179,362
2026 (68,381)

$ 1,218,948
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(6)__ Long-Term Liabilities
A. Long-Term Debt

Long-term bank debt consists of the following:
2021 2020

2018 Series A Revenue Bonds, initial face value of 529,980,000,

interest at 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually in January

and July, principal and mandatory sinking fund payments

payable in varying annual installments commencing with 2

payment of $270,000 in July 2037, increasing to a final payment

of $3,405,000 in July 2048. $ 29,980,000 $ 29,980,000

2018 Series B Revenue Bonds, initial face value of 523,145,000,
interest at 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually in January
and luly, principal payments payable in varying and staggered
annual installments commencing with a payment of $1,320,000
in July 2019, with a final payment of 51,725,000 in July 2037, 21,825,000 21,825,000

2018 Series C Revenue Bonds, initial face value of $18,320,000,
interest at varying rates from 3.587% to 4.582% per annum
payable semi-annually in January and July, principal payments
payable in varying annual installments commencing with a
payment of $2,380,000 in July 2020, with a final payment of
$3,370,000 in July 2028. 13,475,000 15,940,000

Total long-term debt 65,280,000 67,745,000
Less current partion {2,560,000) {2,465,000)
62,720,000 65,280,000
Add premium on bonds 4,512,826 4,762,079
$ 67232826 5 70,0420
In June 2018, the Authority issued Revenue Bonds 2018 Series to finance various capital projects,
retire certain existing bank loans, provide for capitalized interest for up to twe years, fund the bond
reserve fund and pay costs of issuance.
All gross revenues of the Authority, except for crane surcharge, facility maintenance fee, and public
marina revenues, have been pledged to secure the payment of the bond principal and interest. For
the year ended September 30, 2021, the debt service for the series bonds was $5,745,862 or
approximately 11.73% of pledged gross revenues.

Bond premiums associated with the 2018 series bonds are being amortized using the effective
interest method over the life of the debt.
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

A. Long-Term Debt, Continued

As of September 30, 2021, future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Interest Total Debt Service

$ 3,182,633 $§ 5,742,633
3,063,896 5,748,896
2,935,842 5.755,842
2,301,618 5,756,618
2,670,118 5,755,118

11,395,346 22,240,846
9,262,250 17,887,250
6,879,000 17,884,000
3,838,750 17,888,750

502,750 7,152,750

$.46532,703  $ 111,812,703

Changes in long-term bank debt for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Principal
2022 $ 2,560,000
2023 2,685,000
2024 2,820,000
2025 2,955,000
2026 3,085,000
2027 through 2031 10,845,000
2032 through 2036 8,625,000
2037 through 2041 11,005,000
2042 through 2046 14,050,000
2047 through 2048 6,650,000
$ 65,280,000
OQuitstanding at
September 30,
2020 Increases
2018 Series A bonds 5 29,980,000 5 -
2018 Series B bonds 21,825,000 -
2018 Series C bonds 15,940,000 -
Unamortized premium
on 2018 Series bands 4,762,079 -
872,507,079 Sgaagi=
Outstanding at
September 30,
2018 Increases
2018 Series A bonds $ 29,980,000 [ -
2018 Serles B bonds 21,835,000
2018 Series C bonds 18,320,000
Unamortized premium
on 2018 Series bonds 5,001,699 -
$75,126,699 $ -
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Outstanding at
September 30,
Decraases 2021 Current
5 - $29,980,000 § -
- 21,825,000 -
2,465,000 13,475,000 2,560,000
245,253 4,512,826 -
$2,714,253 569,792,826 $ 2,560,000
Outstanding at
September 30,
Decreases 2020 Current
s - $29.980.000 ¢ -
- 21,825,000 -
2,380,000 15,940,000 2,465,000
239,620 4,762,079 -
$ 2,619,620 $72,507,079 2,465,000

Noncurrent

% 29,980,000
21,825,000
10,915,000
4,512,826

$ 67,232,826

Noncurrent
$ 29,980,000
21,825,000
13,475,000
4,762,073
70,042,079



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes ta Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

(6) _Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

A. Long-Term Debt, Continued

Bond Covenants

The Master Indenture, dated July 1, 2018, as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture,
sets forth the establishment of accounts, the application of revenues, and certain other covenants
ta ensure payment of debt service. Management believes the Authority was in compliance with
all bond covenants as of and for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. The primary
requirements of the Master Indenture are summarized below:

Rate Covenant — the Authority has covenanted to at all times fix, prescribe and collect rates, fees
and charges sufficient to yield the sum of net revenues available for debt service during each fiscal
year equal to at least 1.25 times the total annual debt service for such fiscal year and to yield
revenues during each fiscal year equal to at least the total amount of all transfers required to be
made to the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Bond Reserve Fund, the
Subordinate Securities Fund, the Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund and the Renewal and
Replacement Reserve Fund for such fiscal year. Net revenues available for debt service means the
sum of all revenues received during the period {excluding crane surcharges, facility maintenance
fee, and public marina revenues) less operation and maintenance expenses incurred during such
period.

Reserve Funds — the Master Indenture creates the following reserve funds and fund requirements:

e Operation and maintenance reserve fund equal to 90 days, on average, of the total
operation and maintenance expenses budgeted by the Authority for the then current fiscal
year

¢ Renewal and replacement reserve fund equal to the greater of (i) an amount equivalent to
30 days, on average, of the total operation and maintenance expenses budgeted by the
Authority for the then current fiscal year or (i) $3 million (required in 2023)

¢ Bond reserve fund equal ta $5,337,736

e Working capital reserve fund equal to 180 days of the operation and maintenance costs of
the current fiscal year (required in 2023}

Debt Service Fund - the Master Indenture creates a Debt Service Fund available for the purpose of:
(1) paying interest on each bond as it shall become due and payable; (2} paying the principal of
each bond when due and payable; (3) paying mandatory sinking account when due; and {4) paying
Parity Payment Agreement Payments due and payable. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the
Authority is not currently a party to any Parity Payment Agreements.

Operation and Maintenance Fund - the Master Indenture creates an Operation and Maintenance
Fund, available for working capital purposes. The Authority must maintain a balance in such
account equal to the amount of operation and maintenance expenses budgeted by the Authority
to be paid from revenues during the next succeeding calendar month.

50



(6

PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

(7)

A. Long-Term Debt, Continued

Bond Covenants, Continued

Events of default with finance related consequences - the Master Indenture specifies a number of
Events of Default and related remedies. In the event that the amount in any Fund or Account is
Insufficient for the purposes for which such Fund or Account was established, the Trustee shall
transfer such amount as is necessary to satisfy such deficiency.

Acceleration - the remedies granted to the Trustee and the Bondholders under the Master
Indenture do not include any right to accelerate the payment of the outstanding bonds. The
Trustee is authorized to take certain actions upon the occurrence of an event of default, including
proceedings to enforce the rights of Bondholders as outlined in the indenture.

B. Other Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in other long-term liabilities in fiscal year 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Qutstanding at Outstanding at
September 30, September 30,
2020 Increases Decreases 2021 Cyrrent Noncuirent
Accrued annual leave $ 2,760,942 5 1,BA2,056 5 1,749,551 $ 2,353,647 51,306,757 % 1,046,890
Accrued sick leave 1,543,920 B17,416 777,495 1,583,841 - 1,583,841
Net pension liability 63,517,803 3,099,738 506,531 66,111,010 - 66,111,010
OPEB liabikity 92,013,986 7,165,898 2,102,770 97,077,114 - 97,077,114

$150336,651 512925308 $ 5436347 5167125612 $1306757 5165516855

QOutstanding at Outstanding at
Septemhber 30, September 30,
2019 Increasas Decreases 2020 Current rren
Accrued annual leave $ 1,845,025 $ 1980677 5 1,564,760 S 2260942 $ 1,798,867 S 462,075
Accrued sick leave 1,085,660 1,185,380 708,130 1,543,920 - 1,543,920
Net pension liability 55,215,897 14,098,703 5,796,797 63,517,803 - 63,517,803
OPEB Hability 67,314,364 26,331 060 1,681,438 52,013,986 - 92,013

$125,461,946 5 43,625.630 $9.751,125 $159,336,651 1798867 157537784

Major Customers

For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority has two major shipping agency
customers that collectively accounted for 67.35% and B85.46% of total operating revenues,
respectively. The Autharity has a high concentration of credit risk due to the limited number of entities
comprising its customer base.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

{8] Rental Operations

The Authority leases space to tenants under non-cancelable operating leases, with options to
renew, providing for future minimum rentals, The minimum future rentals on non-cancelable
operating leases for the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter, are as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount

2022 S 1,440,155

2023 1,440,155

2024 1,440,155

2025 1,440,155

2026 1,440,155
Thereafter 7,307,174

$ 14,507,949

The Authority also leases equipment and space to tenants on a month-to-month basis.

Total equipment and lease space revenue from tenants for all rentals totaled $8,291,223 and
$9,191,997 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

{(9) Commitments and Contingencies

Port Modernization Plan

The Port Moderni2ation Plan (the Plan) spans a 30-year planning horizon with an estimated project
cost of $260 million and was conditionally approved in 2008 through Public Law 29-125. The Plan
cansists of Phases |-A and I-B with a focus on critical maintenance and repair of waterfront activities
and Phase Il with a focus on expansion needed to address long-term cargo growth demands of
Guam and neighboring islands aver the next twenty years. In 2009, the Guam Legislature
approved Phases I-A and I-B of the Plan through Public Law 30-57.

In June 2008, through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), the Authority partnered with the
Maritime Administration {MARAD}) for the “Port of Guam Improvement Enterprise Program” (the
Program). MARAD was designated as the lead federal agency assisting the Authority in securing
funding sources to modernize its facilities and operations. Under the Program, MARAD is to
provide federal oversight and coordination of projects, act as a central procurement organization,
leverage federal, non-federal and private funding sources, and streamline the environmental
review and permitting process. The partnership with MARAD was formalized through U.S. Public Law
110-417, Natienal Defense Authorization Act for 2010. U.S. Public Law 110-417 also established the
“Port of Guam Improvement Enterprise Fund” (the Fund), a separate account in the Treasury of the
United States that will be used to receive funding from federal and non-federal sources to carry
out the Program.

The Authority commenced the Phase |-A of the plan in 2010 with $50 million and $54.5 million
appropriations from U.S. Department of Defense {USDOD) and United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA), respectively. In November 2013, the Plan was updated to provide a
comprehensive view of the Authority’s current condition, identify elements of continuous
improvement and sustainability, and scale down the cornponents of Phase I-A of the Plan. Changes
to the Plan were signed into Jaw through Public Law 32-155 on May 21, 2014. The Authority utilized
the $50 million appropriation from the USDOD and only $3.5 million appropriation from USDA and
will no longer use the rest due to changes in certain factors relating to the military buildup and cargo
forecast.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Commmitments and Contingencies, Continued

Port Modernization Plan, Continued

Appropriatian from the USDOD is sourced from the 2010 U.S. Supplemental Appropriations Act that
was signed into law in August 2010. The appropriation was transferred to the Fund on September 22,
2010 and is administered and disbursed by MARAD based on the terms of the MOU. The Authority
segregated the construction funded by the $50 million USDOD appropriation into three phases. All
three phases have been completed and capitalized in 2015. A dashboard project expenditure
summary was provided to the Authority by MARAD and was used as the basis for recording of capital
assets, The appropriation from the USDOD has a remaining $2,600,000 which has been
reprogrammed for the maintenance of the capital assets and for acquisition of equipment.

Merit System

In 1991, Public Law 21-5% was enacted to establish a bonus system for ermnployees of GovGuam,
autonomous and semi-autonomous agencies, public corporations and other public
instrumentalities of the Government of Guam who earn a superior performances grade. The bonus
is calculated at 3.5% of the employee’s base salary beginning in 1991. The remaining estimated
accrued merit bonus as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 is $54,000.

Government of Guam General Fund

In March 2011, the Authority received a $12,250,000 invoice from GovGuam's Department of
Administration [DOA) representing an annual assessment of $875,000 for each of the fiscal years 1998
to 2011 pursuant to 5 GCA Chapter 22 Section 22421, Transfer of Autonomous Agency Revenues To
Autonomous Agency Collections Fund. |n May 2011, the Authority requested DOA further review the
assessment as the Authority believes that it does not owe the entire $12,250,000 based on previous
transfers in 1994 and 1997 of $500,000 and $3,500,000 to the General Fund and to the Government of
Guam Autonomous Agency Infrastructure Collection Fund {AAICF), respectively. The Authority also
asserts that it funds certain government services provided by the Guam Customs and Quarantine
Agency, the Guam Environmental Protection Agency, the Guam Police Department and the Guam Fire
Department through ongoing operations at the Port; contributes to GEDA and Port’s Base Realignment
and Closure Commission; and, will fund the Tri-Star Pipeline and water line projects in the future.
Further, the Authority understands that it is only required to transfer amounts to the AAICF when there
is an operating surplus. No liability is recorded for this Government of Guam billing as of September
30, 2021 and 2020.

Lawsuit and Claims

The Authority is a defendant in various lawsuits and proceedings arising in the normal course of
business. At September 30, 2021, the Authority accrued approximately $200K, included in
security deposits and other payables account in the statements of net position, for estimated
settlements of various litigation.

While the outcome of the lawsuits and proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and could
adversely affect the Authority’s financial statements, it is the opinion of management, after
consulting with its legal counsel, that the ultimate disposition of such suits and proceedings will not
have any additional material adverse effect on the Authority's financial statements at this time, and
therefore, except as disclosed above, no provision has been recorded for litigation and claims in the
financial statements.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

{9) Commitments and Contingencies, Continued

Contract Commitments

As of September 30, 2021, the Authority has varicus on-going construction contracts with a totai
contract price of $9 million, of which $3.1 million has been recorded as construction work-in-progress.

Purchase Commitments

As of September 30, 2021, the Authority has outstanding purchase orders for various equipment
purchases totaling $235,000,

(10) Restricted Net Position

At September 30, 2021 and 2020, net position is restricted for the following purposes:

2021 2020
Debt service $ 44,455,786 $ 32,532,334
Future crane acquisition or extraordinary crane
maintenance 4,938,994 4,368,915
Maintenance, replacements, and repair of facilities 4,298,526 4,474,116

$.53,693306  $41,375365
(11) Restatement

During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Authority determined that it had not capitalized
interest on construction work-in-progress in accordance with GASB Statement 62 for the year ended
September 30, 2020. The 2020 financial statements have been restated as follows to correct this

error.
2020
As previously 2020
presented As restated Difference
Non depreciable property, plant
and equipment $10,149,866 $11,661,382 $1,511,516
Interest (expense)} income, net (2,466,453) (954,937) {1,511,516)

(12} Risk and Uncertainties

The Authority’s operations have been affected by the ongoing outbreak of the coronavirus disease.
As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, governments worldwide implemented
actions to restrict travel and economic activities. The ultimate disruption which may be caused by
the outbreak is uncertain, therefore, the actual impact on the Authority’s business, results of
operations, and financial position for fiscal year 2022 and beyond is currently not determinable.
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Total Gowernment of Guam net pansion Hability

Port Authority of Guam's (PAG's) proportionate share of the net pension labilty
PAG's proportion of the net pension liabilivy

PAG's covered-employee payroll**

PAG's proportionate share of the net pension Nak/lity as
percentage of its covered employes payroll

Plan fiduciary net pasition as a percentage of the tatal pension fiability

* This data is presented for those years for which information is available,

PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
[A Component Unht of the Govermment of Guam)

Required Supplemental tnformaticn {Unaudited)
Schedute of Propertional Share of the Net Pension Uabdity
Last 1D Flscal Years®

Defined Benefit Plan
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

$ 1,246,336,897 $ 1,214, 482675 S 1,179,192,550 $ 1,142,249.393 5 1,368,645,126 §  1,436,814,230
1 49,916,145 5 46,826,407 L1 41,081,830 s 39,782,113 1 43,796,523 s 44,375,587
4.01% 1.B6% 3.48% 3.48% 3.20% 3.09%
$ 20935236 5 19,644,856 13 17,885,121 $ 17,703,032 $ 16,202,258 H 15,793,402
238.47% 238.36% 22947% prifrl 270.31% 200.98%
61.48% 62.25% 53.28% 60.63% 54.62% 52.33%

“* Covered-employee payroll data from the actuarial valuation date with one-year lag.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report,

56



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam}

Required Supplemental Information {Unaudited}
Schedule of Proportional Share of the Net Pansion Liabllity
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Total Government of Guam net pension liability***

Part Authority of Guam's {PAG's) proportionate share of the net pension liability
PAG's proportion of the net pension liability

PAG's covered-employae payroll**

PAG's proportionate share of the net pension liability as
percentage of its covered employee payroll

* This data is presented for those years for which information is available.

** Covered-employee payroll data from the actuarial valuation date with one-year lag.
*** No assets accumulated in a trust ta pay benefits.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

2021 2020 2019 2018
s 321,889,969 S 324,192,725 % 289,875,668 & 288,147,121
1 13,145995 $ 13,573,770 & 11645387 § 11,683,996
4.08% 4.19% 4.02% 4.05%
] 21,344,797 5 21,332,343 § 20,645687 § 20,610,932
61.59% 63.63% S6.41% 56.69%
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PONT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
{A Comg Uni ofthe of Guam}

Asguired Supplemental information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Propartional Share of the Net Pension Uabii ity
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Ad Hoe COULA Plan Tor DCRS Reviress

2021 2020 2019 2018
Total Governmeni of Guars net pension Nablliny* ** H 66,393,472 5 59806407  $ 49342424 % E2,445,490
Port Authority of Guam's {PAG's] proportionats share of the net pension labilley s 3,033,470 1 3117626 5 1527680 S 3,1B6,75%
PAG'S hon of the net pension lizbadity A458% 521% 5.02% 5.10%
PAG's covered-employer payroll®* 5 11,867,590 5 12,260,578 S 13,548,374 5 15,228,448
PAG'S proportionate share of the net penslan Battlivy as
percentage of its covered employee payroll S.61% 543% 18.66% 16.57%

* This data is presented for those years lor which information is available.
** Covered-wmploved payroll dats Feom the acluarial vatuation dale with one-year lag.
*80 N assets accumulated in a trust ko pay benefits.

See Accompanyng Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Statuiotlly requived contribution

Cantributlons in relation 1o the statuwlorily required contributinn

LContrbution [excess) deficiency

PAL's envered-employes payrol)

Contribiiion a3 & percentage of covered-emgloyes payrol!

FORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

{A Component Unit of the Governmen of Guam)

Requined Supptemental information {Unaudited)

Sthedule of Penslon Contrbutions
Last 10 Flscal Years*

21 2020
$ 5213259 § 470,759
4,766,204 4,686,293
§ M08 § 33,866
5 20936236 5 19644856
1L9% 21.86%

* This data is presented for those yeats fov which information Is available.
** Covered-emplayee payrol) data from the aciuarisl valuation date with one-year lag.

Auditors’ Repurt.
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201%

2018 017 2016
$ 4540620 5 4210432 0§ 40517046 5 4,172,658
4,728,788 4,363,054 3,981,412 4,154,190
H 183668) § 152563 3564 5 18,469
$ 17885121 § 17703032 5 16200268 S 15,793 a2
26.44% 20.65% 2457% 25.30%



FORT AUTHONITY OF GUAM
{A Companent Linit of tha Government of Guam|)

Required Supplemental Information [Unaudited]
Schedule of Changes in the Proporticnal Share of the Total OPEB Uability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years®

2021 _ 070 2019 2ms
Eervice cost $ 1,962,600 H 2,492,109 H 2,980,600 3,385,608
Interest 534,191 2,885,664 3,156,104 2,797,108
Changes in proportionate share 5,936,757 407,840 EFIERF {R0BAS)
Ditference between exprcted and actual experience 10,794,471 - [12,753,465) -
Change of assumptisns {17,752,367) 20,456,909 {6.524,999) 18,71,844)
Benefit payments 11,412,524} 11,542,900) {1.644,510} {1,508,536)
Met change in OPED Labitity 5,062,128 24,699,633 {17,472,294) 4,050,529)
OPER linbitity, beginning 92,013,986 67,314,364 u,nq,gg 84,837,187
OPEB llabi'ty, ending H 97,077,114 & 91,013,986 5 £7,314,364 84,785,658
Covered-employes payrall as of valuaticn date H 20,200,535 H 19,172,254 - 17,724 837 17,004,413
OPEB liablliry as » percentage of covesed-smployee payroll 480.57% 479.93% 379.71% 498.61%
Notes 1o schedule;
Disvount rote 1.210% 1EBIMN 4 180% 3.630%
Change in benefit terma;
Mone.
Change of assumgtions:

Discount rate has changed from respective measurement dates.

* This data is presented far those years for which information is avallable.
** No sssuls accumulated in a trust to pay the benefits.

Sen A Auxitors' Report.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
A Component Unh of the Govarnment of Guam)

Schedule of Froportional Share of the T

Last 30 Fiscal Years®

Total OPED Hability **
PAG's proporticnate share of the tolal OPEB Kability
P&G's proportion of (e 1otal OPES liability

PAG's covered-employee payrol!

PAG's proportionate share of the tolal OPEB Hability as
percentage of ks covered-s mployes payeoll

* This data is prasented for those yeads for which information is avaiable,

*4 N assets sccumutated in & trust 1o pay the benefits.

Ser Arconmpanying Independent Auditors' Repart

JUnaudied)
otal OFEB Liabifiry

2021 020 2019 pLL]
5 2,510,489, 545 % 1,551,523,376 1074570335 § 1,431,040,672
5 7077114 5 92,013,986 67314364 & B4,785,558
L1 3.60% 159% 3.49%
5 20200535 § 19,173,754 17,724837 % 17,004 433
ABOST 479.93% I T 490.61%
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Actuarially determin ed contribution

Cantributlans in relatian te the
actuarially determined contribunion

Contribulion deficiency

Covered-employes payroll a5 of valuation date

Comibutions as a per geof [ -2 pl

Notes tg schedyle:

Valuation dute:

payrall

PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
[A Component Linit of the Gavernment of Guam|

Required Suppiemental Information [Unaudiled)
Schedule of OPEB Contibutions
Last 10 Fiscal Years®

01 030 2019 2018 _mz
s 8557624 5 6574080 § 7774898 & BOS5416  § £,955,373
1,411,524 1,542,500 1,644,510 1,508,536 1,508,536
H 7,145,100 5 503L150  § 6130388 & 6545880 S 5,486,837
5 20,200,535 5 19,172,254  § 17,724,837 § 17000433 ¢ 17,004,433
€.99% L05% 9.28% 887% AT

Actuarially determined eomributions rates are calculaled as of September 30, 2020

Meihod and assumptions uted ta determine contributions roces:

Artuarial cost methad;
Amotization method:
Amonization perkad;
Inflation;

Healthcare cost trend rates:

Salaryincrease:

Mortality {Healthy Retiree):

Mortallty {Ditabled Ratiree):

Eniry age normal,

Level dollar amount on an open amortization petiod

A0 vears

175%

For 2020, Non-Medicare and Medicare -6%; and Fart B 4.25%.
For year 1-3, then reducing 0.25% annually to

an utimate rate of $.25%

4.0% to 75%

RF-2000 Combined Healthy Martafity Table, sel forward 3 years and 2 years for
malzs snd females, respectively, projected generationally using 30% of Scale BB

fP-2000 Disabled Mantality Table, sat forward 6 years and & vears far mabes
and fema) pectively, projected g longlty using 30% of Scale BB

* This data is prasented for those years [ar which infermation is available.

See Accampanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Details of Operating Expenses
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Management and Administration:
Management:
Salaries and wages - regular ] 579,997 § 569,481
Pension cost 209,923 194,584
Annual leave 45,559 48,224
Benefits - Government contribution 27,244 25,435
Fringe benefits 23,476 9,857
Office supplies 3,439 2,672
Furnishings and equipment - 135
Miscellaneous 72,465 10,253
Tatal management 962,008 861,041
Administration:
Salaries and wages - regular 7,614,884 7,814,611
Pension cost 2,894,139 2,474,543
Annual leave £43,501 609,992
Salarles and wages - overtime 464,214 629,109
Fringe benefits 698,080 455,371
Benefits - Government contribution 313,218 363,264
Repairs and maintenance 242,602 189,243
Salaries and wages - other 462,108 677,478
Furnishings and equipment 144,621 76,860
Operational supplies 72,101 79,290
Office supplies 51,529 40,496
Miscellaneous 213,643 319,737
Total administration 13,914,640 13,730,394
Total management and administration s 14,876,738 § 14,591,435

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

63



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam}

Details of Operating Expenses, Continued
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Equipment Maintenance:

Salaries and wages - regular 5 3,141,387 § 3,039,824
Pension cost 1,131,933 1,085,939
Repairs and maintenance 503,021 593,991
Operational supplies 342,856 431,313
Salaries and wages - overtime 197,967 265,532
Annual leave 260,460 254,926
Fringe benefits 338,909 210,734
Salaries and wages - other 264,328 340,777
Benefits - Government contribution 151,187 139,428
Contractual - 13,642
Furnishings and equipment 99,161 13,562
Office supplies 1,220 1,602

Total equipment maintenance S 6,432,429 § 6,391,270

Transportation Services:

Salaries and wages - regular L 2,960,045 5 3,105,016
Pension cost 1,177,561 1,081,706
Salaries and wages - overtime 547,188 558,584
Gas, oil and diesel 241,397 207,436
Fringe benefits 351,214 240,536
Annual leave 234,356 234,389
Salaries and wages - other 344,409 413,464
Benefits - Government contribution 160,616 158,699
Furnishings and equipment 3,640 4,344
Office supplies 1,206 1,585
Operational supplies 1,226 766

Tatal transportation services $ 6,022,858 S 6,006,525

See Accompanying independent Auditors' Report.

64



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Componeant Unit of the Government of Guam)

Details of Operating Expenses, Continued
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Stevedoring Services:

Salaries and wages - regular S 2,260,744 5 2,380,813
Pension cost 827,116 821,448
Salaries and wages - overtime 407,514 404,598
Annual leave 169,200 181,515
Fringe benefits 285,550 181,647
Salaries and wages - other 218,721 298,692
Benefits - Government contribution 124,832 122,397
Operational supplies 2,261 839
Office supplies 682 203

Total stevedoring services ] 4,297,020 $ 4,392,152

Facility Maintenance:

Salaries and wages - regular [ 1,104,320 S 1,140,249
Pension cost 398,849 370,164
Operational supplies 136,759 126,700
Salaries and wages - overtime 120,072 105,968
Fringe benefits 157,566 109,705
Annual leave 75,158 80,360
Benefits - Government contribution 32,826 56,956
Furnishings and equipment 52,964 21,269
Salaries and wages - ather 56,002 83,954
Repairs and maintenance 260 3,690
Office supplies 128 175
Miscellaneous 6,838 16,814

Total facility maintenance S 2,141,832 § 2,116,004

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

65



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Details of Operating Expenses, Continued
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Terminal Services:

Salaries and wages - regular 5 1,850,953 S 1,873,983
Pension cost 683,394 654,565
Salaries and wages - overtime 246,492 243,935
Annual leave 137,348 143,543
Fringe benefits 173,975 137,589
Benefits - Government cantribution 55,981 91,564
Salaries and wages - other 138,069 159,308
Operational supplies 4,097 4,018
Office supplies 5,503 2,903
Furnishings and equipment 568 .

Total terminal services S 3,336,380 S 3,351,405

General Expenses:

Managers' fee S 923,039 $ 782,831
U.S. Department of Defense - Office of Economic Adjustment 810,179 -
Legal counsel 37,180 77,245
Professional sarvices 350,668 304,600
Maintenance 236,470 114,673
Waste removal 16,245 91,177
Audit 49,000 49,000
Claims and damages 315,074 444,605
Port incentive award 26,985 15,068
Board of Directors expense 28,609 22,906
Workmen's compensation injury allowance 13,577 10,069
Agency fee 6,579 7,096
Inventory adjustment 64,488 52,040
Loan fee 30 -
Miscellaneous 288,292 559,341

Total general expenses S 3,166,415 S 2,530,651

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Summary of Salaries and Wages
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Salaries and wages - regular S 19,512,330 $ 19,923,977
Salaries and wages - overtime 1,983,847 2,207,727
Benefits - Government contribution 905,904 957,743
Fringe benefits 2,028,770 1,345,439
Salaries and wages - other 1,483,727 2,013,673

5 25,914,578 § 26,448,559

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report,



PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM

(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Employees by Department
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Department:
Management and administration
Equipment maintenance
Transportation services
Stevadoring services
Facility maintenance
Terminal services

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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2021 2020
146 136
35 53
65 62
50 59
29 25
40 38
385 373




Application Form

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS. IMCOMPLETE APPUCATIONS WILL BE REJECTED

Sug_glamentag Quastionnaira for Emglogant Practices Liablllg !Entlg Covar!

When completing this Supplementary Questionnalre

B Please answer all quastions giving full and complale answer

& Your atiention is drawn fo the imporiani Nolice conlained In the main proposal

& plaase ansura that this supplemantary Quastionnalre Is prapery signed and dated

1. How many amployees does ihe praposar have in tha lollowing calagories?

Employses : 385 ( based on FY21 PAG Audil)
Dfficars:

2. Does the proposer have a Human Resources Deparimant YES [(vo
IF Yes® how many employses are there in this depariment? 6 EMPLOYEES

IF No, how is the function handled?

3. How many ofiicers and olher employees hava resigned, been terminaled {with or without cause) or have taken
early ratirement within tha lasl 24 months?

Employaas: 69
Officers:

4. (a) Does the proposar have written Human Rescurces Manual o aquivalent writien management guidelines?

Yas I:I No

{b) Please tick box if the manualfguidelines indicate & policy or procedure with respect 1o the following evenis.
Written application far employment
Confidential traatmen! of medical examinations
Legally prohibited discrimination
Sexual harassment
Compliance wilh slatuss
Employee disclplinary action
Redundancies, lermination of employmenl and early refirement
Employea out-placement services
Employee appraisaliteview

BEREEANEE




{c} Please tick relevant box (es) if decisions regarding these events are always subject to prior review by the
proposer's human resources depariment, legal department or oulside legal adviser

Individual decision's are always reviewed by: Human Legal Dep't External Legal
Resources Dap't Adviser

Written application for employment ]
Confidential treatment of medical examinations 1
Legally prohibited discrimination X
Sexual harassment \ X A
Compliance with statues X X
Employee disciplinary actions X X _ _
Redundancles, termination of employment X X
and early retirement _
Employee out - placement services [)ij |
Employee appraisals/reviews ]

(d) Does the proposer have an employee handbook which is distributed to all employees? X Ives [ Jne

If "Yes" please give detalils:
PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS

. Is the proposer currently undergoing or does the proposer contemplate undergeing during the nexd 12 months,
any smployee layoff ar early retirement (including those resulting from any type of company rastrucluring,
office, plant ar store closure)? Yes DNO

if "Yes" please give details:

- Please provides on a separate attachment full detalls of ali wrongful lermination, discrimination and sexual
harassment claims made against the proposer or any of the directors, officers or employess during the last five
years including amount at may Judgment or settlements and costs of defense

If “no” such claims, please tickNo [ X_|No

. Please provide on a separate attachment full details of all inquiries, invesligations grievance filing or other
administrative hearings previously filed with or cumrently before any local or governmental agency governing
employer responsibility to employees.



8. Are there now or have there been any employment praclices claim (s) against the propaser or any of its
subsidiaries? Yes Jne
If "Yes" please give details:

B. CONSENT CLAUSE

" I agree and authorize the Campany to use and disclose any information {collected or held) with regard to malters
pertaining fo this application, to enable the Company, its associated individuals/organizations or independent third
parties, to provide advice or information covering products or services which the Company believes may be of interest to
me or lo cemmunicate with me for any purpose. *

DECLARATIONS

We declared that the slatements and particulars in this Supplementary Questionnaire are trus and that no material
facts have been miéstaled or suppressed after enquiry. We acknowledge recelpt of the "lmporiant Notice® which was
; that we have read and understood the content of that notice,

SHAWN CEPEDA

Signed
ACTING, HUMAN RESQURCES ADMINISTRATOR

Title

AG. /8. 2022

Date



CRIME INSURANCE APPLICATION
NAMED INSURED:

Port Authority of Guam, Jose D. Leon Guerrera Commercial Port
any director, officer elected or appointed officlal employea, contract employes or volunteer worker while
working for or on behalf of the Port Authority

MAILING ADDRESS: CONTACT"

1026 Cabras Highway, Suite 201 Rory J. Respicio, General Manager
Piti, Guam 96925 Tel. 671-477-5931/2

NATURE OF BUSINESS:

Seaport Operator
SALES OR REVENUE # OF TOTAL # OF CLASS | ALL OTHERS
LOCATIONS EMPLOYEES EMPLOYEES
1
COVERAGE REQUESTED
Limhit Deductible
Aggregate $250,000
Employes Dishonesty $250,000 $15,000
Loss Inside Premises $250,000 $15,000
Loss Qutside Premisas $250,000 $15,000
Money Orders and Counterfelt Currency $250,000 $15,000
Depaositors Forgery $250,000 $15,000
Check Forgery $250,000 $15,000
Third Party Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud $250,000 $15,000
Cosls
POLICY PERIOD REQUESTED
From 12:01 AM, Oclober 1, 2022 to 12:01 A.M, Oclober 1, 2023 both at Local Standard Time
RETROACTIVE DATE:
N/A

# ERNATE QUOTE REQUESTED:
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Audit and Corporate Governance

do you:

1. Do External Auditors audit all operations at least annually? Myes [No
2. (a) Have all recommendations by External Auditors regarding
internal controls been complied with, following your last audit? Clyes [ONo
{b) If no, please provide details:
3. Is lhere an Audit Committee which monitors the effectiveness of
internal controls and reports directly to the Board? OYes MEENo
4. (a) Do you have an internal audit department? Clyes [@No
{b} Do they have an established audit cycle for all operations? (OYes MENc
Recruitment Procedures
5. When recruiting or promoling employees to positions of trust
involving handling of stock, money, financial or treasury functions,
(a) undertake independent checks in their employment history? MBYes [INo
(b) undergo a process to ensure their suitability for the position? HYes [ONo
Internal Financial Controls
6. Are wages/salaries independently checked against personnel records
for unusual or excessive payments? @Yes [INo
7. Are duties segregated so that no individual can control any of the
following activities from commencement to completion without
referral to others: Mmyes [No
(a) signing checks ar authorizing payments (including capital
expenditure) above US$10,0007 BYes [No
(b) issuing funds iransfer instructions? Myes [INo
(c) amending funds transfer procedures? WYes [ONo
(d) opening new bank accounts? WYes [INo
{e) investments in and custody of securities and valuables
including bank checks, lravelers checks, bills of
exchange etc)? @Yes [ONeo
{fi refunds of memories or return of goods above US$10,0007 Myes [INo
{(g) disbursement of assets of any superannustion fund? MyYes [ONo

Crime Insurance Application
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(h)  awarding contracts following a tender? CYes [MWNo

8. Is all supporting documentation validated before authorizing

Paymenis? Wyes [INo
9. Are statements of accounls sent to customers independently of
Employees receiving payments? Wyes [CNo

10. Are bank statements independently reconciled with customer
accounts by persons not authorized to deposit/withdraw funds,
issue funds transfar instructions or dispatch accounts lo
customers? @Yes [No

Stock and Physical Security
11. Is there controlled access to all locations? Oves [@No
12. Are all premises containing stack, money, securities, precious

metals etc. connected to an intruder alarm? Oyes [MNo
13. Is an independent physical count of stock, raw materials, work

in progress, and finished goods undertaken at least

Quarterly and is this count reconciled against stock records? Wyes [OnNo
14. Is the transfer of money and securilies valued above $20,000 usually

made by a security personnel of a professional cash carying Company? Cves [WiNo
15. What is the maximum value of money, securnties, precious metals

and/or jewelry at any one location; (a) during business hours s 1M

(b) after business hours s M

SuppliersiService Providers/Outsourcing

16. Do you maintain an approval suppliers list? COYes M@WNo
17. Are suppliers, service providers and outsourcing companies vetted

for campetency, financial stability and honesty before being approved? ClYes MWNo
18. Are all suppliers, service providers and culsourcing campanies

appointed under written contract? CYes [@No

19. Are procedures in place lo assess the suitability of trustees,
fiduciaries, administrators or officers of any of your
superannuation funds? Oyes [@Nno
20. (a) Do you outsouree any aclivities to third parly service
providers? EWyes [Ono
(b) M "yes” please detail the services provided:

Operation & Management of Fuel Pier
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21. Do you audit outsourcing compantes during tha lerms of their contract?
22. If the service provider or outsourcing company operates on your
premises, are their employees under your daily Management control?

Computer Systems

23. Are unique passwords used lo give various level of entry to the
computer depending on the users authorization?

24. Are password automatically withdrawn when people leave?

25. Are all amendments to programs approved independently
of the persons making the amendments?

26. Are programs prolected lo detect unauthorized changes?

27. Is your computer systems protected by virus detection and
repair software?

Fund Transfers

Cyes

Cdves

WYes
EYes

MYes
@EYes

WYes

MnNo

@No

OONo
CONe

CNo
[Ne

[CNa

“Fund Transfers” means any instruction {other than checks) given to a financial instilution to pay or daliver funds.
$ 2,000,000

28. Whalt is the approximately annual value of fund transfer?
29. Please specify the methad of instruction (e.g. written, slectronic,
Computer, telsphone etc).

Computer.

30. Can payment Inslructions be made lo any account which has not
been pre-agreed?

31. Is the financial institution required to authenticate the
instruction before payment is releasad?

Oves

ves

32. Please provide a brief description of the methods used to secure fund fransfers

{e.g. passwords, encryption, code words, call back).

WNo

[
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Plans and Policies
33. Do you maintain a written crisis management or contingency

plan covering procedures following kidnap or extortion? [Cyes [@ENo
34. Do you maintain a written anti-fraud policy which is distributed

throughout your organizalion? @yes [INo
356. Are special security precautions taken to protect against

Kidnapping of diractors or employees whao live in or travel

to violate countries? COves [MNo

Pollcyf Loss History
36. (a) Doses not the company have a Crime Insurance policy cumently
currently In force? Myes [No

If "YES", please state

(i) Limit of Liability: ~ $250,000

(i} Retsntion: NIL

(i ) Expiry Date: October 1, 2016

(b) Has the Applicant ever had any insurer decline a proposal imposed any special terms, canceled or
refused (o renew a Crime Insurance policy? CYes [@No
it "YES", please give details

(c) Please provide brief delails of any losses (of a type covered by a Crime policy) sustained during the past
5 years and before application of any deductible, retention or excess whether insured or not. (Please
Include date discovered, location, nature of loss and amount).
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(d) Please describe what corrective measures were taken to prevent similar losses.

Declaration

We declare that the statements and particulars in this application are true and that no materials facts have been
misstated or suppressed after enquiry. We agree that should any of the infarmation given by us alter between the
date of this application and the inception dale of coverage, we will give immediate notice thereof. We ara awars
that this application, together with any other information supplied by us shall form the basis of any contracl of
insurance effect thereon.

Signed
GENERAL MANAGER
Title (to be signed by Partner/Director or Principal or equivalent)
PORT AUTHORITY OF GUAM
Company )
AG. 1€ 2021
Date i

Please enclose with this Application
- The last Annual Report and Accounts for the Company.
- The mosl recent Interim Slatement (if applicable).
- Any other Prospeclus Type Document published in the last 12 months.

]
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Schedule of Locations

No. | Location No. of Maximum Cash Maximum Cash
Employeas on Site Transferred

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2

22
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REMARKS

Question No. Comment

(I

Crime Insurance Application

Page 8 of 8




DIRECTORS & OFFICERS INSURANCE APPLICATION

NAMED INSURED:

Port Autherity of Guam, Jose D. Leon Guerrera Commercial Port

MAILING ADDRESS: CONTACT:

1026 Cabras Highway, Suite 201

Piti, Guam 96825 Rory ). Respicio, General Manager

Tel. 671-477-5931/2

NATURE OF BUSINESS:
Seaport Operator
COVERAGE REQUESTED
Amount
Directors & Officers Liability and Corporate Reimbursement Insurance including
Employment Practices Liability
any one claim and in the annual aggregate $5,000,000
sublimit for Employment Practices Liability $2,000,000
Retention
any one claim $10,000
any one claim for Non-Entity Employment Practice Liability coverage $75,000
POLICY PERIOD REQUESTED

From 12:01 AM, October 1, 2022y, 45.9 o i, October1,2023 o at Local Standard Time.

CONTINUITY DATES:

ALTERNATE QUOTE REQUESTED:

REFER TO INSURANCE SPECS FOR REQUIRED CONDITIONS AND CLAUSES,
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Name of Company: Port Authorily of Guam, Jose D. Leon Gusrrero Commercial Port

2. Addrass of Head Office: 1095 Cabras Highway, Suite 201
Piti, Guam 96925

Contact

County of Registration Guam - USA

. Date of
incorporalionfformation:  Created in 1975 (Government Agency)

5. (a}) How long has the Praposer conlinually carried on business? Since 1975

(b) State the principal business activities of the Proposer and its subsidiaries?
Seapaort Operalor

8. Limit(s) of Liability being requested:
$5,000,000 subject lo a sublimit of $2,000,000 for Employment Practices Liability

7. (a) Give a complete list of all subsidlary companies including country of registration and
percentage owned by Proposer. Please use attachment

(b) Does the Proposer have any subsidlary(ies) incorporated/formed in the United States of
AIMBICAT ou.nvivceerraremssssstsssere s essasssassseseesens e see s seo oo seseens ClYes [@No

(c) Is the Proposer requesting Directors and Officers insurance for each subsidiary listed in {a)
above? e OO SRR Cves ENo

I “no” to question 7(c) please list those subsidiaries for which insurance is not being requested.

B. (a) Please provide total (consolidated) annual gross assets of the Company from the most recent
year end report;

FY2021  § 238,289,934

(b) Please provide total {consoiidated) annual revenues/turnover of the Company from the most
recent year end raport;

FY2021  § 55,059,326

{c) Please provide the total (consolidated) net worth of the Company for the past two years:

{d) Please provide the total (consolidated) net income of the Company for the past two years:
FY2020  §$592,047 FY2021 §-2,232,820
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9. During the last five years has:

{a) the name of the Proposer changed? ...............c.ceimmcirreeeersesnnens ClYes MNo
{b) any acquisition or merger taken place of the Proposer or

any subsidiary 0CCUITBO? ..cvvceseresrererreersasisirssnimassssesssesssssnssrs sesaes [OYes MHNo
(c) any subsidiary been sold or ceased trading? ............eveecrcsennssirnin OYes MENo

(d)} the Company undergone a management buyout leveraged buyout or other
change in capital structure of the Parent Company changed?............. COves [@No

If “yes” to any of tha above please give details.

10. Does the Company or any director or officer have Directors & Officers Liability Insuranca
CUMTENHY TN TONCET iiviiirmieccccecceree et ere s set e sesrre e e e se e sans sesvaas st vonsene Yes [No

If “yes" please state:
{a) Insurer:
{b) Indemnity Limit;
(c) Expiry Date:
(d) Premium:;
(e} Retention(s):

11. Has the Company ever had any Insurer decline a propaosal or cancel or refuse to renew a
Directors & Officers Liability INSUFANGCETY.........cccoveireresmsssersisssmerconaeenersssesans Clyes [@No

If “yes” please give details.

12. Is the Proposer:

(a) Privately Held?.......... - setrereeeesanemnesssassssrmrsesemnrnensen L] YES (NG
{b) Publicly Traded (equity or debt)?...........ccoceveervrnecsnrrecninsersscssnsenenne. L1¥YeS  [MNo

13. If “yas” to question 12(b) then please specify the following for the Proposer:

Each country Each securitles Type of listing Percentage of Type of
listed exchange/markat per | (direct, ADR and all securities saturity
country levsl, OTC) traded

e .
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(a)  Is the Proposer publicly listed on an Unlisted Securities Market?........[J¥es  [WINo

(b)  Traded in any Other way? ..........ccoveevvreerenrenens OO—— I\ (- B | [\
Please specify:

14. Are any subsidiaries publicly tradsd (equity or debt)?........o..ccermreeveevres e, Oves MWNG

15.1f “yes" to question 14 then please specify the following for each such subsidiary:

Name of Country of Each country Each Type of Percentage of
subsidlary | formation or listed sacurities listing (direct, | all securities
incorporation exchange/ ADR and traded and
market per level, OTC) type of
country security

16. Pleass list for the Company:

(a)
{b)
©

(d)
(e)

Total numbaer of shareholders: None
Total number of shares issued; Nona

Total number of shares (percentage) held by each director and officer of the Company (both
direct and beneficial); Nons

Total number of shares {percentage) held by institutional investors: None

All securily holders, holding a 5% or more ownership interast in the Proposer, or any subsidiary
that is publicly traded, giving the holder's name and the percentage held:

Holder Entity Percentage of Ownership

Not applicable

17. (a)

(b)

(©)

Is the Proposer ar any subsidiary considering any acquisition, tender offer, merger, buy-out or
other change in equity SIUCIUFET .............oovvveoureeeee e erernseees e Clyes [@No

Is the Proposer or any subsidiary aware of whether any other company or entily is
considering an acquisition, tender offer, merger, buy-out or other change in equily structure
of which the Proposer or any subsidiary would be a target?................[JYes No

Is the Proposer or any of its subsidiaries intending either a new public
offering of securities (equity or debt), or a change in the listing stalus of its existin
securilies, within the Next Year?..............eeeveeveeeeeeeseees e oo [yes No

If “yes” to any of the above, please provide specific delails

%
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18. (a) Have any Direclors and / or Executive Officers of the Praposer or of any publicly traded
subsidiary of the Proposer resigned or been replaced in the past 12
ITIOMNIST «..ooeeeeeeeeeneeeecisansteses s assesssassesesanes senesesneseseresmensassnessasssrnes Myes [ONo

If “Yes,” who, title and why?

(®) s the Company considering a replacement or addition of any Directors and Officers of the
Proposer or of any publicly traded subsidiary of the Propossr? ........... [dyes [WNo

If “Yes," who, title and why?
Dua irali '

18. (@) Who is the company's external auditing firm? Deloitte

(b) Hasthe Company changed its extermal audltmg firm in the pasl three
years? ... pressersesansasatssens w.J¥Yes [HENo

If *yes,” why and when?

20. Does the Company have any plans to remove or replace its external auditor in the next 12
months? ... et erearenes et ent s etrenr e amre s nanrareanereeran w.JYes [@lNo

If "Yas,” why and to whom?
Due § iration of term.

21. (a) Have all revenue recognition practices of the Company been approved by your existing
external auditor, without QUANAICAtION? ......ceeveeeeeieceeeeieceec s eaeens myes [JNo

If “no," please provide specific datails.

{b) Have the Company's external auditors recommended changes to the revenue recognition or
other significant accounting practices in the past 12 months................ OYes ([@No

{c) Has the Company changed or considered changes to the revenue racognition or other
significant accounting practices in the past 12 months? .........coeueee...LJYes  [lNo

{d) s the Company considering changes to the revenue recognition or other significant
BCCOUNENG PRACHCES? ..vvreveurrercmeercnsesissessesressesesessasesessaesesmacesasssesensnens Clres [@No

If “yes,” to (b}, {c) or (d) please provide specific details.
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22. Does the Company or any of directors and/or officers thereof have any interests in any

partnerships or Special Purpose Vehicles or Enlity? ............cveeevreennnn.... (yes [@No
If "yes,” please provide details.
23. Has the Company ever restaled its financial results? ...........cooeoovvnon, Myes [JNo

If “yes,” please provide details.

FY20 Financials restated dus to GASB statement No. 62

24, Does the Company anticipale having to take a significant one time charge o eamings, or reslate
earnings, within the next 12 months?............ccovseomeereeeonsses oo, Cyes MmWNo

If "yes,” please provide details.

If "yes" to question 24, it is agreed that the proposed policy shall not provide any coverage for
loss in connection with any claim, investigation, proceeding or action alleging or arising from such
event, unless an endorsement is added to the proposed policy specifically extending coverage to
such arising.

25. Does the Company have specific written corporate policies with respect to directors’, officers’ and
employees’ ability to purchase ar sell the Company's stock, including the ability lo exercise stock
OPHOMET 1ottt sas vt sbaenssaens sesense s s v s esees st et st eesnes s OYes [@ENo

If “yes,” please provide details.

Claims Information

26. Has there been or is there now pending any claim(s) or actions against or invesligation{s) of: {i) the
Company thereof; and/or (i) any person proposed for insurance in his or her capacity as a director or
OffiCers of any COMPANYT ..o iernines s eree s ee e ess st s Emyes [ONo

If "yes,” please provide details.

27. The directors or officers of the company, Ihe General Counsel (or equivalent person) of the company
and the risk manager of the company have no knowledge or information of any act, error or omission
which could reasonably give rise {0 a claim, investigation or action under the proposed policy, except
as follows: (Attach complete details) .............eceeeeeeeeeeneres s Clves ENo

%
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If the directors or officers, the General Counsel (or equivalent position) or the risk manager of the
company have no such knowledge or information slate *None®:

It is agreed that with respact to Questions 26 and 27 above, that if such claim, proceeding, action,
knowledge, information or involvement exists, then such claim, proceeding or action and any claim or
action arising from such claim, praceeding, action, knowledge, information or involvement is excluded
from the proposed coverage.

Documentation

28. Provide copies of the following for the Company.
{a) Latest annual report.
(b) Latest audited financials
(c) Latest Interim financials available

(d) Copy {certified by organization's Secrelary) of the indemnification provisions of the charter and
the by-laws. Also attach a copy of arganization’s indemnification agreement.

(e) Latest CPA managemant ietter along with Proposer's responses to any recommendations made
therein.

() Latest 20-F report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) if the Company is
listed in the United States Securities Exchange Commission

If the Company has any securitias (equity or debt) listed or traded in the United States of
America, then:

(9) Latest 10K report filad with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) (or simitar slate or
foreign agency).

(h) All registration stalements filed with the SEC (or similar state or forelgn agency) within the last
twelve months.

() Copies of financial statements certified by the CEO and CFO. Al proxy statements and notices of
annual mesting of slockholders within the last 12 months

it is agreed that the Propaser will file with the Insurer, as s00n as it becomes avallable, a copy
of each registration statement and annual or interim report which the Proposer or any
subsidiary may from time to time file with any local or foreign governmental, regulatory body
or agency that regulates securities (Including but not limited to the US Securities and
Exchangs Commission).

%
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Declaration

| declare on behalf of all insureds, after inquiry, that the statements and particutars in this supplemental
proposal are frue and no material facts have been misstated or suppressed. | agree that this proposal
forms, any attachment, any information submitted therewith and any and all other information supplied or
requested, shall form the basis of any Contract of Insurance effected thereon. | further undertake to
inform Insurers of any material alteration to any information, statements, representations or facts
presented in this proposal form occurring after the date this proposal form is signed and before the
inception date of the proposed policy. A material fact is one which would influence the acceptance or
assessment of the risk. All written slatements and materials furnished to the insurer in conjunction with
this application are hereby incorporated by reference into this application and made a part hereof.

Signing this proposal does not bind the proposer to complete this insurance.

Signed _/A’m{.z Z‘f /;;5!/‘

General Manager

Title
CEOQO or Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Authorized signatory of the insured)
Company Part Autharity of Guam

Date W‘i’j& 20VY

%m
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LIST OF PERSONS TO BE INSURED AT INCEPTION OF THE POLICY

NAME POSITION

Rory J. Respicio General Manager

Dorinic G. Muna Deputy General Manager Operations
Luis R. Baza Depuly General Manager Admin/Finance
Francisco G. Santos Board of Director, Chairman

Dorothy P. Harris Board of Director, Member

Dr. Judith P. Gutheriz Board of Director, Member

Conchita S.N. Taitano Board of Director, Member
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ATTACHMENT

QUESTION #

RESPONSE
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PORT LIABILITY INSURANCE APPLICATION

NAMED INSURED:

Jose 0. Leon Guerrero Commercial Port
DBA: Port Authority of Guam

MAILING ADDRESS: CONTACT:

1026 Cabras Highway, Suita 201 Rory J. Respici
Pitl, Guam 969251026 ¥ J. Respicio, General Manager
Tel. 671-477-5931/2

NATURE OF BUSINESS:

Seaport Operator

POLICY FORM:

Lloyds Ports and Teminals Consortium wording as expiring

COVERAGE REQUESTED
Limit Deductible
Port Authority Legal andfor Public Liabilities
any one accident and/or occurrence $50,000,000 $15,000
Public Officials Liability
any one accident and/or occurrence $5,000,000

POLICY PERIOD REQUESTED
From 12:01 A.M. __ October 1, 2022 4, 45,99 oM. Oclober 14,2023 poyh at) ocal Standard Time.,

ALTERNATE QUOTE REQUESTED:

REFER TO INSURANCE SPECS FOR REQUIRED CONDITIONS AND CLAUSES.
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PORT AUTHORITY QUESTIONNAIRE

1.

NAME AND FULL ADDRESS (including post code or zip code and latitude and
longitude) of Port Authority and other port locations to be insured.

Jose D. Leon Guerrero Commercial Port

DBA: Port Authority of Guam

1026 Cabras Highway, Suite 201

Piti, Guam 92925 Latitude: 13.467 Longitude: 144.783

TYPE OF PORT; _
Are you a landlord port? Yes or an operational port? Yes

If you are both a landlord and operational port, please provide the percentage split
based on revenue: percentage of revenue as a landlord:_15% (FY 21 Audit)

percentage of operational revenue:_ 85% (FY 21 Audit)

For any Cargo Handling operations performed by you please complete the relevant
parts of the Terminal Operators /other Operations Questionnaire.

FACILITIES:

Please enter the number of facilities available, if none enter 0: 0

Container terminals 1 Dry Bulk Terminals 1
Ro-Ro terminals 1 Gas terminals 0
Container Depots 1 Qil terminals 0
Warehouses 2 Passenger Terminals 1
Temperature Controlled Warehouse 0 Dry docks 0
Breakbulk/General cargo terminals 1 Ship repair 0
Grain Terminals o Yacht marina 2
Other (please specify):

SERVICES:

Services provided by you, please answer "Y" performed by you, "S" performed by your
subcontractor and "N” not provided:

Y _ Stevedoring N Dredging

Y Marine terminal operator N _ Tugs

N Navigational information and aids N Salvage/ ship removal

Y _ Marine traffic control N Bunkering

N Maintained water depths N__ Dumpsites / landfill

N __ Buoys and lighting N Waste disposal

N __ Pilotage N__ Diving

N__ Helicopter landing sites/airport N__ Advice to other operators
Y  Warehousing Y Security (e.g. Police)

N _ Temperature Controlled Warehousing N Emergency (e.g. Fire

Services)
Other (please specify)
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4. SERVICES: (continued)

Do you provide any other facilities / services e.g. carparks, shops, oil rig facilities
etc.? [f yes please give details:

NO

Pleasc attach a copy of your latest annual report/handbook and a map of the port, its
boundaries and confines.

5. CONTRACTS/INDEMNITIES

a) Contracts with Customers (for example shipping lines):

Do you have any of the following contracts? Yes

If Yes, please indicate the extent of any liability and/or indemnities {please check the
relevant hox):

Limited liability | Unlimited liability No liability Other Please

iro negligence iro negligence specify
No contracts? YON[] YONO YONC] YOIND]
Standard YON[O YN[ YN YONO

contracts? ]

Individual user YwIN[] YONO yON[] Y[OIN]

agreements?

Port tariff YIVIN[] YOND Y[IN[] YIN[{]
fact/bylaws? [V]

b) Other Contracts/Leases/licenses:
Do your leases / licences contain indemnities in your favour?  Yes [V]Ne [

Do these contracts/leases/licenses have indemnities covering your own negligence?

Yes [v]No[ ]

Have you given any indemnities to another party under any agreement?

Yes[JNo[4

If yes, please give details.

¢) Tenants and/or Subcontractors:

Is there a requirement in your Contract with tenants and/or subcontractors that they
have adequate liability

and property insurance? Yes [v]No[]

If yes, what is the minimum limit that you require? § 500,000 PI. $1m Accident, $200,000 PD
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Do you check annually that all tenants and/or subcontractors maintajn and renew their
insurance? Yes[V]No[]

Note: There is a policy requirement that your Tenants and Subcontraciors purchase
and maintain adequate liability and property insurance.

6. VOLUMES:

Please advise annual throughputs broken down into TEU's handled, breakbulk and bulk
(in tonnes), cars (as units or tonnes) and any other cargoes.

Last Year This Year Estimated Next
Year

TEUs 156,791 147,671 166,498
Breakbulk (tons) 233,541 169,661 218,567
Dry bulk (tons) 0 0 0
Wet bulk (tons) o 0 0
Cars 9,291 6,672 8,648
Other e.g. passengers
(please specify) passengers passengers passengers

International

Domestic

What is your annual revenue?

Last Year This Year Estimated Next
Year
$54,679,112 $55,059,326 $55.442,183.84

What % of revenue is derived from cargo handling?

Last Year This Year Estimated Next
Year
83% 85% 85%

How many vessel calls per annum? Please provide figures broken down into size of vessel:

Last Year This Year Estimated Next
Year
Up to 5,000 GRT
5,000 - 15,000 GRT
Over 15,000 GRT
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9.

10.

EQUIPMENT:

Please provide the aggregate value for the current year and next year and attach a
schedule showing against each item, description, value and age. Are your declared
values based on:

New replacement value? Yes[V]No[ ]
Market value? Yes [ ] No /]
Depreciated (book) value? Yes [ ]No

Please provide your estimated Maximum Possible Loss. $19,204,735

PROPERTY:
a) Please provide a summary of property values broken down as follows:
Sum Insured in USD
Wharves & quays $80,253,089
Buildings $17,700,269
Warehouses/storage facilities $6,825,000

b) Please also attach a full schedule with description, values, age, location including
details of construction and details of fire extinguishing appliances / sprinklers;

¢) Please itemise separately (together with the location) any single structure where the
insured value is in excess of USD 15,000,000;

d) Please itemise separately {together with location) any property outside the confines
of the port;

€) Please provide your estimated Maximum Possible Loss. $125,000,000

HULLand P & I:
Please attach a vesse] schedule with name, type, use, age, GRT, value and horse power
(for tugs), plus number of crew.
N/A
BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
a) What is your applicable annual revenue?
Last Year This Year Estimated Next
Year
$54,679,112 $55,059,326 $55,442,183
b) Do you require cover for increased cost of working; Yes[viNo[ ]
or loss of revenue? Yes ] No [}
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11.

©) What cover is required?

physical loss/damage of handling equipment? Yes [w]No[[]
physical loss/damage to property? Yes[vINa[]
or port blockage of Operations? Yes[«|No ]

d) If port blockage is required, do you require cover for:

blockage of berths; Yes[vINo[]
approach channels and locks; Yes [wINo []

or land entrances? Yes [vINo[]

e) Is your electricity supply generated by yourself? Yes [ JNo
or through external means? YesINo[]

Do you have a back up / emergency generator? Yes [w#No []

) Are there alternative/reserve equipment/ means of access available to mitigate any
claim? Yes[JNo /]

If yes, please give details.

Please attach a map of the port to illustrate your answer.

LOSS PREVENTION / RISK MANAGEMENT - Please attach details of:
a) risk control / loss control management, and

b} pollution control/environmental impairment control, and

¢) property and equipment maintenance and staff training programs.

d)} Security precautions (including):

24 hour security guards? Yes [WINo[]
All buildings/perimeter fences/gates alarmed? Yes[_|No
Close Circuit TV? Yes [viNo [ ]
Continual documentation security checks? Yes[vINo [ ]
Other? Please attach details Yes [ JNo[¢]

€) independent surveys of facilities / equipment during the last twelve months.
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Are there any revisions to the loss prevention / risk management measures in a) to e)
above envisaged / planned during the policy period? Yes [ JNo

If yes, please attach details.

12. CLAIMS HISTORY:

Please attach full claims history (both paid and outstanding and any related fees or
expenses including legal fees) for the last 5 complete years netof any deductible and
advise of any deductible applicable. Please also attach details of any existing litigation,

Signed ﬁ’)’%! &(/’; % Date g/f?/f (-

General Manager

Designation:

IMPORTANT:

This questionnaire is to be completed and signed b sured and will form part of the

Port Authority Policy.

The premium charged and the conditions of this Policy are based upon the information
provided in this questionnaire, any operations and/or physical changes in the nature of the
Assured's Operations during the policy period which materially changes or alters in any way
the information contained in this questionnaire must immediately be advised to Underwriters.
Any change advised will be assessed by Underwriters to enable them to decide whether they
are prepared to continue to provide coverage and at what terms. Failure to comply with this

requirement could affect the validity of the Policy.

ASSURED TO NOTE:
The canstruction of this policy shall be governed by English law and practice. Any
dispute between Underwriters and the Assured as to the meaning of this Policy shall be

resolved by Arbitration in London strictly in accordance with the terms of the
Arbitration clause contained in the policy.
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ATTACHMENT

QUESTION #

| RESPONSE
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